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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the business review
and outlook of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
was approximately HK$337,839,000, representing a significant
increase of 82.91% over approximately HK$184,704,000 of the
corresponding period of 2018. The consolidated loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$88,810,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 20.55%
over approximately HK$111,784,000 of the corresponding period
of 2018. Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company was 7.36 Hong Kong cents (2018: 10.61 Hong Kong
cents). As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total assets and net
assets reached approximately HK$329,261,000 and approximately
HK$178,967,000 respectively. Revenue increased mainly because
the nickel cathode concentrates trading business continued to
expand its scale of operation. The decrease in loss attributable to
owners of the Company was primarily attributable to (a) the Group
received compensation income from the minority shareholder of the
Company’s indirectly-owned subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction
Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”) during the year under review in the
amount of approximately RMB30,097,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,510,000 (2018: nil); (b) after assessment of the recoverability
related to the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
the Group recognised reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$442,000 (2018: impairment loss of HK$23,953,000); (c) the
Group reassessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s other
intangible assets and the Group only recognised an impairment loss
of approximately HK$6,570,000 (2018: HK$37,110,000); and (d)
notwithstanding (a) to (c), in view of the wide volatility of the price of the
nickel, the Group incurred fair value loss on nickel future contracts in
an amount of approximately HK$75,763,000 (2018: nil) during the year
under review.

DIVIDENDS

According to the Company’s dividend policy and in order to reserve
sufficient funds for the Group’s future development and operation, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
(2018: nil).
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REVIEW OF 2019

Business review
Trading of mineral concentrates business

Starting from the second half of 2018, the trading of mineral
concentrates business segment principally operates in two main
aspects: (1) sourcing mineral concentrates (mainly gold, copper, zinc
and lead concentrates) from Ecuador and Peru and selling them to the
customers in the PRC and Peru; and (2) sourcing mineral concentrates
(branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) from Russia and exporting them
to the customers in the PRC.

Leveraging on the business relationship and background of the
management, the Company achieved to continue expanding its
mineral concentrates business scale by exploring the potential in nickel
products. Since July 2019, taking into account the introduction of new
products and at the request of our supplier, the Company has signed
a one-year cooperation agreement with the Russian supplier locking
quantity. However, due to fluctuations in the nickel market in the
second half of 2019, the government of Indonesia announced in August
a plan to stop the export of nickel plates earlier, and a large number of
speculators speculated in the nickel futures market, resulting in serious
imbalances in domestic and overseas nickel prices and a shrink of
domestic demand. The Company’s business and profitability in relation
to the international trading of nickel products was affected. Meanwhile,
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, gradually opened
up trading pipelines for non-ferrous metals in the PRC during the year,
and the revenue from electrolytic copper trading was approximately
HK$13,975,000 (2018: Nil). During the current year under review, the
Group was able to trade an aggregate volume of approximately more
than 3,000 tons of the non-ferrous metals nickel and copper, with a
revenue of approximately HK$301,564,000 (2018: HK$145,832,000)
being recognised by the Group. The Group stabilizes its revenue
through this business segment and strives to strengthen its revenue
base with diversification into other mineral products.

On the other hand, in relation to the business of sourcing and selling
of mineral concentrates from Ecuador and Peru, as the sole sourcing
agent in Ecuador has ceased operation, Ecuador’s mineral concentrate
trading business has deteriorated in recent years. Meanwhile, the
market environment of mineral concentrates in Peru continues to be
fiercely competitive. As a result, the Group disposed of the mineral
concentrate trading business in Ecuador in November 2019 and
concentrated its financial and human resources on the business of
trading in other markets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E KX AR A A
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Securities investments business

Since August 2019, the Company has made phased investments in the
secondary market to purchase shares of a Hong Kong listed company
engaged in financial services. During the period under review, the
Company purchased a total of 4,970,000 shares with a total investment
amount of approximately HK$19,435,000. As at 31 December 2019,
the Company adhered to the principle of investing in value and had
not sold the shares but intended to hold them in order to generate
dividend income and seize capital appreciation. The management of the
Group will continue to pay attention to market dynamics and adopt a
reasonable and prudent approach to the investments and maintenance
of the business segment.

Construction material business

Hunan Taiji is the Company’s indirect 60%-owned subsidiary engaged
in manufacture and sale of slag powder business in the PRC. Its
production continues to be suspended and the resumption of
production of Hunan Taiji remains uncertain due to the suspension of
the supply of raw materials in the foreseeable future. In addition, the
litigation between the Group and the minority shareholder of Hunan
Taiji was still pending. During the year under review, the operation of
manufacture and sale of construction materials business has not yet
resumed.

OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the epidemic of COVID-19 has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the Group
to some extent. The Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

The Group will continue to foster its cooperation with suppliers and
is committed to increasing the scale of major mining trades and
improving the quality of investments so as to consolidate our core
business; at the same time, it will continue to identify investment and
business development opportunities cautiously and carefully and make
good use of funds to expand its business scope in a timely manner in
pursuit of the sustainable development of its business and to broaden
the Company’s stable source of income and profits and to increase
shareholder returns.
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Looking into the future, the Board believes that, leveraging on the
experience and resources of the Group’s controlling shareholders and
adhering to the principle of investing in value, the Board will further
cautiously and carefully focus on and develop the Group’s investments
and business development opportunities at home and abroad. In line
with the Group’s investment strategy and leveraging on the experience
and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders, the management
is committed to grasping and creating business opportunities in the
trading business and securities and financial investments with a view
to bringing long-term and substantial returns to shareholders and the
Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
valued shareholders for their unwavering trust in the Group over
the years, to our business partners and clients for their long-term
support, and to the entire management team and all staff for their
efforts and dedication. We will continue to intensify our efforts to
strengthen and develop our existing businesses while remaining open
to explore new investment opportunities so as to achieve long-term
strategic transformation and will strive to create the best returns for our
shareholders.

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue of approximately
HK$337,839,000, representing a significant increase of 82.91% over
approximately HK$184,704,000 of last year. The increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to the expansion in business scale of the
mineral concentrates trading with nickel cathodes. The Group’s gross
profit during the year under review was approximately HK$9,725,000
(2018: HK$6,452,000). The consolidated loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$88,810,000 (2018:
HK$111,784,000), representing a decrease of 20.55% over the same
period last year, which was primarily attributable to (a) the Group
received compensation income from the minority shareholder of the
Company’s indirectly-owned subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction
Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”) during the year under review in the
amount of approximately RMB30,097,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,510,000 (2018: Nil); (b) after assessment of the recoverability
related to the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
the Group recognised reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$442,000 (2018: impairment loss of HK$23,953,000); (c) the
Group reassessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s other
intangible assets and the Group only recognised an impairment loss
of approximately HK$6,570,000 (2018: HK$37,110,000); and (d)
notwithstanding (a) to (c), in view of the wide volatility of the price of
the nickel, the Group incurred fair value loss on nickel future contracts
in an amount of approximately HK$75,763,000 (2018: Nil) during the
year under review. Basic and diluted loss per share was HK cents 7.36
(2018: HK cents 10.61).

OPERATION REVIEW
Trading of mineral concentrates business

The trading of mineral concentrates business segment principally
operates in two main aspects: (1) Nickel Trading-mainly sourcing
mineral concentrates (branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) from Russia
and exporting them to the trading intermediates and end customers in
the PRC; and (2) Other Trading — sourcing mineral concentrates (mainly
gold, copper, zinc and lead concentrates) from Ecuador and Peru and
selling them to the customers in the PRC and Peru.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %
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Leveraging on the business relationship and background of the
management, the Group achieved to develop a strong sales network of
the Nickel Trading and to continue expanding its mineral concentrate
business scale by exploring the potential in nickel products. During the
year under review, the Group was able to trade an aggregate volume
of approximately of more than 2,700 tons (2018: more than 1,600
tons) of nickel, with revenue of approximately HK$287,589,000 (2018:
HK$145,832,000) being recognised by the Group. This revenue stream
enables the Group to strengthen its revenue base with diversification
into other mineral products in this business segment.

However, due to the fluctuations in the nickel market in the second half
of 2019, which was mainly attributable to the sudden announcement
of the Indonesian government to speed up ceasing the export of nickel
plates, there emerged serious imbalances in domestic and overseas
nickel prices, which led to a shrink of domestic demand in the PRC and
a drop in the selling prices of the nickel products. The profitability of the
Nickel Trading during the current year was affected.

In addition, the Group was able to continually open up its trading
pipelines by engaging in onshore trading of electrolytic copper business
in the PRC, generating revenue of approximately HK$13,975,000
during the year under review (2018: Nil).

On the other hand, in relation to the Other Trading, as the sole
sourcing agent in Ecuador no longer provided sourcing services to
the Group with the expiry of the sourcing agreement, Ecuador’s
mineral concentrate trading business has deteriorated in the year.
Meanwhile, the sourcing of mineral concentrates market in Peru is far
from satisfactory due to the continued keen competition in this region.
During the year under review, the Group was only able to recognise
revenue of approximately HK$16,584,000 (2018: HK$24,041,000) in
Other Trading. Having considered the difficulties to run the trading
business in Ecuador, the Group disposed of the Other Trading business
in Ecuador in November 2019, which generated a gain on disposal of
subsidiaries in the amount of approximately HK$3,320,000.

During the year under review, the business segment recognised a
net loss of approximately HK$2,281,000 (2018: HK$20,401,000),
representing a significant decrease of 88.82% compared to the same
period last year. This significant decrease in the net loss was mainly
due to the reversal of impairment loss on deposits recognised by the
Group during the year in an amount of approximately HK$162,000
(2018: impairment loss of HK$21,456,000).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Securities investments

Since August 2019, the Company has made phased investments
to purchase equity shares of a Hong Kong listed company engaged
in financial services. During the year under review, the Company
purchased a total of 4,970,000 shares in the listed company with
a total investment amount of approximately HK$19,435,000. The
Company held less than 5% of the issued share capital of the listed
company, with the equity investments being recognised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). As at 31 December
2019, the Company recognised a gain on financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$346,000.

Construction material business

Hunan Taiji, engaging in manufacture and sale of slag powder business
in the PRC, has been in suspension of production since August 2016
after its sole supplier served a written notice to suspend the supply
of the granulated steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) in
March 2016. There was no turnover generated since August 2016.
During the year under review, the Group recognised a segment loss of
approximately HK$24,166,000 (2018: HK$56,694,000), representing
a decrease of 57.37% compared to last year under review. For the
best interests of the Group, Hunan Taiji and its minority shareholder,
the Group continued to pursue on the negotiations with the minority
shareholder of Hunan Taiji on the possibility for the resumption of
Hunan Taiji’'s production and sought out any feasible solution from time
to time. In view of the sole supplier is a related party of the minority
shareholder of Hunan Taiji, the Group believes that the resumption
of the production of Hunan Taiji remains uncertain. In February 2019,
at the request of the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji, a notice of
response to action was served to Hunan Taiji from the Intermediate
People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province, the PRC (“Loudi
Intermediate Court”) requesting to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the
termination of the joint venture agreement of Hunan Taiji in 2021 due
to the prolonged disputes between the two joint venturers. In January
2020, the Loudi Intermediate Court ruled that the application submitted
for request for dissolution of Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of
Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement was rebutted. The minority
shareholder of Hunan Taiji lodged an appeal to Higher People’s Court
of Hunan Province.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %



EEENWR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

R-ZZT—hFRA BB EM BRAR ([HEBE
(EM)DHWEBTEERECEESHEZESE
Mz ERE((FRE]) Bt BEREZ VSR
REARAEEYNBA-_E—NFEF—A—HE_Z
—NEFENAZ+—HHHAHEESTR ZEEHA
K #30,097,0007T (18 & 7 %33,510,000# 7T) °
DEREE AP EIRT N EARER ([
EMHRAER D IREERBMEFHAEZHE - R
T-NEFE+A - HEEN ZEEIERETRLER
B KOFIRE2EMERBEETREZHRF M
AEBER-ZZE—NF+—AZ+ LB KEEE -

REEFERN  ZEEDIBERF I A 42,128,000
BT (ZZT—\4F : 657,000/87T) * IREEE D 2
8 4712,603,0007 7T (= Z — J\4F : 21,686,000/
TT) C WMEFRE B T£41.88% ° D EEE A FTR A
FEDEARAEENAFEANMER 2 L& H
A PTEL

HRAIEEZRANBRA R EERRREE
A Bt EREEER T -AF=AER
E-AKEREES HR_T_TEHSEEREE
Bo-@Eml AREKEEER _T-_—FRE
FERBZEEREBEREMKE -

NERERER
RERZBREWME

REBEFER RELEPELEEZAS K
A#) 54,511,000/ 70 (—F — 4 : 4,031,000
J0) R E—EREFEEIN11.91% - ;2 FA R
R EMEINTERG S A FE W E 463,000
BT (ZZ— \4F : 885,000/8 1) - NEEFEHIR
B AZZSEUNIER 2R EMEREEE B
EZ2HEWARATIEEAEBEES -

RUEBZMERRE

REBEFEERN  REHEWESR TMEYEEN
NEE RS S ¥EFEA5,022,0008 L (T — \F:
3,883,000 L) - HE® NZ_ZTE—NLF+=A
—t—H AEERWMETEFETMAHHE 2
Y BN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

In May 2019, Junefield (Building Material) Limited (“JBM”) received the
arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”) made by the China International
Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission, pursuant to which the
minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji is liable to pay the compensation
for the supply shortfall for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
August 2016 amounting to approximately RMB30,097,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$33,510,000) to the Group. An application
for requesting withdrawal of the Arbitral Award with the Fourth
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing Intermediate
Court”) was filed. In October 2019, JBM received the notice from
the Beijing Intermediate Court to reject the application lodged for
requesting withdrawal of the Arbitral Award and the Group received the
compensation on 29 November 2019.

Coal mining business

During the year under review, this business segment recorded revenue
of approximately HK$2,128,000 (2018: HK$657,000) and a segment
loss of approximately HK$12,603,000 (2018: HK$21,686,000),
representing a decrease of 41.88% as compared to the same period
last year. The decrease in the segment loss was primarily attributable
to the decrease in the operating expenses recognised by the Group
during the year.

Since the revenue generated is unable to support its operating costs
and the production costs, all the coal mines were under suspension
since March 2019, the Group expects that it will continue to incur loss
in 2020. Nevertheless, the Group will consider to resume production in
2021.

Property investment and development
Investment properties in Beijing

During the year under review, the rental income from property
leasing in Beijing, the PRC was approximately HK$4,511,000 (2018:
HK$4,031,000), representing an increase of 11.91% compared to last
year under review. These investment properties in Beijing also recorded
fair value gains of approximately HK$63,000 (2018: HK$885,000)
in respect of the revaluation. The Group expects these investment
properties in Beijing currently held on hand will keep generating a stable
rental income stream and capture potential appreciation.

Property development in Peru

During the year under review, thanks to the sale of the remaining two
property units in Peru, the Group recorded turnover of approximately
HK$5,022,000 (2018: HK$3,883,000). After the sale, the Group did not
hold any property units available for sale in Peru as at 31 December
2019.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The loss for the year under review attributable to the segment of
property investment and development amounted to approximately
HK$1,487,000, compared to loss of approximately HK$9,171,000 for
the year of 2018.

Other investment in nickel futures

The Group commenced to invest in nickel future contracts in the PRC
in March 2019. In view of the wide volatility of the price of the nickel,
the Group incurred fair value loss on nickel future contracts in an
amount of approximately HK$75,763,000 (2018: Nil) during the year
under review.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total equity amounted
to approximately HK$178,967,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$259,867,000), representing a decrease of 31.13% compared
with that as at 31 December 2018. The Group’s current ratio as at 31
December 2019 was 1.06 (31 December 2018: 1.61). The Group’s
gearing ratio, expressed as a ratio of total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings to total assets as at 31 December 2019, was 0.10 (31
December 2018: 0.09).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had secured bank loan, secured other loan
and unsecured other loan amounting to approximately HK$2,465,000
(81 December 2018: HK$6,280,000); HK$25,000,000 (31 December
2018: HK$25,000,000) and HK$5,595,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$5,701,000), respectively. The secured bank loan is denominated
in US$, interest-bearing at an annual rate of London Interbank Offered
Rate plus 6.4% per annum and will expire in August 2020. The
secured other loan is denominated in HKS, interest-bearing at 8% per
annum and after extension, the repayment date has been extended to
January 2021. The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB and
interest-bearing at 9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
totaled approximately HK$35,721,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$100,822,000), which were mainly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB
and Soles.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had aggregate banking and other
facilities of approximately HK$41,097,000 (2018: HK$35,948,000)
and had unutilised banking and other facilities of approximately
HK$13,632,000 (2018: HK$4,668,000) available for drawdown.

Taking the above into account, the management is confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to settle its loan as they fall due
and finance its daily operational and capital expenditures. However, the
Group will remain cautious in its liquidity management.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there has been no change in the issued
share capital of the Company and the Company’s number of issued
ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 was 1,206,249,251.

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the year under review, Topshine Reward Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Lukewarm Gold Limited (“Lukewarm”). Lukewarm is
an investment holding company and holds 100% issued share capital
of Like Top Corporation Limited, which is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and principally engaged in the business of trading
of mineral concentrates. Details of the disposal are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2019.

Apart from the above, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group during the year under review.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 December 2018: Nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach with respect
to treasury and funding policies, with a focus on risk management
and transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of
the Group. During the year under review, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB, US$ and Soles. The
management did not consider that the Group is significantly exposed
to any foreign currency risk. The Group has not adopted any hedging
policy or entered into any currency derivative products. However, the
management will continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange
exposure and will consider adopting certain hedging measures against
the currency risk when necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and investment properties with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$42,370,000 (2018: HK$44,178,000) and
HK$69,643,000 (2018: HK$39,065,000) respectively have been
pledged to banks and other lender to secure bank and loan facilities.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the pledged
investment properties included an amount of RMB27,260,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$30,502,000) (2018: nil) relating to
security for the repayment obligations of a connected person of the
Company in the partial loan principal amount of RMB8,000,000 and
the related interest thereon, which has been fully indemnified by the
connected person. Details of the continuing connected transaction are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 9 January 2020
and 10 February 2020.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 127 employees in total as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
180) mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Peru. The number of workers
employed by the Group varies from time to time depending on the
industry need and they are remunerated under the employment terms
which are based on industry practice. The Group implemented its
remuneration policy and discretionary bonus based on the performance
of the Group and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as
social and medical insurance and pensions to ensure competitiveness.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

Details of outstanding litigation are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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proceeds in the amount of approximately HK$14.8 million originally intended
for repayment of bank loans of the Group were wholly re-allocated for securing
investment opportunities, including trading of nickel futures.

In view of shortage of funds for general corporate purposes and limited
opportunities for securities investment business, an approximate amount of
HK$16.5 million originally intended for securities investment business has been
utilized for other investment opportunities and general working capital purposes in
the approximate amount of HK$12.9 million and HK$3.6 million, respectively.

The unutilized amount of the net proceeds amounted to approximately HK$14.4
million as at 31 December 2019. The Company intends to fully utilize such
remaining net proceeds by the end of 2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to foster its cooperation with suppliers and
is committed to increasing the scale of major mineral trades and
improving the quality of investments so as to consolidate our core
business; at the same time, it will continue to identify investment and
business development opportunities cautiously and carefully and make
good use of funds to expand its business scope in a timely manner in
pursuit of the sustainable development of its business and to broaden
the Company’s stable source of income and profits and to increase
shareholder returns.

Looking into the future, the Board believes that, leveraging on the
experience and resources of the Group’s controlling shareholders and
adhering to the principle of investing in value, the Board will further
cautiously and carefully focus on and develop the Group’s investments
and business development opportunities at home and abroad. In line
with the Group’s investment strategy and leveraging on the experience
and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders, the management
is committed to grasping and creating business opportunities in the
property investment and development, trading business and securities
and financial investments with a view to bringing long-term and
substantial returns to shareholders and the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Kwan, aged 62, has been the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Fu is currently
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macrolink
Holding Co., Ltd (“Macrolink”). Mr. Fu is a senior economist and has
over 30 years of experience in corporate management and business
strategy planning. Mr. Fu served as a Commissioner of Public
Security in Liling City, Hunan Province, China, the Deputy Secretary
of the Commune Party Committee, the Secretary of the Township
Party Committee, the Deputy Director of the Economic and Trade
Commission of Liling City, a director of the Municipal Foreign Trade
Bureau, the deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group, and the deputy leader of Social and Education
Work Team of the Provincial Party Committee in Liuyang City, etc.
Also, Mr. Fu was appointed as the executive director and a member
of Standing Committee of the China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (2B T8 ), and a director of Political Affairs Committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& B T BBt 2 B 5%
BZB8€), a member of Advisory Committee of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2B T ZHZ E <) and the vice
president of the 10th China Federation of Industry and Commerce (&
Bl Tr5H%) . Mr. Fu worked as the vice chairman of the 11th China Civil
Chamber of Commerce (FERE A E), and was a member of the
11th, 12th and 13th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, and the president of the Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Fu was appointed as the vice chairman of
the board of directors of Central South University and Beijing Foreign
Studies University. He has been honored as “the National Outstanding
Socialist Builder”, “the China’s Top Ten Outstanding Entrepreneurs”,
“China’s Economic Figures of the Year”, “the Outstanding
Entrepreneurs of Private Enterprise in 40 years of reform and opening
up of China” and “the New China’s Top Hundred Outstanding Hunan
Figures in 70 years” (T Bt +EAFHZHMAWE). Mr. Fu
is currently an executive director of Macrolink Culturaltainment
Development Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited, a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 46, has been the executive Director of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently the senior vice president of Macrolink and the chief controller
of the integrated management department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang has
more than 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
operation and business management. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the general
manager of the Company and also acts as directors of two subsidiaries
of the Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange), the Vice President of Keda Clean Energy
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an
executive director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co. Ltd
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. Zhang Bishu, aged 50, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president and chief accountant of Macrolink, and the chairman of
Macrolink Holding Group Financial Limited Liability Company (37 = B #7°
P 6= [ 81 76 5 IR & (L 22 =]). Before joining Macrolink, Mr. Zhang served
in state-owned enterprises and PRC government bureau. Mr. Zhang
joined Macrolink in October 2004 and was employed as the deputy
financial officer of Macrolink, the chairman of Macrolink Weihung Food
Company Ltd. (FrZEEESREmER AR, a director and general
manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings Co., Ltd. ({E& th 2 =R A R
A 7])and the chief financial officer and a director of the investment
department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang is also a certified accountant and
registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is also an executive director
of Dongyue Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd.

In addition, Mr. Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of
Liaoning Chengda Co., Ltd. (FE 2 A7 B R 2 7)) (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Sichuan Hongda Co., Ltd. (\9)I| %=
ERM AR R R (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange), Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. and
Daxinganling Rural Commercial Bank.

Ms. Liu Jing, aged 44, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Ms. Liu is currently the senior vice
president of Macrolink, and the president of the investment department
of Macrolink. Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in 1998. Since then, Ms. Liu
has worked in winery, real estate and gas companies under Macrolink.
Ms. Liu also served as the chief financial director of overseas finance
department of Macrolink, the chairman and the general manager of
Changshi Investment Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu is currently an executive
director of Shandong Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). In 1998, Ms. Liu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Xiangtan University in
Hunan province. Ms. Liu is also a certified accountant in the PRC and
acts as a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yeuk, aged 61, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Chan is an economist and the
current director of Macrolink and Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chan started working in 1976 and worked as a worker
and a project budgetary staff. In 1987, Mr. Chan obtained a degree
from the Business Administration Department of Beijing Institute of
Chemical Technology. After graduation, Mr. Chan worked in a company
under San Xiang Group in Guam, the United States of America serving
as the deputy manager, and later served as the deputy director and
the director of sales department of Hunan branch of China Investment
Bank. Mr. Chan joined Macrolink in 1993, and served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the vice president, and the executive director
of Macrolink.
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Mr. Zhou Jianren, aged 61, has been an executive Director of the
Company since July 2014. Mr. Zhou is the elder brother of Mr. Zhou
Chu Jian He, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company
until 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhou has more than 30 years of experience
in international trading. Mr. Zhou also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, aged 64, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee; and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
Australia ® New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of OCI International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Dragonite International Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
28 April 2010 to 7 May 2018. Mr. Lam currently is a partner of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited and was head of department in
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited and also the
proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA. Mr. Lam was also the director and
currently is the shareholder and Consultant of Jonten Hopkins & Aoba
Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Arts (Economics) from the
University of Manchester, the United Kingdom.

Mr. Cao Kuangyu, aged 69, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2013 and is a member of
each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Hunan University and a Master Degree in Financial Management from
the University of London. Mr. Cao has over 30 years of experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Cao worked in the Bank of China, Hunan
branch from 1981 to 1996 and his last position was the deputy general
manager of the branch. In 1996, Mr. Cao was transferred to the
Singapore branch of Bank of China as deputy general manager until
1999. Mr. Cao also worked in Citic Bank, Shenzhen branch from 1999
to 2003 and his last position was the president of the branch. Mr. Cao
came to Hong Kong in 2003 when Mr. Cao worked as managing
director, head of global investment banking division of BOCI Asia
Limited until 2007.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director of Dongwu
Cement International Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
and Dingyi Group Investment Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cao served as an independent
non-executive director of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (resigned in
September 2017), which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since March 2013 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung also holds two Masters Degrees
respectively in Public Administration and in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has worked in various government
departments for 12 years, and has over 20 years in the practice of
company law and civil litigation matters. Currently Mr. Cheung is the
senior partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
Mr. Cheung and his law firm have been the legal advisors of a number
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, asset fund management
firms and non-profit making organizations and charities in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kwok Choi, aged 48, has been the company secretary
and the financial controller of the Company since September 2018.
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in accounting. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and listed company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked in an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong, and was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for various listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Reporting Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, trading
of mineral concentrates and securities investment. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise of property
investment and development, manufacturing and sale of construction
materials, securities investment, trading of mineral concentrates,
coal mining and others, details of which are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Year,
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section from pages 8 to 16 of
this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a good standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
employees, and contributes to the community to meet the corporate
and business objectives of the Group. The Group also implemented
energy saving practices in offices where applicable.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time
to time and will consider taking more effective and efficient measures
and practices in the operations. The environmental policies and
performance of the Group are discussed in more detail in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group, such as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group intends to reward and recognise performing employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package and to promote career
development and provide opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. The Group encourages employees participation of
external seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates
on areas of industrial, legal, compliance, financial accounting and
tax knowledge. The Group also encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars, updates on regulatory
requirements and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good and long-term
relationships with our customers and suppliers to ensure efficient
delivery of products and services and smooth procurement process
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance to protect the interests of
shareholders and the importance of having communication with
them from time to time through annual general meetings, corporate
communications, interim and annual reports as well as results
announcements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the Reporting Year, the Board identified the principal risks which
are likely to affect the Group’s business operations including volatility
and uncertainty in market conditions, changing in industry standards,
industry competition and financial risks in the ordinary course of
business, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. It
is essential that the Group is able to respond in a timely manner to
such changes which may adversely affect the Group’s businesses and
financial results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and effectively
as possible. The Board delegates some of its responsibility of risk
management to various operational departments. Further reviews are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
Management and Internal Control” on pages 65 and 66 of the Annual
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 77 of this Annual
Report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group for the Reporting Year
(2018: Nil).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FEEFRHED MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

REBEEEN NEFRAAEPEEZWASL  In the year under review, revenue generated from the Group’s five

NEBAEFEBPEEREID32% R AXKFEESE  largest customers in aggregate accounted for 72.32% of the total

ZUWAEEF23.78% - NEE R T AMEERE{ELE  revenue for the year and revenue generated from the largest customer

CIEREEMAEERARNEE 2 BB EE7.48% A included therein accounted for 23.78%. Purchases from the Group’s

SAEEREL 2 REBNEF0.91% o five largest suppliers accounted for 97.48% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 90.91%.

R|EFE - AU EMEWET40@) V) AFTHEFE  Save as disclosed in note 40(a)(v) to the consolidated financial

Eo TE){,%QI\EHZK’A RZEERRE (T EAL  statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of their

RIEEEFEMBEA RN T EITIRAS%IL 2~ associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the

{E{TH&%E{‘K%ﬁK%}E LEtEEHEAETME  drectors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)

MIERS o had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the Reporting Year.

Bz 7 SHARE CAPITAL

RBEFEER AQTZEBTIRALEEME  There has been no change in the issued share capital of the Company
EI/S during the Reporting Year.

e RESERVES

RBEEE - AARIRAEEFHEZS 251555 Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
HRGAUTIERERM 45 MR AR E K - during the Reporting Year are set out in note 45 to the consolidated

financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

9 R 28 DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

RZE—-—HAEFE+-_A=+—H HBEBEE At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for

—NWN\—FRalk (KES]) 2 EXEE - &2 "] distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with the

AR F IS 2~ B 4956,362,0005 7T (A =Z  provision of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),

—N\EFE+=-A=+—8 100,131,000 7T) ° amounted to approximately HK$6,362,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$100,131,000).

BRBEE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

AANRIZ ArlMBlskARELADIWEBLEEER  There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
B R ERRQNRBIZLL AR EREZEEFHIK  Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
3 o offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the Reporting Year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 204 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Jian

Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Mr. Zhou Jianren,
Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert and Mr. Cao Kuangyu will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages
17 to 20 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensations). Details of directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 28 and 29 of this Annual Report and notes
30 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no director of the
Company or any entity connected with the director of the Company
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries
was a party during the year under review.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 % 3
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 166, every director, officer and
auditors shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained by him
as a director, auditors or officer of the Company about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transaction” on pages 28 and 29 of this
Annual Report, the related party transactions set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements did not either fall within the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”, or
treated as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Provision of Mortgages

On 8 November 2019, Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co., Ltd.
(“Junefield Property Agency”) (EB(ItR)EHELLBR AT, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
mortgages agreements (the “Mortgage Agreements”) (as supplemented
and amended by the supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”)) with a bank, pursuant to which Junefield Property Agnecy
pledged certain investment properties in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) held by Junefield Property Agency in favour of the bank
as security for the repayment obligations of Jinzhou Rongxin Trading
Company Limited (the “Connected Borrower”) ($8MZEm@mE AR A
A]) in the partial loan principal amount of RMB8 million and the related
interests thereon. On the same date, Junefield Property Agency and
the Connected Borrower also entered into an indemnity agreement (the
“Indemnity Agreement”), pursuant to which the Connected Borrower
agreed to pay Junefield Property Agency, a one-time handling charge
of RMB120,000, being 1.5% of the partial loan principal amount of
RMB8 million, and to fully indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s
obligations under the Mortgage Agreements (as supplemented and
amended by the Supplemental Agreement).

As the registered capital of the Connected Borrower is ultimately and
solely owned by Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, who is a former executive
director and a former substantial shareholder of the Company, and the
younger brother of Mr. Zhou Jianren, a current executive director of
the Company, the Connected Borrower is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Mortgage Agreements, the
Supplemental Agreement and the Indemnity Agreement is to enable
the Group to have a readily available facility for providing sufficient
financial resources to it in the PRC without involving further negotiation
and lengthy procedures with financial institutions. Other details of the
agreements, including the reasons and the benefits of provision of
mortgages, are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 9
January 2020 and 10 February 2020.
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The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of mortgages
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB8,217,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,149,000) and RMB120,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$136,000), respectively.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirmed that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transaction entered into by the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors of the Company have issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITION - ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.10
EACH OF THE COMPANY

HERRATERT

BARHBEA

B 7tk

Approximate

Percentage

of the

B A= ZEER HREE Company’s

EEHE Personal Corporate Total issued share

Name of directors interest interest interests capital®

BEEE 4,500,000 870,145,473 874,645,473 72.51%
Mr. Fu Kwan (Btat1)
(Note 1)

PR B % A 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Wtat1 - 52870,145,473 MR YR EM EEBR A GFAE -
TEBRESEARAFAEBEUEXEREARARERYN
42.05% c BEREBRBELEXRETRAR D EHITR
R2Z70%Ex - At - REEFEHRBAERD - BExLAE
118 A 1A870,145,47308 IR D R HE B #E2S ©

Witz : RZZ—AFE+ZA=+—8 ARRIZEETRAEAE
1,206,249,251 f& A% 17 °

BREXFHBEEEN RZE-AF+_A=+—
B AARREZRTETRAERA  HEER
HMARBEZTREIZTBRABRARAREME
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Note 1: These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned
as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited. Mr. Fu
Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment Company
Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed to be interested in the 870,145,473
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,206,249,251 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as is
known to the directors and chief executives of the Company, no
other directors and chief executives of the Company had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register as required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (LONG POSITION)

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than directors or chief executives of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LR NN
EBRITRAN
BRBEDL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued

share capital

BFERGHE
Number of
shares held

MEMSEARAG (M)
Macrolink Group Limited (Note)

BUEBEXRREBRRR (ML)
Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited (Note)

Brat - %870,145 473 B A EBMEEFRAFNA

HERREARANMEYRERAARRARED
42.05% - BB A LA E L ERRAGRANDHITR
A270%M % - Bl REHRBEEOTE - HEW
SEARAT BYHERAARARRMEELHE
BB 2 B A IR 2 7 BT 2870,145, 47315
o 5 25 -

BEXFREEN R-T-AE+-A=+—
B BRARTMEELBBITHMABLL - TEA
AT RAD TR RABRIIRAD B AR A R
5% 1 DI SEXVED B2 R B35 MABE RIR B %
B 5052 601 533614 B4R A8 A B AR 17 2 B
ZHREAR -
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BEEEHEAR
Directly beneficially owned

REAE R
Interest in a controlled corporation

870,145,473 72.14%

870,145,473 72.14%

Note:  These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned

as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited.
Mr. Fu Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, each of Macrolink Group Limited, Truly Industry
Investment Company Limited and Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed or taken to be interested
in the 870,145,473 Shares which are owned by Macrolink Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEBARGOGBES ZER DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

RAREEENEMER - FRESHEEEAY At no time during the Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by

BBk + )\ B A N F o B R F] - A& means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company

BANRIRM S EEFMERTZ » MKEEIMEITE  granted to any director or their respective spouse or children under

FRIEZERET o AARISKEAMIERATERNEL age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the

B EET ML BFEES A EE M EMAEA Company, or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to

B RS E E iR o any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

EENBRER2ER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

B FTRENES10E  BE-FE—AE+=-F Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31

=t+—HIFE UWTAQRBEZESEHRAENENE  December 2019, the following director of the Company was considered

B 2B EEEESE SR EE S 2 LT to have interests in the following businesses which competed or were

¥BHEEER - likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

HELA  RELAE FMELELE B L+ KB Each of Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing

RBEX(KBAIABES)) SB8 AHERIENA and Mr. Chan Yeuk (collectively the “Relevant Directors”) is either the

BAFIRAMBAT S AEAESHEEE Rz beneficial owner or the director and/or senior management of a number

ETRAR(#ZERT ) 2EXRmBEEAFKEE R, of companies (the “Companies”) in which either Macrolink Holding

FEIREIBEBALE - ZERNTMENEBREEWE  Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries or the Relevant Directors have beneficial

BERER BHEERERBEES - interests. The businesses engaged by the Companies include property
investment and development, securities investment and trading of
mineral concentrates.

Pl EBEZERARKEENER  MzSE A aEE  The above-mentioned businesses are operated and managed by the

RATEES o AN EES BTN EE T X Companies with independent management and administration. In

ZERENTNESTE o FIt c AEBEKESHERKE  addition, the Board is independent of the boards of the Companies

BRENBIYIN FMBFER - carrying on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of the competing
businesses mentioned above.

<

R

BEHZARERE SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BIEAHEAATAMAEE 2B LA AT ESE Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

Fran - AARESREE - B EMHRAEE - 27 within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the date of

2R BEITRAEFZ DS ARALTHEEA - this Annual Report, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

5 BM BUER EMOLUMENT POLICY

EEZHFWNEALRITFMEEELEEARALQA Z& The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the

EE CFAARBR HAIBALLEMIBEHEEE Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to

2o BRBET AR BEARBEFGALTE  the Company’s operating results, individual performance and/or

TIEAT IR G 8EE) - comparable market statistics. As an incentive for the employees,
bonuses and cash awards may also be given to employees based on
individual performance evaluation.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on pages
55 to 68 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2020

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (“Macrolink” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”, or
“We” and “Us”) is pleased to publish its fourth environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”) summarising the management
approaches, practices and performance in supporting sustainable
development of its business operation.

Reporting Standard

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”), as well as
adhering to the ESG reporting principles of materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency.

Scope of the Report

The scope of the Report' focuses on the Group’s mineral concentrates
trading business, which is principally operates in Nickel trading
(branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) and non-ferrous metals trading,
and coal mining business in Peru. Unless otherwise specified, it
covers our ESG performance during the period of 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”, “2019”). Same as last
year, the Group’s manufacture and sales of the construction materials
business segment is still under suspension since the sole supplier
continue to suspend the supply of granulated steel slag for production.

OUR ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

We have implemented a top-down management approach within the
Group for ESG Management. The board of directors (the “Board”)
is responsible for the determination of the Group’s ESG strategy,
assessing the ESG risks and opportunities as well as the oversight
of the Group’s overall ESG performance, including environmental
management issues, labour practices and other ESG aspects. An
internal ESG taskforce team has also been set up to support the
execution of ESG management, to collect relevant ESG data and to
compile the ESG report. The Board has reviewed and approved the
ESG report in March 2020 to ensure all material issues and impacts on
sustainable development are fairly presented.

! The trading of mineral concentrates business is included in the scope of 2019 ESG
reporting, which is considered as the core business segment in the coming years in
term of revenue contribution and is significant to the Group’s business.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We attach great importance to communicate with our stakeholders as
this exercise can deepen our understanding of their needs, concerns
and expectations relevant to our business operation for formulating
the ESG strategies and identifying improvement opportunities in ESG
management. We have maintained regular communications with our
major stakeholders through various channels, which are indicated in the
table below:

B65E BERE
Stakeholders Communication channels
[ o NEIHUL

Shareholders

Employees

EF

Customers

KRB

Business partners

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

s REKXE

e RAIMERRDE

o EiIRE

e Company website

e General meetings

e Corporate reports and announcements
e |nspection on site

e EMRERM

s BIRKEH

o FEREMME

o BT

s BBREILED

e Emails and suggestion box

e Employee representatives meeting
e Annual performance review

e Employee training

e Team building activities

o RPERRBRKF

s BFIRFER

o BPERIFH

e Customer feedback and complaints
e Customer service hotline

e Customer visit

s TBAEERER

s HEEES2HN

o IREENIRR

o IR

e [awful actions and communications
e On-going direct engagement

e Procurement and tendering

e Inspection on site

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B0 E
Stakeholders

BERE

Communication channels

BER

Environment

BN EEERE

Government and regulatory authorities

HE
Community

e

Media

o HEMBRIBEE HFIEBR

e Communication with local environmental authority/department

o THIRXZEH

o MEEWUMTHER

e WIE ARGk R

e Regular submission of information

e Regular communication with regulatory authorities
e Forum, seminar and conference

o HMEEITAEBREME
e Communication meeting with the community

« AT

o HEEEHN

e Company website
e Media enquiry

RPWRE
AEBBNINRERELAFEEE - BRERR
MBREE  BMFIEEE B2 HEEHIEE -
NEREEETESNEREFELERD L
R ER R o RIREHEAN - RADER
BETHARWERARESNHEBREEE
K480 (B120D.S. 003-2017- MINAM (H #t & & 7
ETRBREENZERERIEAIE) AKD.L
1278 (L AEEEREEYEIRER)) » R ER
EAMNERERRFEEEZNTERMEZR -
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group pays efforts in environmental conservation and
sustainability. To promote environmentally-friendly and clean
production, we have policies in place with various control measures
to strictly manage the resources consumption and emissions at our
mine site in order to reduce the carbon footprint in our operation.
During the Reporting Period, we have strictly complied with relevant
environmental laws and regulations (e.g. D.S. 003-2017- MINAM
approves the standards of environmental quality (ECA) for the air and
establish complementary provisions, D.L. 1278 that approves the Law
of Solid Wastes Management etc) applicable to coal mining business in
Peru and we were not aware of any non-compliance case for material
violation of environmental laws.
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Emission

Due to the business nature of mineral concentrates trading, we mainly
conduct our business activities confined in office. Thus, the emission is
derived from the GHG emission from the purchased electricity in office
as well as limited solid office waste production in daily office operation.
We have adopted general green office practices to avoid and reduce
the waste generation. We review the usage of office materials to avoid
overstock. The recyclables, such as plastics, wastepaper and toners,
are properly separated and consigned to service provider and property
management company for further handling. In addition, we place paper
collection bins near the area of photocopiers and printing room in office
for reusing the single-sided printed paper.

The major sources of air pollutants in mine site come from the fuel
combustion of machinery equipment and
vehicles, as well as the dust generated
from the production process, including the
soil stripping, rocks cutting and breaking,
and coal loading and unloading. To reduce
the environmental impact due to the air
emission, we switch off the idling of the
machinery equipment and vehicles when
they are stationary or not in use and carry
out routine maintenance to ensure they are functioned in optimum level.
We set the speed limit for vehicle at mine and water the access of the
installations, the interior of the mine pit and the storage areas of coal
stocks to reduce the dust.

The main types of non-hazardous waste generated in the coal mining
operation are the rocks and stone coming from the surface in the
mine pit and the limited amount of domestic waste. The collected
rocks and stones are recycled and reused for the rehabilitation of the
access and the construction of new access, while the domestic waste
is transported to the municipal solid waste deposit for further handling.
The Group does not have significant impact on the environment from
hazardous waste due to minimal amount of waste production.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission of the coal mine in Peru is
mainly derived from the fugitive emission during the coal mining and
the energy consumption of the coal mine operation. Scope 1 GHG
emission is the direct emissions from the stationary fuel combustion of
machinery equipment onsite, mobile fuel combustion of vehicles and
fugitive emission of methane in coal mine production. Scope 2 GHG
emission is the indirect emission from the consumption of purchased
electricity in the production process. In order to minimise the carbon
footprint, we have implemented GHG reduction strategy, especially for
material procurement, business travel, energy conservation, and water
conservation. In 2019, our coal mines in Peru were produced by using
mainly locally available raw materials. We also limit the air conditioning
temperature set in the office to save electricity and encourages video
and conference calls to reduce unnecessary travels.

The GHG emission of the Group’s mineral concentrates trading

7% REHEREHNRTRX business and coal mine business in Peru during the Reporting Period is
shown in the below table:
By —E-hEF
Unit 2019
BE R
GHG Emission
HET: EREEAERBHEN W_ftiEE 76.48
Scope 1: Direct Energy GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(Htcozeﬂ)
[E2 : geREEAERBHEW M —StiRES 6.22
Scope 2 Indirect Energy GHG emissions tCO,e
BEREEHEE MR EE 82.70
Total GHG emission tCO,e
BERBRE W_R{eRESE/FHR 0.0008
M@ biRE S DR E 0.08

GHG intensity

tCO,e / square feet
tCO,e / tonne of raw coal

f R ERBHMRETINSEEHNRELTE

The above greenhouse gas emissions are defined and calculated according to the following reference:
s BMABRRERIZSHEEMIEBMERBE LT

HERERBHMMOES

e UNEP Guidelines for Calculating Greenhouse Gas Emissions for Businesses and Non-Commercial Organizations

NS R EE——-1

AEREEBEERTE
e GHG Protocol

o BIFRAEIRE(EA) © CO, Emissions from Fuel Combustion (WABERA KL 2 — G L BRBERD 8 E M - http://www.iea.org * ==

——f

¢ International Energy Agency (IEA), highlights version of CO, Emissions from Fuel Combustion, http://www.iea.org, 2011

e 2006FIPCCEIZR AERIE/SEIER

e 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories
o BEAZFT [WAIEBIRE @ RERAWME "W REWERERIEEREERES
e HKEX, “How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
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Use of Resources

The Group recognises that environmental
sustainability is closely linked with the
responsible use of resources and hence
we continually make efforts to reduce the
energy consumption and improve water
and materials efficiency.

In our mineral concentrates trading
business, the Group has set up internal
guidelines and taken certain measures
to reduce the electricity use. For instance, switching off electrical
appliances (e.g. computer, printer, photocopier and lighting) in the
office when they are not in use, maintaining the temperature of air
conditioning in the office at 24-26 degree Celsius to save energy and
opting for the electrical appliances with Energy Efficiency label in order
to cut down power consumption.

In order to reduce paper consumption, the Group has adopted
computerised information system for document filing and management,
as well as communicating and disseminating information through
electronic means (e.g. email, e-newsletter and intranet) to avoid
document printing. We also collect the single-sided printing used
paper in office and reuse for drafting and printing to reduce paper
consumption.

The main types of energy consumption in coal mine production
are diesel and the purchased electricity. Diesel is consumed by the
operation of mining machinery and mobile vehicles. Electricity is
consumed in the electrical equipment and daily office operation at mine
site. To increase the energy efficiency, we opt for the energy-efficient
electrical and mechanical equipment in our office area and mine site,
as well as carrying out regular maintenance and commissioning of the
equipment.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Fresh water is the precious resources that we conserve. The use
of water in mine site is mainly for dust suppression, lowering the
temperature inside the drills and the daily domestic use by employees.
We attached water saving signs at all employees’ bathroom faucets
and sinks to remind employees to wisely consume the water. The
Group did not face any issue in water sourcing during the Reporting
Period due to the direct source of river water used in mine site.

Wood is another type of materials we utilise for tunnels support in mine
site. About 90% of the woods used in the coal mine are recycled and
reused to reduce the consumption and waste of resources. Unlike the
manufacturing industry, there is no packaging material consumption in
coal mine operation.

B 4677 TR
Electricity: 4,677 kWh

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

To minimise the environmental impacts of coal mining production
including soil erosion, biodiversity and geological environment
and potential underground water pollution where we operate, our
production management team maintains regular inspections and
assessment reviews to ensure the production process complies with
the relevant operational specifications and requirements.

OUR EMPLOYEES
Employment and Labour Standards

The Group acknowledges our employees are the most valued assets
in achieving our sustainable business development. The Group has a
series of employment policies related to remuneration and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest days, compensation
and employee welfares and benefits in place, and has established an
effective system in human resources management with an objective
to create a safe, motivated and inclusive working environment for all
employees.
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In order to enable employees to shoulder their family responsibility,
both female and male employees of the Group are entitled to marriage
leave, maternity leave and paternity leave, in addition to statutory
holidays. The Group also sets standard working hours in maximum
of eight hours per day and provides employees with social security,
medical insurance and retirement scheme in accordance with the
relevant local labour laws and regulations such as Cap 57 Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, and TUO del
D. Leg. 728 - Ley de Productividad y Competitividad Laboral (Work
Ministry law of productivity and competitiveness).

Equal Recruitment and Promotion Policy
RS RIETIEABER

Compensation Policy
THEBER

Remuneration and Allowance Policy
HiH R R RSEER

Dismissal and Retirement Policy
fRERIRIREER

Anti-discrimination Policy
RIAREER

Diversity Policy
RESTIEER

Employee Welfares and Benefits Policy
BTEFBER

We strive to bring together talents from different geographic locations,
backgrounds and ethnics, creating a diversified platform in which
human resources can be turned to best account, and looking for
high calibre individuals with the right talent and attitude to join us.
Adhering to the principles of justice, fairness and openness in the whole
employment process - from recruitment to remuneration, promotion
and training, we merely make decision based on the qualification,
experience, individual competence and performance of each candidate,
without discrimination against on the ground of gender, age, religion,
marital status, ethnic or other factors unrelated to work duties.
Employees are only dismissed by the Group with fair reasons such as
redundancy and poor performance and compensation will be granted in
accordance with the legislative requirements under the laws.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Employee composition
by gender
mIERE S E TAEMK

1
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B Male
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B Female
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Employee composition by
geographical region

mimE o8 THAK

The Group respects and protects the human rights. We have strictly
complied with the relevant local Labour Laws and prohibited any
employment of child labour aged under 18 or forced labour in the
operation of our trading of mineral concentrates business and coal
mining business. During the recruitment process, the candidates
require to submit the identity documents such as identity cards and
passports and the job reference documents for our record to ensure
their age and job eligibility meet the requirements under the laws and
regulations. Meanwhile, all the employment contact is voluntarily signed
by the employees and they are free to leave their existing position.

There were no cases of prosecution for breach of relevant Hong Kong
and Peruvian labour laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

Employee Profile

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 127 full-time employees,
consisting of 2 employees in Hong Kong and 7 employees in Peru
respectively within the reporting scope. The breakdown of employee
profile is shown in the charts below:

Employee composition by age
REWRENHETHAX

0
0%

2
22%

[l Hong Kong [l Peru Ml Age 18-30 M Age 31-45
BB WE 18Z305% 315455
[ Age 46-60 [l Over 60
46 £ 605, 60m% A 1=
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Health and Safety

Due to the business nature of mineral concentrates trading, our
business operation mainly housed in office and thus no significant
occupational health and safety hazards are anticipated. Nevertheless,
maintaining a safe and healthy environment at work is our top priority.
We strengthen the good housekeeping in the office areas and raise
the safety awareness of our employees on the use of display screen
equipment, manual handling and the fire safety as our approaches to
safeguard workplace safety.

In our coal mining business, we have established an occupational
health and safety management (“OHS”) system with various safety
measures to safeguard the workplace as well as complying with
relevant laws and regulations for coal mining in Peru (e.g. Regulations
of Security and Safety Occupation in Mining).

Since the coal mining operation is mainly carried out in underground,
the stability of slope, collapse, landslide, material lifting, fire and
explosion are the key identified safety risks in the operation. The mine
site has been built in accordance with the specific design specification
and building requirements under the laws and regulations. The higher
slope is constructed at the entrance of the underground tunnel to
prevent the flooding at mine site during rainy seasons. We also built
trenches around the slope for directing the surface run-off to prevent
seepage at mine site. Fire safety equipment (e.g. fire extinguishers)
is located at designated area along the gallery of mine site in case
the mine of flammable coal. We also conduct regular on-site safety
inspections, which are led by our mine management team and
mechanical engineers, on the slope safety, coal mine structure support
and channels and mechanical equipment used at mine site to ensure
the safety measures are properly implemented and the safety hazards
are appropriately addressed by carrying out corrective actions at the
earlier stage to avoid and mitigate the potential safety risks posed to
the mine workers.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Increasing the employee awareness of the coal mining safety operation
is critical to workplace safety. The Group pays extra attention to the
OHS training and offers various training programmes for employees,
including the awareness training of safety supervision, training
courses in first aids and handling of explosives and related materials
and crisis management training in response to earthquakes, fires
and rescues. We also provide safety briefing to the employees for
reminding the key safety issues before starting their daily work and
conduct onsite emergency drills to ensure rapid response in the event
of an emergency. On the other hands, we provide necessary personal
protective equipment, which is conformed with the local standards,
to the employees and regulate all the employees must wear personal
protective equipment before entering the mine site. First aid kits and
medical equipment are also installed in the workplace for the treatment
of minor injury.

Notwithstanding our greatest efforts to implement safety practices and
measures across our mining sites, we are saddened to report the loss
of lives involving two mine workers (with the rate of fatalities is 4.5%)
and recorded twenty-two lost days due to work injury in our mine site
during the Reporting Period. During the year under review, a team
of three mine workers conducted coal drilling and extraction at the
working area where is twelve meters far from the entrance of the gallery
at mine site. The workers were not attentively aware of the unstable
coal roof and the coal roof collapsed during the drilling process which
resulted in the casualty of two mine workers. After the occurrence of
the fatal accident, we immediately suspended the coal mine production
and reported the case to the relevant authority for case investigation.
We have taken prompt corrective actions, including the installation of
communications and alarm between interior mines and the surface,
evaluation and revision of the existing safety security measures and
offering a variety of safety training (e.g. security training and first aid)
and etc to the relevant staff to meet the requirements from the local
authority. Subsequently the local authority satisfied with the measures
and corrective actions taken and allowed the mine site to resume
operation in August 2019. In addition, the Group provides insurance
coverage for every worker at the mine site and therefore the Group has
not required to pay compensation in respect of the accident pursuant
to the current laws and regulations in Peru.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %



RRE -#HERERBHSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R R

AEERE —XEBRETRENEIEEKAHED
REEBRY - RABORNBBIRHEE NBERE
T MRRMABNMBERT EFAEZE X2
EHRELER -

AREE R ARE TREADHIF - PARRIEFH
BB N TIFRE - REREEPNEHERE
AEENAE TRHEEBEILFEETI  #EE
BERSBERANBABITERE  WREHLEXH
R-BELRB2EAGIIELT AEELHTA
ArREERECELSEENZIRE - EWEE
TESERATTELREBENANBAREE
HEKERRKAREHES LG -

KW EBEE
it i 98 o 1

AEEHRERERRSEZAEERERPHE
ERNATHEEREDEERNEBEE -

AEEDERHERTERRBEEREEBNE
BITE - HEIMBER ARER - AEEE
HEER BN RERMNER AR EELCEHET
HAERFHE - REN A BRI BRI LMK
REMNEERERER - ZRATHRMREOHE
BkAEBETENNHERRELE  BREM
LRGEE - ZNREARERRE - ARERERE
MEDNRFNRERYPE - AEETEREHAAH
e A BAEER IR - BB AR &
MRS HEREAFR (BRREAFEAENE &
THEA - BEEATE2ARERBRT)RERLER
EMHEREEREREERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

Development and Training

The Group believes that an excellent and talented management team
can drive the long-term business success. We are dedicated to
broadening our people’s knowledge horizons, enhancing their skillsets
and fully nurture their potentials by providing learning and development
opportunities.

The Group provides orientation training to new joiners to ensure they
seamlessly fit into the new positions and working environment. To keep
pace with the changing business environment, the Group also offers
on-the-job training and professional training to the employees to equip
their practical skills and knowledge for accomplishing their duties and
nurture their career development. With the increasing concerns on
community engagement, the Group arranged specific-topic training in
related to community relationship and corporate social responsibility
for employees in Peru to acquire the knowledge of maintaining the
harmonious community relations and the “social license” to operate the
coal mining in the local community.

OUR BUSINESS OPERATION
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands that it is crucial to maintain close cooperation
with our suppliers to promote sustainability in our value chain and drive
our success of business.

The Group has set stringent management approaches in supplier
assessment and procurement management. When selecting new
suppliers and contractors, the Group carries out investigations and
assessments on their qualification, capability and previous business
and compliance track records. Only the suppliers who fulfil our
requirements can register as our qualified suppliers. We also conduct
regular supplier performance review on our existing suppliers and
contractors, in term of product and service quality, delivery time
and after-sale services, to ensure they can meet our standards and
expectations. The Group not only expects all suppliers to comply
with applicable laws and regulations, but also encourages them to
operate their business in good ESG practices, including environmental
sustainability, labour standards, health and safety and ethical
conduct, in order to continually improve their environmental and social
performance.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E KX AR A A



BRE -#HEehkERERSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EmEE

RMERERRATSHREREEERRRED
REEREE - AEEEHTEE SREE DR
MEERHEF  ARREREEHABSBRR
o/

BHEBRBAEBXSAMEREESEATEN
ETER(ARBEKRZ2EE)  UKETRHRREES
EBNEEBREL - MIAESNBRARBEEBE LD
mgORE(BETRR) EEBH  BEEFIARR S
REEEE) MG HMEEERASBR IR
ARmE  HABRETRBEEBIIMAILEH
BE WREBEEZHRE YARBESTREELE
BREANR  WERERENEERE  BNAEE
an th O K2 S5 B A8 AT EE dn 1 A& MRS K BIFR R AT AR
T —EM -

HREEEREEI RMAPARESINERREE
2 LERHRRAREHEMS - ARECDEHIE
EmXRBEEREBR - Wal A EEERIFEEN
NEEREGERE - RNEEREABKRETTE
TERZIGETTEUR - R - BRNMEZTHE - 1M
MEKHERBERZN  ERRE R HEFPER
ERENBEER UWnEEPFEE -

FEEHERLR AT  AEEZRMAETE
HEZENBNEMERRREFER (FInEE M
ToRXBEAREES) BRARET - ERAREAK
BREFELAFERN  BIZIRREREALRR
BRBEEEAER -

RBEMEA - AREVENTEENERBBAE
BEERZE2EURILBEEREZRBRHINBER

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AKX B R A A

Product Responsibility

We place high emphasis on enhancing customer satisfaction and
trust in terms of delivering quality products and services. The Group
has formulated a quality management policy and stringent operational
control procedures to ensure that the product quality is conformed with
the requirements of client and up to standard.

We adopt the official prices of nickel and non-ferrous metals as set by
the London Metal Exchange (the “LME”), which are the global reference
price, to standardise the pricing of our business of mineral concentrate
trading. All the contract agreement is prepared in accordance with
relevant contract specification covering but not limited to pricing period,
settlement terms, traded and cleared currencies. We select the LME
approved brands, which are required to be strictly in conformance with
the requirements on quality, shape and weight as outlined by LME,
and obtain the independent laboratory tests, acceptance inspections
report and quality certificate from vendors, with the aim to validate the
consistency of the product conformance towards the specifications as
well as internationally recognised standards before product export and
delivery.

Apart from governing the product quality, we understand the
on-time product delivery is equally important, in particular to coal
mining business. The Group has set up product and service quality
assurance policy with established operational control measures to meet
product quality standards. Our quality inspectors carry out sampling,
sample preparation, sample retention and review in accordance with
established operational requirements. We have also formulated policies
related to on-time delivery, after-sales services and/or return guarantee
for customers to satisfy our customer needs.

With the increasing concern in information privacy, the Group requires
all employees to exercise their due diligence to keep all the corporate
and customer information (e.g. trade secrets, business forecasts, and
pricing etc.) in strict confidentiality. Employees prohibit to divulge and
disclose any information to unauthorised persons without prior consent
from the Group and customers.

The Group was not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and

regulations related to product quality and safety and privacy matter
during the Reporting Period.
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Business Integrity and Anti-corruption

Integrity is the cornerstone of corporate business sustainability. The
Group is committed to upholding high standards of business ethics
and honesty within our business. Our code of conduct outlined the
required business conducts and behaviours in our business operations
and dealings for our employees to abide by. The Group strictly prohibits
the employees and business partners to solicit or accept bribes (e.g.
money, entertainment and commission) directly or indirectly, or use
improper means to seek personal advantages, as well as conducting
any extortion, fraud and money laundering activities. The employee
who breaches the rules is subject to disciplinary action including
employment termination.

The Group has whistleblowing policy in place to encourage employees
to report the potential or suspected improprieties, misbehaviours
and corrupt and fraudulent practices in good faith. The identity of the
whistle-blower with all the relevant reported information is kept in strict
confidentiality to prevent any unfair treatment and reprisal. In event
of any reported case discovered, we undertake internal investigation
in a timely manner for validation and handling. For the case which is
committed criminal offence, we will transfer the case to local judicial
authorities for further handling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any breaches
of relevant anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws and regulations in the
region where we operate.

OUR COMMUNITY

The Group recognises its corporate social responsibility and strive to
create positive and long-term values to the community through social
activates and community engagement.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continues to prioritise the
offer of job opportunities to the locals nearby the mine site in order to
facilitate the economic development and improve the living standard
of the local community. We maintain good relationship with interest
groups relevant to our business operation, which also further extends
the caring services to local families as well as the surrounding
community.
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BEENIEE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
BIERE Environmental Performance
By —E—-hF —E-N\F
Unit 2019' 2018
HRpER
Types of emissions
BERER
GHG emissions
BE1I-SRERER M-SR E 76.48 1,875.00
Scope 1 — Direct energy emissions tCOe
#E2—-LREZEHEN Wi —EALIRE 2
) . 6.22 1.00
Scope 2 - Indirect energy emissions tCOe
REREERES MRStk E 2
Total GHG emission tCO,e 82.70 1.876.00
mMERBEE
GHG intensity
M —S|biRE 2
RRE 52 TR 0.0008 B
Mineral concentrates trading business tCO, e/
square feet
g A == /N
B3 B IR 7 BRI 0.08 B
Coal mining business tCO, e/
tonne of raw coal
BEEYER
Type of waste
BEEREY N iE A E A
Hazardous waste tonne Not applicable Not applicable
mEREZEY?
Non-hazardous waste?
——MREEEY NI 0.40 | 1S BUE
— General waste tonne ' No available data
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B EF Y3 EF Wy
Unit 2019 2018

EREEER

Types of resource consumption

82 IR

Energy

e
— &5 gallon 6,240.98 19,389.00
— Diesel TR
kWh 8563.23 -
-% FRE
- 4,677.00 4,944.00

— Electricity kWh

Energy intensity

I 5% FEE/FHR oo i

Mineral concentrates trading business kWh / square feet '

B R R 3 55 TR, AW RE
. ) 250.97 -

Coal mining business kWh / tonne of raw coal

K3 & 3780 ELAIRES

Water® gallon ' No available data

KEE

Water intensity

e e s /AW R
i , gallon / tonne of raw 3.71 -
Coal mining business
coal
N ST K
225.80 664.59
Wood m3
454 NI
0.02 -

Paper* tonne

B 5E - Note:

1. TE-NFHEBEREHECERBEE S EBURERRA 1. The data coverage in 2019 includes the business of mineral concentrates trading
REB(ZZE-—NF-RE=-Z—-NF=AH) RAA as well as the coal mining business from January 2019 to February 2019 as all the
FERBR - NF-ARCEEEE ERELKMH coal mines were under suspension since March 2019. Due to the business nature,
B ERMNEBEEREERTAREME - no packaging materials are used in our business operation.

2. ERBTRE - R REEEANTEROTRLEAR 2. The figure is calculated based on the estimation of general trash production: 50kg/
MEBREREMmMESL - week and four weeks/month.

3. ERHTHRES ARKE (491,80000®) (EEEmTE 3. The figure is calculated based on the estimation of monthly water consumption
Pt BEESEBKEBEREECHAEHSERAR - approximately 1890 gallons. The water billing of mineral concentrates trading
HtirmEESEHRERKREZA - business is included in the office rental fee and hence there is no available data for

information disclosure.

4. FABTERERBREIEBOERSR - 4. The figure is only covered the consumption in mineral concentrates trading

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & #

business.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E KX AR A A



BRE -#HEehkERERSE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B (BE  HERERBEIEE) HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

%3l
B - g RERBEES B =41
ESG Reporting Guide Page Section
A. R
A. Environmental
BEA1 : HEBY
Aspect A1: Emissions
A1 —MRIEE £37H B RR
FHEBERRERBEN MKRTHANEES FEREFEEDHN Page 37 —HE
EEEr Our Environment
(a) BE & — Emission
(o) BTFEHBITABERZENRBER KA
B &R
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
Al HERERR RABBE R - F37H BIMIERR
The types of emissions and respective emission data. Page 37 —HEm
Our Environment
— Emission
Al2 RERBEAHME (UEAE)R(WMER BE (WMASESSEM - £38K%48E BIPIEERR
BEXREAE) - Page 38, 48 —BER)
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Our Environment
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). — Emission
B E DR R
Key Performance
Indicators
A1.3 ﬁﬁ?iﬁif;ﬁm@ (A E) R (WER) BE (MABESEN -5 $48H B8 A DR R
REEtE Page 48 Key Performance
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Indicators
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A4 FEAERIEEYEE UAHAE) R(NER)BE(NMABESEMN -5 $£488 BB IR R
THRMETE) o Page 48 Key Performance
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where appropriate, Indicators
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A1.5  FEIURIEHENE R RFTEKR F37H BME R
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Page 37 —BERR D
Our Environment
— Emission
Al6 HMEEREEEREZTEEVNAE BREEEENREMBEMSKR - B37H BIMIEERR
Descrlptlon of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Page 37 — B
reduction initiatives and results achieved. Our Environment
— Emission

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B A XA R DA
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ESG Reporting Guide Page Section

EBHEA2 . EREA

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2 —MREE 2398 BIPIEERR
BERERER(BIEER - KEEAMRME) BBUER Page 39 — & JR{E A
General Disclosure Our Environment —
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Use of Resources
other raw materials.

A21  IREAESHEER SKMEEER(OE  RE0B) BFEE (UTETRE $£488 BB IR R
FE)RTE(NMASESSEN FHERXMTE) - Page 48 Key Performance
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or Indicators
oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

A22 BEKEREE (WNSEESSBAM - BERMEIE) - %488 BB IR T
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Page 48 Key Performance
volume, per facility). Indicators

A2.3  fHiBEIRE AT B KT R o %398 BFIHRE
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Page 39 —&RE B

Our Environment —
Use of Resources

A2.4  EICKEUERKR LA EEWEE - UREABKIGTERMEKE - F408 BFIHIRE
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for ~ Page 40 —&REH
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Our Environment —

Use of Resources

A25 HEGAABEMENES (AEAE) R (MER) S4ESEMES - %488 B A DR R
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if Page 48 Key Performance
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Indicators
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RE -HERERKSIES BIX 8-
ESG Reporting Guide Page Section
BEA3: BERXAER

Aspect A3: The environment and Natural Resources

A3 —MREE £408 BIPIEERR
WERBITAHRERRAAEREKRERNZERIE o Page 40 —RERARER
General Disclosure Our Environment —
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment The Environment
and natural resources. and Natural
Resources
A3.1 HMEBEDHRBERAABERMNEAFZEREOERNEEEAFEMTE o F408 BFIHRE
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and Page 40 —IRERKAER
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Our Environment —
The Environment
and Natural
Resources
B. &g
B. Social
BEB1 : Ef&
Aspect B1: Employment
B1 —MREE F4E BMWET
AT ERE HBEREA  IHERE- B FEHE  Zoib - X Page 41 —EE R TR
AR A B B A 75 3B I AR I A Our People
(a BE: X - Employment
(o) BEBTFEHBEITABERZENRBER LA and Labour
KB R} o Standards

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide Page Section
EBEB2: @REHZ2
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2 — PRI EE 438 HMPWET
FARELZ2TEREIMMREETIHRABENEEN Page 43 —HEREZ S
(a) BE: & Our People
() HTHBTATEAREMIEMER ARG - Health and
BB - Safety
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
[EEB3 : #EREI
Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3 — PRI R 458 BPWET
FRRTE IR TERE MBS MR RER - #HlBEE - Page 45 —BRERIE
General Disclosure Our People
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging — Development
duties at work. Description of training activities. and Training
[EHEB4 : 8 T %8|
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 —MREE EME BPWET
BRI ILE TR HI4 T - Page 41 —[EE &4 TR
(a) BXR: & Our People
(o) BTHBEBTABEATENHBEELBRD - Employment
&L o and Labour
General Disclosure Standards
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
[EHEBS : ftREHEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 — PRI EE £458 B EREE
ERMHEENRERTSRREEK - Page 45 —fEsEER
General Disclosure Our Business
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Operation
— Supply Chain
Management
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RE -HERERKSIES BIX 8-

ESG Reporting Guide Page Section

[EEB6: EmERE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6 — B EE 468 M EBEE
EREFMRHERMRGHERELZ S ERABEIEUR Page 46 —EmET
HWRITER Our Business
(a) BR: & Operation
(o) BFHETABERTZERMEEERZREN — Product

B E R} o

General Disclosure
Information on:

(@) the policies; and

Responsibility

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

BEB7: RES
Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

B7 — RN EE F47H
BEEIERERE - 1R - BMEFRARER - Page 47
(a BE: &
(o) BFHBETABERAFZENHEBEEZREN
B E Rk} o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

EHEBS : HERE
Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8

— M E F4TH
FHEUMEZ2ERTHEEMEHEFTENBRREEZ G ERTET] Page 47
=HYBUR ©

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take

into consideration the communities’ interests.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

a4 AR 2 F

B EGEE

—EEMER
k&3

Our Business
Operation
— Business
Integrity and Anti-
corruption

BTt

Our Community
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining
high standard of corporate governance practices. The primary
corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Year”) and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviations:

— Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 11 June 2019 (“AGM”) due to other business engagement.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and certain members of the Nomination
Committee were present at the AGM to answer the shareholders’
questions.

— Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should at least annually hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.
Due to the various other business engagement, the Chairman of
the Board did not meet up with the independent non-executive
Directors during the year. The Chairman of the Board will come up
with a meeting date with the independent non-executive Directors
as earliest as possible to make sure that they can meet without
other executive Directors present in the reporting year of 2020.

— Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
During the year, not all the independent non-executive Directors
attended the AGM due to other business engagement. The
Company will finalize and inform the dates of the general meetings
as earliest as possible to make sure that the independent
non-executive Directors can attend the general meetings in future.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019 after specific enquiry.

The Company believes that the current procedures to remind all
Directors and senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) to follow strictly with the Model Code prior to
publication of the Group’s interim and final results remain sufficient to
prevent non-compliance with the Model Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report,
there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises nine Directors and is of the opinion that it has a balance of
skill and experience based on the following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Jian (General Manager)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors possess appropriate professional qualification
and/ or experience in accounting and/or related financial management
expertise. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules. Each independent non-executive Director has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a period of two years until
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified
therein.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
20 of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there are no
other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that they are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results, as well as
corporate governance, financial, capital, remuneration and mergers and
acquisition matters. During the year under review, four Board meetings
and the AGM were held. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings and the AGM is set out as follows:

HE/BTEERE
Meetings Attended/Held

By R

Board BEXE
=2 Directors Meeting AGM
BTESE Executive Directors
BEELE Mr. Fu Kwan 0/4 0/1
SR B A Mr. Zhang Jian 4/4 1/1
RMBERE Mr. Zhang Bishu 0/4 0/1
B+ Ms. Liu Jing 1/4 0/1
PoR B o A Mr. Chang Yeuk 2/4 0/1
BAEALE Mr. Zhou Jianren 3/4 0/1
BUKEHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 4/4 1/1
BT EAE Mr. Cao Kuangyu 3/4 0/1
REELAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 4/4 1/1
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During the Reporting Year, the Board has dealt with matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim results, internal
control and risk assessment, corporate governance and matters of
disposal of subsidiaries. In addition, certain matters relating to the
Company’s announcements and other affairs were reviewed and
approved by written resolutions signed by all the Directors of the
Company.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors in advance for regular
Board meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice period
is given. Meeting agendas and other relevant information are normally
provided to the Directors at least 3 days in advance of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board
and committee meetings which are recorded in sufficient detail about
the matters considered. Both draft and final versions of the minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comments and records. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board meeting procedures
are followed.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary.
Sufficient explanation and information have been provided to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary. Update
which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details is provided
to all Directors to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Board has also agreed that the Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expenses.

DIRECTORS INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Directors are given an induction after their
appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of their duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and
the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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AAnEEANESSELQ2HEESTEERE - £#F  The Company encourages the participation of ongoing professional

BHARNREE - @BRZEER " — NLFFRNLRXHELE  trainings by individual Director at the Company’s expenses. The training

2 BERAT participation by individual Director during 2019 is summarised as
below:

A

3

e,

BNE

Attending

induction

Edpg training/
Reading seminars/

materials briefings
HITESE Executive Directors
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan / v/
REE A Mr. Zhang Jian v/ 4
RMNELAE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/ v/
2lEF 2+ Ms. Liu Jing v/ v/
BeR 2 o A Mr. Chan Yeuk v/ 4
BEAEE Mr. Zhou Jianren v/ -
BUKHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MERLEE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert v/ 4
EH T REA Mr. Cao Kuangyu v -
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai v/ v/

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

On top of the regulatory and statutory responsibilities, the main duties
of the Board include formulating strategy as well as monitoring and
controlling operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have been consulted on major and material matters of the Company
and have been encouraged to make active contribution to the affairs
of the Board. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and are committed
to act in good faith and make decisions in the best interests of both
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board delegates
day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group to the
management of the relevant principal divisions. The Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have
been set up to assist the Board to discharge its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All Committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to the Board with
recommendations. The final decisions are rested with the Board, unless
otherwise provided in terms of reference of the relevant Committees.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code and
has adopted the latest corporate governance code manual (including
continuous professional development of directors, the compliance of
the Model Code, etc) since March 2016. In addition, the Company’s
employee whistleblowing guidelines has also been in place since
March 2012. Liability insurance for the Company’s Directors and senior
management was maintained by the Company with coverage for any
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 that give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is responsible for presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, the consolidated financial statements were prepared on a
going concern basis. The statement of the auditors of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 69
to 76 of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. During the
Reporting Year, Mr. Fu Kwan has been the Chairman of the Company
and responsible for the leadership and the effective operation of the
Board. Mr. Zhang Jian has been the general manager of the Company
and assumes the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He has been responsible for the day-to-day management
of the businesses in all aspects effectively, the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board, the development and formulation
of business plans, budgets and financial objectives for consideration
by the Board, and the establishment and maintenance of proper
internal controls and risk management systems with the support of the
Company’s Audit Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Their presence and participation also
enable the Board to maintain good standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise
in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have
sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of the
Company.

The executive Directors of the Company entered into service contracts
with the Company for terms of two or three years. In addition, each of
the independent non-executive Directors signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term of two years.

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, (i) any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment or (ii) any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Any
Director appointed shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai. Mr. Cheung Ka Wai is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board. The remuneration of Directors are based on the skKill
and contribution in the Company’s affairs and are determined by
reference to duties and responsibilities of the executive Directors
after considering the Group’s performance and the prevailing market
situations including salaries paid by comparable companies. No
Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was one meeting held
by the Remuneration Committee to review the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management as well as the remuneration
policies.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members of senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
disclosed in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Attendance of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year
is set out below:

HESBERE RTEIERE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held
REELE(EERE) Mr. Cheung Ka Wai (Chairman) 1/1
MER A Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1
BT A Mr. Cao Kuangyu 1/1
EBEEZEE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

ARNRRN —_E—_FERIVIEZEZE® mEEE The Company’s Nomination Committee was set up in 2012 to review
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AEMBRALEETEEE KT -
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and make recommendations for new candidates to the Board. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive Directors
(Mr. Fu Kwan (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang
Jian) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lam
Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai). The
Nomination Committee will assess new candidates based on their
skills, experience and who, in its opinion, are able to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to review the policy and any measurable
objectives as may be adopted from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities. The Company will also
take into account of its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does
not intend to fix a diversity quota for Board members appointment or
set a short term objective on gender diversity, for such policies may
compromise on the calibre of Directors.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was one meeting held
by the Nomination Committee to mainly review (i) the structure, size,
composition and diversity policy of the Board; (i) the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors of the Company and (iii) the
re-appointment of retiring Directors for election by shareholders of the
Company at the AGM.

Attendance of the Nomination Committee during the Reporting Year is
set out below:

HESBERE BTEIERE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held
BELE(EE) Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman) 0/1
RELA Mr. Zhang Jian 1/1
MERSEAE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1
EW T A Mr. Cao Kuangyu 1/1
RERETAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 1/1
ZEREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Man
Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, and is chaired
by Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in
accounting and/or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2019 with 100% attendance
of its members. During the year, the Audit Committee provided
accounting and financial advices and recommendations to the Board
as well as reviewed the independence of external auditors and
relevant auditing matters. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee which was of the opinion that
the preparation of the relevant financial statements complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. During
the Reporting Year, the fee in respect of audit service provided by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was approximately HK$900,000
(2018: HK$950,000). The fee paid/payable to HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited for non-audit services relating to assisting in reviewing
the disclosure of interim financial report was HK$285,000 (2018:
HK$285,000). In addition, during the year ended 31 December
2018, the fee paid/payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
for non-audit matters relating to professional services rendered in
connection with the composite document dated 1 August 2018 was
HK$158,950.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibilities for the
establishment and maintenance of an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interest of shareholders of the Company. Furthermore, the risk
management and internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has a built-in internal audit function and has established a
risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the management. On-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group has been
established. Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The results
of evaluation will be reported to management through regular internal
meetings associated with the list of risks identified and management’s
assessment on the impact to the Group. The Board discussed the risk
identified and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

The Group is of the view that an effective risk management and
internal control system is in place which encompasses sound control
environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well-defined policies
and monitoring procedures and is reviewed and enhanced by the
management at regular intervals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practices, risk management and internal control system.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group engaged
external consultants to perform review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group at least once a
year and make recommendations for improvement and strengthening
of its risk management and internal control system. Based on the
reports on the findings from the external consultants, no major issues
but areas of improvement have been identified. All recommendations
will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time and the Board considered the Group’s risk
management and internal control system were effective in all material
aspects during the year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Company has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the
insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, special general meetings may be
convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings
of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business at 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (“Head Office”), specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at its Head Office, specifying the shareholding information
of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business at its Head Office. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Directors are aware of the importance of maintaining good relations
and communications with shareholders of the Company. The Company
continues to promote investor relations and communication with its
investors. The Company uses a range of communication tools, such as
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars etc, to ensure its
shareholders are kept informed of the Company’s information.

The Company has maintained a website at http://macrolinkcapital.
etnet.com.hk, which serves as a platform for corporate communications
with its shareholders and the general public. All corporate
communications required under the Listing Rules are displayed (for
documents published in the previous 5 years) on the Company’s
website, which has established procedures to ensure timely update in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in 2019. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Company intends to pay out on annual dividend payment
for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter alia,
the following factors:

()  the Group’s financial results;
(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants of our
Group’s bank and other loans; and

(v)  any other factors that our Board may consider appropriate.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-
Laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders at an
annual general meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the
shareholders such interim and/or special dividends as it considers to be
justified by the profits of the Group.

Any declaration and/or payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are/is subject to the Board’s determination that the same
would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. The Board endeavors to strike a balance
between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
and the Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %



HLB

B EWESERAT
TRRE
(REFEZMALZERAF)
ﬁﬁ,

EEERETTEEF202EFEINEHERER
T((ﬁ’&ﬂ)&ﬁﬁﬁ% A(AEIEEE]) 2
RENBEHmE WM BRREER=_2E—NF =
A=T—HBZHEEMBRAE BEZAILEFEZ

RAEBREK BEETEBRER SKEAEREIRK
REHERER  URGEUBHREWZE(BEE
EETHEBE) -

%17%?7% REMBHRERERESAMAE (&
BRFMAE]) BHNEENERSE QEE‘J((E?%
MBHREER D EERATFHRR EEER -
—hWE+=ZA=+—8H E’\]%?\/*\QM%HKR&E%@Z
EZRLFENGEYBREARGERELRE - XL
ERRBEBRAGRINBEEREZ SmEL

ERNER
ASREEEEHDARAMG 2 EBLIEA (5
BRBOEAD ETERR T - BERRSRAET

ZEEERESE Z#&iﬁq%?;%(fﬁ/ﬁ%%f%ﬁé\ﬁjﬁ
WABAENE T —EE— T - EFREFE
SEEI R @B 2 EX ST A& 1Z T A/ (T57RI])
BURN BEEE BFTERETREMESFCH

BEEE EERRESHREENEREER
RNMEENREEZRRIEMHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

B &t E5% A RN G
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

B % AR E
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BB 31/F, Gloucester Tower
IR The Landmark
ZTH1158 11 Pedder Street

B E 5 Central

LTI RE31#E  Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 202,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

FAREFLER
AREZEFHEAIBSZIEXRAGMS - HEFE
CABRZGANBHREAR/REENTE - XFF
AREBSFERERGAMBRRLMEEAR
REETREN  BESTe@HRETREHRESR
MER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

HREZER

Key audit matter

RIBREUR B IR R 7715 5 2 2 6 (B 71

Impairment assessments on mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets
DEZEUVBRERME6 -

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERBEREARDRERIGEER_ZE—NLEF+_H
=+ —HZEEE A% #12,213,0007% 7t % 8,877,000/
7T (R & E R E T 45 RIEL B EAD) -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2019
were approximately HK$12,213,000 and HK$8,877,000
respectively before adjusting for the results of the
impairment assessment of the assets.

REEANBRERRFEEECERAESRASTHABRZ
5 78 R F] A AOA W B AR A B B R E AR &Y © B EER B
BARMREFEEEN RS HRZEEERS LREM
BEFSKRUAEBREBEZE (MEFEABIR)FRAEE
H B K H -

The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether
there is any indication of impairment of the carrying
amounts of mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets as at the end of the reporting period, and the
extent of impairment loss if such indication exists, require
significant judgement.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A

BEECERNMEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T LB B R DA SR B R R 5T 4 B B A T RUE AT P
TZRFEE:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessments on mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets included:

e HEBENHAENR ULKEREEEFHESHE
WEDRNEE - EAEBITREHANOERLT  FHEEE
[ TR R E DRI
Discussing indicators of impairment with the
management and challenging the management’s views
about the existence or non-existence of indicators of
impairment. Where such indicators were identified,
assessing the impairment testing performed by
management;

e RE BERECZEAERELEFYH
HEREMRNNRCELEM
Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business;

BEEEXBGZEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

RAREEZEE(E) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EARERER

Key audit matter

RETRER S  KBEEUARMRETREESEEREE
ABEU([ReELSEM]) - ERERBEREEFEER
RenERllECReEEEURN _E—NE+_A=1—
HzrlEesE - ETRENGBES  AEREXAE
NEERTERBEARYRLAGEENBNERARESE
HEURETRANREREeRERALKTEEREENH
REBR - SRECENBE  BRERBRE -

For the purpose of assessing impairment, mining rights
and exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs as at 31 December 2019 were determined
by management based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant judgements were required to be
exercised to appropriately identify the respective CGUs to
which mining rights and exploration and evaluation assets
belong and to determine the key assumptions, including
operating margins, growth rates and discount rates, to be
used in the preparation of the cash flow projections and
the value-in-use calculations.

BRETREN G Bt ERAEFEEaRABRRE
&5 18 5 E£94,806,00078 7T & 1,764,000/ 7T + bA5 Bl i§ K&
RE A S B ER 2 w4 B 2E B RR T & SR MURL -

As a result of the impairment assessment, impairment
losses amounting to approximately HK$4,806,000 and
HK$1,764,000 were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to write down the carrying
amounts of mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

BEEZBERNMEERREERSEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e HEERERMEREBEEFE(BERABIE)
Assessing the value-in-use calculations, including the
methodologies adopted by the management;

s RETENEBRITEMITEMEMANBERBRR (B2
%%%%\J/FEEJ% BERXRERE) 262
Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
adopted (including operating margins, growth rates and
discount rates) based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

o HERGABBRIFERE (MNEHERSE)  UZRBZE
EE A
Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets;

e TEABUBEELSERMGEMZIBES  SEAREEHML &
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity; and

e ZEMEZRMHESSAEAMAREZRBERRRCEHE
M o
Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess the
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

EAREXRER

Key audit matter

KREYEZ1EE

Valuation of investment properties
REGE M BWMEM T4 -

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEEBERNREMEALTEIE -ERERE BESBERE
MER—_E—NF+_A=+—B 22 ¥EXAE73,850,000
BT MEEWERBE_ZE—NWF+_A=+—HIEF
B2 AT EWZE 463,000 TR GEABERAAR - ERi%
BEYEMBBILINEBEE REVENHEKBEGHER

ﬁ$%%%m%¥ﬁm MZEBRITEEEAEZTE
AREERERTEERERE CAEEREIERERS

% &R 2 TORIER 2 HBARER °

The Group’s investment properties are carried at fair
value. Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties to be approximately
HK$73,850,000 as at 31 December 2019 with fair value
gains on investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2019 recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss of approximately HK$63,000. Independent
external valuation was obtained in respect of the
investment properties. The valuation of the investment
properties is dependent on certain assumptions adopted
in the valuation process, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual results.
Reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEEZBERNMEEREERSHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREEEORENEZAEMETZIEFBRE

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

TEBLIEECERGEMZBESD BN REEE
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

ZEEEERBEZNHAMARENGE
BEE BN &

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions made; and

1 K B {E R

Z B PTABIR AR R LA ROB S At et E Ay L o
Considering the relevance of the data used and testing
the accuracy of the calculation of the estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Hitt &

BERAZEFATHRBEEMEN - BB EHNBREF
BFAE AR T EREAMBHRRLES I
ZZBEERE ([HMER]) -

SHERGEAVBRERCBEREITRERMER -
FNHAL U BREME A ZLEER

=
=

=
=

IESFHEAMBRRZEGME BEZEIR
BIEEMEN  HMEEREMEMNETE LGRS
BRIABFEEZBRTEINENFEERD
o RFEBABERRL - WEBFERE TR
TERREMERLREAHRRL - EFARE
HEE -HEETE BEFLREEMRS -

EERERZEENGEUBERRE
EENEME

BERREFAAEREBEEBSTMASRHZIEL
P mEER R EB R BMRD 2 WERERRIEL
EEMAARBRZGEEHBHRE  YAEEEAR
RERGEAVBERRZFEH I FEHRKFFRE
AR T B 2R BN BH AR BRI P A 78 2 B R I BB FE I o

RREEEMBHRRE  EXHBANE E5H
FEKZNR) YHRBEESBELEAANER
(ER) - BRIFEERFER BEEREFR HfFLL
BB FB 2N BEMBERATOIE - B
EEARAUBBLLERERNGE -

BERREFEHEERZBEEHMY TRITHEE
BH M ERERENEME

\
/

g
i
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

BB BRREMERRAAEN
B

EEMEE RUBBRAUBRRASTTHE
MR AFRE R ME RN EAERFLRE A2
R YRBERE—NAN—FRAEFOE
B BT (FARE) HABEESERNEEE
®E - BUMS  BENRETHERLAR - BS
TERARENNTAEALALE ERFRRE
EAEE - ARRBEZBKFOHRE - ERERE
RREBRECERETHEREE —BAERE
HTF R RS AR B R o SRR T DA R RF o 85 31 3
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EERBEFEGZHERNETEZNITIEZ — =&
REXRAE  EEERZEARTRIEBREXRMEE

T o B :
x ° | sF .

o BERIAFFMANRFFLERMEBERE MG
BREFEBAERRANRAR - R KRBT
BEZRFAEBRHZERR ARG EM
BEENEZERE FREFEANER -H
KRR RER RE E5ERF &
RERAL - FEBRABEES 2 £ HithREE
B ARGFM B EANERRAH RS
REHERMERNWERHERR AR -

TREEEZABOAMES - UREFTEED
BEZREF BEBEMALIEY BEEREAMIEH
MBREERER -

s HEE=MRASHBRENREMLRMEL
SR AEEREERNAIEE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei

Practising Certificate Number: P06413
Hong Kong, 29 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-hEF —ZET-N\F
2019 2018
Bt it TET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EER Revenue 5 337,839 184,704
HE KRB AR Cost of sales and services (328,114) (178,252)
EF Gross profit 9,725 6,452
E A U A K Mz Other income and gains 5 46,142 5,222
THER Administrative expenses (52,087) (568,506)
HAp &8 X 15 Other operating expenses, net (19,360) (46,520)
KEMERATFEKE Fair value gains on investment properties 14 63 885
HESHO R TFEEE Fair value loss on future contracts 6 (75,763) -
Hith |\ EERERSE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 16 (6,570) (37,110)
REEE Operating loss 6 (97,850) (129,577)
B 75 B 7N Finance costs 7 (4,293) (10,088)
CNI Loss before tax (102,143) (139,665)
Fria g Income tax credit 10 3,524 7,765
FEEE Loss for the year (98,619) (131,900)
FEMh - Attributable to:

ViN/NETE 7 F I Owners of the Company (88,810) (111,784)
SRR IR M A Non-controlling interests (9,809) (20,116)
(98,619) (131,900)

ARAREBAELEBREER Loss per share attributable to

owners of the Company 11

BEAR RS (F45M) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (7.36) (10.61)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %

#

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E AR B R A A



mEEHEKER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEEE Loss for the year (98,619) (131,900)
Han2mEBAX (A0 F?ﬁlﬁ) Other comprehensive expenses, net of tax
BB B Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
BmbZ Iﬁﬁ
AAFEFERBEEHTA Change in fair value of equity investments at fair value
Eme2ERamRAKRE through other comprehensive income
AT EEEH) (443) (1,556)
(443) (1,556)
HiEA e EF DM E B AR Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
ZIEH - profit or l0ss:
MEBINEEELEEN ZS  Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (3,097) (2,441)
(3,097) (2,441)
FEHME2MBAX (JIBRFIE) Other comprehensive expenses for the year,
net of tax (3,540) (3,997)
FEXHEBXEHE Total comprehensive expenses for the year (102,159) (185,897)
FEAS - Attributable to:
FiN/NEIEZ =N Owners of the Company (91,842) (113,268)
JE 22 IR 2 Non-controlling interests (10,317) (22,629)
(102,159) (135,897)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—8B UABTIE)
At 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
B &t FHET AT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB MRS Property, plant and equipment 13 99,104 122,045
wEME Investment properties 14 73,850 74,367
FREEE Prepaid land lease payments 15 = 17,963
B E A Right-of-use assets 15 17,196 =
HihEREE Other intangible assets 16 14,520 21,171
LAATF{EEtE B HE B A Ef Equity investments at fair value through
2EBEHRARE other comprehensive income 17 - 508
EEFIRE E Deferred tax assets 31 347 349
FERBEERE Total non-current assets 205,017 236,403
REBEE Current assets
MEFE Stock of properties 18 - 3,411
T8 Inventories 19 30,841 15,794
JRE 5 BR X Accounts receivable 20 3,171 1,300
FERNIE - ZE R EMEIWFIE Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 21 22,247 22,929
i NG E L] Amounts due from related companies 22 12,420 12,656
AT EFE BHEEZET A Financial instruments at fair value through
BalefEE profit or loss 24 19,781 -
R KIRITEER Cash and bank balances 25 35,784 100,901
mE & ERE Total current assets 124,244 156,991
=R Current liabilities
FETBR SR Accounts payable 26 4,515 7,028
HMEMNZELESEE Other payables and accruals 27 52,539 45,969
PRI REMESR Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 29 33,060 34,469
FE 1S BAE A R 5RE Amounts due to related companies 23 26,740 3,780
J& 5 152 38 Tax payable 50 6,562
mEBERE Total current liabilities 116,904 97,808
RBEEFE Net current assets 7,340 59,183
EEHERARBAE Total assets less current liabilities 212,357 295,586
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

—E-NAF+TZA=1t—BAETINE)

At 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
B &t FET AT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
FFERITREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 29 - 2,512
WBEREHN Financial guarantee contract 30 134 -
BEIEBRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 317 33,256 33,207
EnRBEERE Total non-current liabilities 33,390 35,719
EEFE Net assets 178,967 259,867
= Equity
AATEBAEERERS Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
[N Share capital 32 120,625 120,625
E Reserves 34 38,476 109,059
159,101 229,684
FERER Non-controlling interests 19,866 30,183
mER Total equity 178,967 259,867

HAEVBRRANR_-_ZFE_TFHA- Jer REESE
SHENBKBYHRNTESTRRE

BE

gR%E

Fu Kwan

B=

Director

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

oE B &EAXERA

Gl

RiE
Zhang Jian
=S

Director
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The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2020 and are signed on
its behalf by:

£
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KRAAERARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
WATETER
EE ERDHARL I EX
B&  REEEE  BHEE GEUERE  ERRE  EMRE  RIRE  ZHER & FERER fEE
Fair value
Share Statutory  through other Property Exchange Non-
Share premium surplus  comprehensive  revaluation Other fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve - income reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
TERL TERL TAR TEL TERL TR TAR TERL TERL TER ThL
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(s () (i)
Note 32) (Note 34(i) (Note 34(i))
H=-1E-A-A At 1 January 2019 120,625 163,910 18,380 (361) 1,132 - 6,589 (80,51) 209,684 30,183 259,867
EHZES Profitor loss - - - - - - - (88,810) (88,810) (9,809) (98,619)
E2EES (NHEE) Other comprehensive expenses,
net of tax
WATEHEEAREAEL2E Change i fair value of equity
BORAREZATERS  ivestments at far value through other
comprehensive income - - - (443) - - - - (443) - (443)
AEENEREL /BN ZE Exchange diferences on tranglafion
of foreign operations - - - - - - (2,589) - (2,589) (508) (3,09)
EE2EBXAR(NRAE)  Total comprehensive expenses for
the year, net of tax - - - (443) - - (2,589) (68,810) 91,842 (10317) (102,159)
IEENAFEFEELRHTA  Transforof fai value reserve upon
A2 ANENRALER the disposal of equiy Investments
HATEREER at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - 804 - - - (804) - - -
Rzts Sharefolder's controution - - - - - 21,259 - - 21,259 - 21,259
H=8-AETZA=1-R At 31 December 2019 120,625 163,910 18,380 - 1,132 21,259 4,000 (170,208) 159,101 19,866 178,967
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mEER28 R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
FRAREARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
HATEHEE

TER iR RhE FE ARSTALL Uk Bi REEH/

BE RiEEE BARR  RAER B EMRE 2EMREE EMRE  RBRE  (RnER) & FEREE g
Fair value Retained
Share  Convertble  Statutory Share  Investments  throughother ~ Property  Exchange profits/ Non-
Share ~ premium bonds surplus option revaluation comprehensive  revaluation fluctuation  (accumulated controling Total
captal account Tesenve Tesenve Tesenve Teseve  income reserve Tesenve Tesenve loss) Tot  inferests equity
TRt T TEr TR TEn  TEn TRt TEr TiEn Thr  TEn  TEr  TEn
HKS'000  HKSOOD  HK§'000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HK$000 HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKS'000
(Waz) (Wz2) (s
(Note 32) (Note 28 (Note 34())
RS-tETZA=1-A At31 December 2017 104540 18399 = 18,380 1673 1,1% - 1132 6,517 30,000 241,836 52812 204,648
* %’éﬁﬁﬁﬁiw Efect of adoption of Hong Kong
5Ny Financial Reporting Standard 9 - - - - - (1,1%) 11% - - (480) (480) - (480)
R-8-NE-5-H At 1 January 2018 (restated)
(E31) 10450 7839 - 1830 1673 - 1,195 1,182 6517 050 MG 812 204168
EHAER Profit or loss - - - - - - - - - (1784 (11784 (0116 (131.900)
EB2F(BR)/ME  Other comprehensive
(NIBHE) (expenses|/income, net of tax
AT SRHEGHAL Change infai value of equiy
foREREZRERE 2D investments at far value through
TEgY ofher comprehensive income - - = = - = (1,556) = = - (195 - (195
BERNsHEE Exchange diferences on
JENZE transafon offoregn operations - - - - - - - - 7 - o RSy M)
EERF (M) /WBEBE  Total comprehensive
(Nk#E) (expenses)/income for
the year, net of tax = = - - - - (1,556) - 0 (178 (13268 (2629  (135697)
¥imakEs Issuance of convertile honds - - 19,266 - - - - - - - 19,266 - 19,266
TAREAEHER Convertile bonds ssuance
EXDENSES - - (241) - - - - - - - (241) - (241)
ThkEREESR Conversion of convertible bonds 16,085 8,511 (18462) - - - - - - - 83134 - 83134
THARESMELHE  Deforred tax on convertble bonds - - (569) - - - - - - - (563) - (563)
HEERE Cancellation of share options - - - - (1,673) - - - - 1678 - - -
ZE-NETZA=1-R At31December 2018 120625 163910 = 18,380 = = (361) 1132 6,089 (80591) 229,684 30,183 259,867

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
Bt it FHET FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
REXBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
bR B AT ES 48 Loss before tax (102,143) (139,665)
Bt TS EEL AR Adjustments for:
B SRR Finance costs 7 4,293 10,088
S WA Interest income (1,178) (439)
HEWHE BMENLEZMEEE 2  Gain on disposal of items of property,
Y a5 plant and equipment (1,011) (1,499)
‘EYERNFEEKE Fair value gains on investment
properties 14 (63) (885)
AR EEE B HEB) 5 A2 Fair value gains on equity investments at
IR AR E N A2 W fair value through profit or loss (346) (39)
ME - BMERZEZINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 8,336 18,072
TE L TR SR IE 2 #EY Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 15 - 455
FRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 437 =
B &E 73y Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 9 6,333
Wi - BmENMKEEE Write-off of items of property, plant and
equipment - 304
HEthEPEEE 2 REEE Impairment loss on other intangible
assets 16 6,570 37,110
FEUWBE 3k 7 B ES 1B B %% Provision of impairment loss on
accounts receivable, net 413 13
TERFRIE - iRe R EMEWEIE (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss
ZREEE(ER), on prepayments, deposits and other
R receivables, net (442) 23,953
ME  BMELZBENRMEEE  Imparment loss on property, plant and
equipment 13 13,224 4,251
7 & #MOR, Write-down of inventories 1,994 3,894
MIEIERESONTEE{ZEEE  Expected credit loss on financial
guarantee contract 10 =
B S IE IR A 48 5 Amortisation of financial guarantee
contract (10) -
B A R EY s Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 44 (3,320) -
(73,227) (38,034)
MEZFER D Decrease in stock of properties 3,411 2,264
ZE®mn Increase in inventories (17,041) (6,859)
AT EEE BH#SE)E AB2 (Increase)/decrease in equity investments
BRI & (B hn) R at fair value through profit or loss (19,435) 1,086
JrE L BR SR A2 N Increase in accounts receivable (2,314) (419)
TERTFIE - 1HE R HE M EWFIE Decrease in prepayments, deposits and
NERAN other receivables 512 11,593
& Uk 78 38 N B SRIE R Decrease in amounts due from related
companies 236 540
FENBRR OB A) /N (Decrease)/increase in accounts payable (64) 1,859
EpER AN ETBEE I, Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
CRLA) accruals 6,036 (2,205)
FETREE D B RIBE AN, (8 4) Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
related companies 22,960 (38)
BA TSR & 493 01 Increase in financial guarantee contract 136 -
REXBRARE Cash used in operations (78,790) (30,213)
2 ERTT A B Bank interest received 1,178 439
B8N I8 Overseas tax paid (2,767) (401)
ARKETE 2HESREFEEHE  Net cash flows used in operating
activities (80,379) (30,175)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

X B R 2 F



mEeRERER (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—RE —E-NF
2019 2018
Bt it FHET FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETHEESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEWE BEREKEEE Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment (67) (812)
HEDE BENRKREEE Proceeds from disposal of items of
25 IE property, plant and equipment 1,071 1,659
Hj%lz/{”&i?ﬁ A= EEEE Proceeds from disposal of equity
‘fAﬁ{ﬁEEH&¥Wk$ investments at fair value through other
1% & 0 Fr 15 K comprehensive income 65 -
PN Eﬁ{mﬂﬁ,éF Additions to other intangible assets - (124)
B E 2 fE W E & Receipt of loan receivable - 397
ZMRAEIE SRS Decrease of restricted cash 16 10
HEMBARMNE SR AFE Net cash inflow from disposal of
subsidiaries 44 1,703 =
RETEMB2ZREERETFE Net cash flows from investing
activities 2,788 1,130
MEETHEESRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
AT AE Interest paid (3,132) (2,672)
YNEZ ﬁﬁ&éﬁﬁﬁ Loan arrangement fee paid (625) (1,500)
BATA MR EF W P15 5K I8 Proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds - 100,000
AR ESEITER Convertible bonds issuance expenses - (1,250)
B A IR RS 1 5 F) & Convertible bonds interest paid - (1,945)
BERERTER Repayment of bank loan (8,724) (3,724)
R HE Shareholder’s contribution 21,259 -
JE A 484 R A R FRE R Decrease in amount due to ultimate
holding company - (29)
BEETHMEB2ELRETFEHE Net cash flows from financing
activities 13,778 88,880
ReREBELZEEW2(EY),~ NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
3 hnFE & CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (63,813) 59,835
FHz2HEERREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 100,822 34,201
INESTE R BB 7 & JBER Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (1,288) 6,786
ER>BLRESZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 35,721 100,822
ReRBESEEYHEB 254 ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
I8 & M IR1T 4 6R Cash and bank balances 25 35,784 100,901
i R &IIE 4 Less: Restricted cash (63) (79)
FIEBERIRERERERRKNZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated
HEeNIBEEEY in the consolidated statement
of cash flows 35,721 100,822

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMB®RREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REAREEER

MEMEABRAB(ARF]) ID—HRA
REFAMAL 2 BRRAF - EERHEESH
EXZHAERAR ([BRFA]) EH > AAHA
REBZEAMMERRETRE R ME 2t
RAFRE2EEFEIARNAER —EIPHEE -

ARRARER AN B AR (G ANEHE]) R
FEAREFNTEXZBNOT :

° MERBERER

o BUENRHEREMK
o BHEE

o BEES

o BRRLK R

o HERBEREBTEM -

RARRAEZRE RZE-NFELAZ+RN
BZAl > ARARZEERERABSBERE
BRAR(—HRNEBRELES (REBEK
BEEMKILZAR) @ MARAZ&EE
BRAFRBRBBEMAL iR (EE) AR
DA HREIES D R R B A EF R AT
TEFRAEMEE(RZZE-N\FNA-+Z
BEE) - BT \FELtA-+ HER
REARRBHA-_ZT-N\FRA—H =
- N\EXNAZ+ZBRZ=ZZE—N\FtA
“HRBBEREEARABRNO ZAE AR
CIPA-E: 3y NGNS 32y UNCIE R O Fiii
FEMEBEBRAR ([FEMEME ] - AlfEHE
SEIRERBRAR) RBEVEXEREARA
B MENIRHAERERRBRE LS
AL - MEZAES T AER/ARNARE
FRATEFBERE (R NFN\A—-
BERE) -
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BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities:

° property investment and development;

° manufacture and sale of construction materials;
° securities investments;

° trading of mineral concentrates;

° coal mining; and

° sale of parts of mining equipment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, prior to 26 July
2018, the immediate holding company of the Company was Prime
Century Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate holding company
of the Company was Junefield (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, and its ultimate controlling party was
Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, the former chairman and former executive
director of the Company who resigned on 22 August 2018.
Since 26 July 2018 and pursuant to the announcements of the
Company dated 1 June 2018, 22 June 2018 and 26 July 2018 in
relation to the sale and purchase of shares in the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company changed to Macrolink Group Limited (formerly
known as Macrolink International Holdings Limited, “Macrolink
Group”) and Truly Industry Investment Company Limited, which
are incorporated in Cayman Islands and BVI respectively, and its
ultimate controlling party changed to Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman
and an executive director of the Company who was appointed on
1 August 2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. 2AREEER (#)

MEAR &R

ARRZEEMBRARZEHET :

1.

EmMRL
BRREEHE
Place of
incorporation/

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BRTRBZRE
& A

Issued and

fully paid

PN
PEfhRE
BIL TEER
Percentage
of equity

NG registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
EEESR
Directly held
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited HERIHS IEZA(E ) 100 REZER
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited BVI United States dollars Investment holding
(“USD”) 1
Topshine Reward Limited RERIEE 50,000% 7T 100 REZER
Topshine Reward Limited BVI USD50,000 Investment holding
ERBRERFR A BB 5,000,000% & 100 REZER
Macrolink International Development Limited Hong Kong USD5,000,000 Investment holding
BEREE
Indirectly held
iR ER R BE 18T 100 BHFRE
Best Yield Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Securities
investments
Compariia Minera Caminante S.A.C. WE 10,000/ B R 100 B #HF - #HF -
(T=®]) FE - ERRHEK
KA BB ER B R 15
Compania Minera Caminante S.A.C. Peru Peruvian Soles Searching,
(“Soles”) 10,000 prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
ERERERAF BE 1,000,000/ 7T 100 MERE
Ever Park Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Property investment
ETERERAT B8 1387 100 D ER e
Golden Talent Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

$ B AEKXAE R DA
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REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. DAREBEHR () 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MEAR &R (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

PN
EmRL BRIRBERAE PEfh R
BERKE BRI BOkl FTEERK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
NG registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held (continued)
Grade Honor Investments Limited RERZHS 1E7T 100 & R
Grade Honor Investments Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
MAREEMERAA hE ARANE 11,000,000% 7T 60 BERIHEREMH
(DREZE] (W) (THEl
Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. The People’s USD11,000,000 Manufacture and
(“Hunan Taiji”) (Note (i) Republic of China sale of construction
(“PRC”) materials
B () BRAR ([HE (M) BB 28T 100 REER
Junefield (Building Material) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
(“Junefield Building Material”)
HBEECBEREARAA BE 10,0007 7T 100 BHFRE
Junefield High Value Metals Investments Hong Kong HK$10,000 Securities
Limited investments
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. WE 28,000& i 100 BEESNHE
RERBT M
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. Peru Soles 28,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates and
sale of parts of
mining equipment
Able Field Colombia S.A.S. etk 4,749,936,000 100 BiEE S
e ER=R
Able Field Colombia S.A.S. Colombia Colombian Peso Trading of mineral
4,749,936,000 concentrates
B AR AR BB 1787 100 REER
Link Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
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REUHHRRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. RAIREBER () 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

MEAR &R (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

PN
EmRL BRTRBERAE PEfh R
BERKE BRI BOk FTEERK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
NG registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BERE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. = 7,848,316R & 100 HEE &R
FHEER
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,848,316 Promotion and
development of real
estate projects
Minera RC S.A.C. WE 7,286,874K 8 100 BR BE.
Bx -
El R HE KK
DA R AR R ER B X 75
Minera RC S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,286,874 Searching,
prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
Talent Note Limited HBRERHE 3ETT 100 BB
Talent Note Limited BVI USD3 Investment holding
(LR BHELLERAF i 100,000% 7T 100 MERE
(TERs b E R 42 )) (B at(i)
Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency PRC USD100,000 Property agency
Co., Ltd. (*Junefield Property Agency”)
(Note (ii))
A ER T EERAR QA () i 5,000,000% 7T 100 BEES
Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading PRC USD5,000,000 Trading of mineral
Development Limited (Note (i) concentrates

Bt -

0] ZMBARIREFEERZEZMARNA LR -
(ii) g%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ%qﬂ‘)i@%iﬂﬁﬁﬁ\\?&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

$ B AEKXAE R DA

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary is registered as a contractual joint venture under the PRC law.

(if) The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the

PRC law.
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.1

RAREEEHR (&)

MEAR &R (&)
EERB/EREIIZARAMBEARH AL
BeAEEXEAEAFENARAEEE
EFEIIEND -EFRA - REHMH
BRARZABHEHEMBRITE

mREE
WESAMBHRRDREBEBTBEFMAE
([BEEMAG]) BHR2BEBRBREE
Al (T &EHBHEER ) (BEAETEMG
BELER - FAGHEL((FBGFER)
K2l REAEAAREHRAMAR - HEFK
EUBHRRTEREE R AR 2 WERE
MRS EMAR (T EMARA]) 2@
BEGR - REELEEMBHRERE  BRiR
BYENBRARERB R FEFEN - 9K
RTESLRAFERA - BRIFERINGA - E
LRSS MRABTIN®R - FrE S RE
ERELNTAET

mERBEEE
REMBRREBFARALENBAREE
—E-NAFT A=t BLEFEZMBR
R-MBARADARAERAFEZEFZE
B(ERABUEER) - EAKER2ERK
BRAIEEMBZAEHEBERRAEN
FHEN UEAHRWKRERREREED
N EmB e (BNRA BN ARKEER
RREHIE R IRE R B 2 HEES) - IR
AR B S 12 4 -

HARREESFAERERIRERARLIRAKA
ZENRERFIBLERN - RIAKER G
HERHEAHBRRENRZENIBEZE —
DHEREERER B

HEFERERARHEMREREAZANL
B

(a)

HMAEHNRBMELZERN K&

ARBZBRERERBERERE -
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BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

21

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also complied with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.1 RELE % (§) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

mEREE%E (R

B RNMMBREIUAD R ZABRRE
AREA R G RET AR - HBD
RIMEE R A S MREGEHEZ B RES
FHEC EMESIERIEZ B

ERR AR ARSEE S BERAEE
BAFRA A RIERRAE - BV bt B g5
SR IR 25 A R LA - B AR ER R
ARZMR Bz FARENEEREE &
WA BERRSRAGAEANER
3 .

HEEMBEABR EXAAEGEL =EE
RZ-BEXRZRALREY  AAKESERN
AHEE R DGR ERF o WX —HHB
NE 2 GA RS h 3R B i 3 M K AR
B RGIRAERERS -

M AREE LR E— B R R 2 - HE
HERO)ZMBARZEE (BEEE) RE
& + ()BT JEIE AR 4 25 2 BR T 1B R (i) P 2
PRz Rt E =5 TRRANEWKREZ
NEE - ()VERRBIRE 22 FE i) E
REBRELEZBBRIEL - AEBEGAE
REMEE K= ER B ILRAABEERELE
(WAEECERELEE@EESEBE) EFN
DHEEBRRSRGTEBERE(RAUEERME) °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 B HEKREERIKE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

AREBECRAFENGE BB HREKSD B REF
MO RIERT BB M B wEER

BEVBRELR ABFRFENIEFENT

FEO% 2 57T B

BB HRELEN HE
$163%

BB %R FTEIEET ~ RS A E
F1998 2 1EF]

BB G ER] RBERNBIRE &P
F28% Z1EF] R

B (BB 5 Fr S B 2.2 T T 1%
HREREBZEY)
—REF235%

BEMBHRELER FEHFHETEAES
“E-LFE-F ¥ BEUFHSE
—tFRYFEE AFE115 - BB
g3 BRE 120 REEE

FHERIE 2355 aEET

BTXEAEBEEMEREERFEI65E
FEI RMEMHT REFTEAMBRSE
EUAUAEENGFEMBRREBELEAN
FE RMBEEMBERELEAEISRNTE
FEWT

BEVBHREEZ1FRAEB S ER
FITHRIEE] B (BRVBERERER
Be)-REBFREE-—BALHEEEER
HE| FE(ERRBZES)-REF15
HIKEHE: B NEE(FREBZE
) -REFE7RFHIRBEEEREAR
ZEE | - ZEAMMR T HREMER - 5t
E BRERBENRA BRABARBE
—BERBERAELNEMEREETENE
B URRMTECAREERHERE
WA TRRBHM RN - HBEANSTREER
BEPBHREEAE 165 TEEB S ER
FATRALBEL R - HEABEERE
REFRBEGEREI7THREAUNRA - §E
DEAKEHEIREME -

HRASBEERLBEANEE - BEMBR
SRAFICHRHAEEBEEATE
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DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycles

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
16, the adoption of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs
has had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The principal effects for adopting HKFRS 16 are as
follows:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 77 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.

HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DISCLOSURES (continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the
date of initial application. Contracts that were not identified as
leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for properties. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as operating leases based on
the assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially
all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach to
recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
all leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-
value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by
class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance
costs, if any).
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DISCLOSURES (continued)
Impact on transition

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

The leased asset was assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-of-
use assets separately in the statement of financial position. This
includes the leasehold land recognised previously under operating
leases of HK$17,963,000 that were reclassified from prepaid land
lease payments as at 1 January 2019. There were no ongoing
payment obligations under the terms of the land lease, therefore,
no lease liabilities were recognised at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation) previously included in
investment properties and measured at fair value, the Group has
continued to include them as investment properties at 1 January
2019. They continue to be measured at fair value applying HKAS
40.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a
lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22 €T HERHNINE (8) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
R-CE—hE— A —HHBEEE Financial impact at 1 January 2019
E’\\ig NE—H—B HRAEEMBERS The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January
ERIFE1RH T EBIN NERAT ¢ 2019 was as follows:
#gm, CRD)
Increase/
(decrease)
FERT
HK$’000
BE Assets
EREEENEMA Increase in right-of-use assets 17,963
B LA E R IER R R Decrease in prepaid land lease payments (17,963)
BwEENEINE Increase in total assets -
RZE—NLF—A—HHNHEEEEEN_F The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
—NF+_ A=+ HHNEEHEREYR operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as
U follows:
FHERT
HK$’000
R N\E+_-_A=+—HEHEDN Operating lease commitments disclosed as
KR EAE at 31 December 2018 156
B EREHe - EHEE Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases (156)
RZE—NF—A—HEREFEBY® Lease liabilities upon application of HKFRS 16
HmEEF1REANEEAR as at 1 January 2019 =

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
ﬁ!ﬁ{El NMEEZ2EEFHEEHR 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of Material’

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23 M EBENAENMZ2EEMAEIHR 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
SR (4F) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting.
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not
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- expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
EBE TR E A F10E R E S S|SB Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an

inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
NEMTHBEEEEHMA AL profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
BRI EREREEENIEBRNETEDZ - & in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
STERARBREER SEetaen applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
GRIN— B — S — BFEIL B B AR B amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
B0 R E A A FogH (T ——F) by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
(EET) e BTRISR 4 A 2 B HY 5 #9284 A 3k date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
B e N EBMANERALPENeHE of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
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Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
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of information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 TESHBERE 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

DNFREFE

RERERR AEREEQIFEFEEERE
MERBEARERE - A FHE/TIHLEERE
ERHEAERFRR P HEEEMSIREZR
BEMNHNER - A FEFEDRERR
HEEERERABNRINEEXREE
EMSEHE(ERETEMSERLT) RABEM
BETMEL - T2XZAEBEMHBARAN
SEEAZTS -BEXBBENRFET
BRIMG2EENEEXRETERSNU
MERELENDITENE -

FEMEEZAVEENEEMSLEE
BREREEEZ&ERAREREAHE L
ETHEREENRSAREREZS—T
B2mE - MEEMELLBENEZ R

AEBEFEBEAR RIS Z EEKM -
Eﬁia’]éﬂpﬁrg/‘$@ A %ﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁf‘ﬁ

BRGABBELEERIERATIERE
)\%ﬁ(?ﬁi

FIBEEATEHNGEVERRAENEE
ZEERBEUEREHSEATEFESEEMNE
BEAEEEGAZ2H(RUATHEL) 555
EAFESHHE

& m|| il

F—H — REEREEXEENGE
M5 R RE CRAE)

£ — RBREHAFEFENEBE
ARZABE (ERXMEE) &
EE@m A2 ZBETA

H

[l

2
|

REHATEN BT = EE
A2 ATBREREEEHAS
B2 %

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

KA FERE LT H TEHTE Freehold land Not depreciated

EF 20E=304F Buildings 20 to 30 years

HEYHEEE TAHISeF & 2B EE Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms

and 6 years

= & i B8 4ZE126F Plant and machinery 4 to 12 years

N 5% Office equipment 5 years

TEHE 3E64F Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years

M  BENLZBEBR 2K ILES B THE Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

ZT}EHEEHE AlsZTBE 2R S I8 2 B different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
Tl EREKID - FEEK DB L& reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

%ﬁ% o BE(F - Tﬁﬁfﬁﬁ}%&?ﬁ%ﬁﬁé DPRE separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

EFBFERERETRS RFHE(NER) -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
(2018: leasehold property under an operating lease) which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B EE (BEKRN) (F)

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

AERATHER B EERST FTIZER Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
RREeELEBEMERBIR ZEENEE impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
PTEE FHERCEREECNFERS unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life

HRNEFEEN WETERFHZFGEE
BB S - MAFER 5 - BIA] £ A F 5
ZHEBUHRRERFHERNRSERFHA
B o

of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

RIER#E Mining rights
HERIRK AP RER - EBAF BB RAK Mining rights are initially measured at cost. The carrying amount

BERGEDMEEELOBATE  #FK
FHEECHRAESEN D BRRERE - &
BBIR A A F 2 KBRS R At 5
REMEHREBERAK ABEBRAH
FHZRBRDABH ZGARERERE
EBETIAEH -

B RRTFIEEE

RERERE - BRI EEEAKARE
B MERERR  WRRFEEEARAE
MEMRREBEAR DRMFIEEE
BREVRBZIRAARSERBEERIANE
ERRZEERZEMAIITIEREEAIITT
BB zAX BEARERRZEREERR
ZEMAIITE R EAITIER - 2 AR

BHREMFEEEETDBRRENEERY
X BEERE HWFEEEEH D EAE
AHERE - AR EE BN IR ER -

HE(H=FE-hF-A—-BELEH)

EEHNRGEE AREFHAOEERTEE
FBEEHE MREVFEE —BREHEARK
Rl E B R R R IR AR BB - BIB A
SAHEEXBEHEE -

KEEFEBABEA

AEBHMAEHERRE -—HAMAES
% HEHHEREEEEEMEERN - K
SEBRIAELHEHENRENHERE UK
REMBEEERENERAEEE -
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of exploration and evaluation assets is reclassified to mining rights
when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. The mining rights with finite
useful lives are amortised on a unit of production basis over the
estimated economic reserve of the mine.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include the
cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrated, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment
properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

b)) HEEEE) (b)  Lease liabilities (continued)
EEHEENFENRER - BREE In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
EEBREHEANSMNE REERAH Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
REE A B I8 S (85K F R EITE commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
=2 -HEHEHMABBE 2% EMNEES lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
BENSEARMAE - BAOESEUAR date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
MESHBERNRE - B4 WEHE the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
BREE MEANE L  HENHE made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
& &4 (B a0 48 Bk bt B B B L B 3 remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
REMENFENE) REEHEAER term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
EZEEENTGHERNE(L  NEEE lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
ENFEHEEENEESRE - or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

(c) FHEHHE (c) Short-term leases
AEBEKEREERRAREERRNEY The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
¥WEMEE (AEHEERMASLE - A exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that
SR ERARNEE - B is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
PEEEEERE) less from the commencement date and do not contain a

purchase option).

RHEENHEENREEHERANZRR Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
BEREERAER - expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

AEFELBLHEAAN Group as a lessor

EAKERLEA  ERBEERGHE (R H
BHEEHR) SESHES I BAKEHER

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either

MEHEE -

an operating lease or a finance lease.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are
accounted for as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24 FEETHEME (8) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

HEGERANR=-Z—hE—H—HH) Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)
(&) (continued)

EEMEHEE HBANKB ZEEEAR
BEREAR  EREMGAIFEAFHANE -

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

NEEMERZEBARE D EH &R S H
HMAREZBD OESEERE - HAK
BSEEA AEEREEEHENHAZE
ENAFRDEENRN  MELHEE 2 EYHE
T DIREEHRUNEREIAGEERR
NemMAKRERAEA KEHEZEMNE
& (KB WHEBEAZEFER) EHEHRR
ANREHREEFEBRERTRE -

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

BIELEHETRN D ERIBE IR A Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially

SRR - RRAINEBAANAEREER -

RERHEMEMEE
46 BB A 5t B

stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

ERERE - 2 BAED AR
RO B - UAT(ENEARSBH AL
2ERERAR T EE 2 AR BB

N
S o
g

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

EREERNBERRNDBIRREME
ENAHNRESRERBURAEEEESR
BENEGEREA -BRABSEABREXRD K
AEBERAEREBRENTEATHEX
MEX DT EEHFHENRUKERIN - K
KB AERFEFESREE  ORT
RARFEAEEEEFAABENERE
E-RAERNERXZER KREBSEARE
D RANEEERBEREFBRIENTTEN

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
FEWBR AR IR B B B 5 3 & R 1557 4R receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
BTIXWABRIMBEBERETHNR S ERS or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
= o measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”).

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RERHMEMEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

#ETE (B Subsequent measurement (continued)
URFEFEAREEZEARMEE Wz HY Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
THEE (BEFLA) (debt instruments)

BEANRAFEFEAHEH T AEME2EK For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
EHEBIRE - FERA - INEEMRFE income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
EEIEREREIEERANER  FEAE impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated

BB R AT BN MAEMR - T2
TESBHEL LR ERENER - RELLE
RE EEMGREREAERN ZEATE
rrrrrrr BHUBTHABEAE -

EERURFEFEARZGFARMEEH
Waka) 2 @ EE (RAKE)
ENHERE  ARERAEERIERH M
BRI E NI HHEL D B RIEERARFE
AEREREHAAEMEZERENRAR
B HEREEESERFER2R /T
B SIS ATANESE - n BVIRER
TEEEMERE -

ZECREENRBEMNERXTEBEHRE
B R o R TR MRS - B2 S AE R

statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are

MEENERAIERATNEBR BRSNS recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
BRI M ER  REAGEGESRAER profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
HEMBRAER HEASEEAKDERE probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend

B D5 B T 15 BB SB e F2s - AU
Bl - ERERT - AR B R K A
2EMER - T RN AT EEE RS
SR 2 M BN R A AT A
S -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

# & X B R A 7

will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 TTEEHHEME () 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ERMEERE

REBBABELIFARFEFAELEZEHE
AERBENES I ABREREEESRE
(EHREEEER BE BHREEBBEREN
AREERBHBONRERNZFEN  RIE
BHRKNEHNESREEBAWERNMAE
BeRECANEZRLER BHESRE
REEROEMRERMESHRSRE - U
KB A #GRAK D 7 H A= R AR P
EENHEESRE -

— R HE

TEHEEEBEES MERERETER - 518
VREREL REEEZENMNEERR @ 50
BERARZR12( A AR E L BT R TEH
EEBIE(2EABHEESR) - B a
IRFEREEBEE NN EERR - ARtiEH
EFRSgFERANRENEEREBRRTIZE
BEE  THELHSHNMIURNRE (BREGFE
HEHEEREE) -

AEEESERSAFEERTANERE
AR ETECBELN - EEHFT
R AEEeLBReM T AERS A
HEEANEARESR T AENGBBEREEE
BHONRER AEEEEEEANKTISE
MBEINKAK B DA SN EEABKRIE
MER BRELKAEEEER -

AEERSONRBHAOVRN SR EERIE
ERQ R EETHERT - BAEESNEP
EEBRRAKEANKNAEERKRE R MHE
N8 R RAKERFOHEAERER
Al - AEBENAEREREEREY - EE
EEFEHAKEOSNESRER SREE

RAFEFEAEEH A ARMEE KR
BEHRRERNBERAAENEREERAR
B—RIDEFERE  RERERIRAOE
ERABICHEFRTX) N EREHE
EEEAEDBERNIATHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.
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POLICIES (continued)

cRMEERE (&) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
—RHE (&) General approach (continued)
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For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group calculates ECLs of accounts receivable that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A=K Financial liabilities
EAXERRIE Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies
and financial guarantee contract.
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POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: () the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out
in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.
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POLICIES (continued)

cRAasE (&) Financial liabilities (continued)
H#E (&) Subsequent measurement (continued)
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The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties, which are
held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The cost of completed properties for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period
when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net
realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all

EEX%%%?EFHEZE?EEE BEREBECHEZ temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
EHRERFMER  BRRABRETRELETIE the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
B o for financial reporting purposes.

EHERTNERUEEZRYEBRAELEHRIE Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
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differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxable authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sale of mineral concentrates, coal and parts of
mining equipment is recognised at a point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

Revenue from sale of properties are recognised when effective
control of ownership of the properties is transferred to the buyer,
which is the point in time upon completion of the transfer of legal
title to the buyer.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Management fee income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the
asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operated a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. Further details of share options are given in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards,
but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

HiuEERF Other employee benefits
Bk E Pension scheme
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the
PRC, Peru and Ecuador are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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AN (4F) Foreign currencies (continued)

BINE 2R KAFTECIEERIER KRB X Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
RHEBZIERBRE - INERNTHEFEZEZ cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
IFEBIBEEREE AFEEAZERKBE - rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
BREZATEFEZIEBEEEE 2 W measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
REEREERBEE ATEES 2 WS E the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
B—8ohNEE (AR EM 2K E B The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
FHRANFERENEENELEZRE T measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
IR EMmEE K ENBEER) gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation

difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

AETHINNBARZINEEEE BB TTIAIINZ The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
Bl NG HEERE  ZEERBZEE currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
LEERREHEERBZIERBRE AB reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
L MZERR ZBRRIEAFE 2 MEF translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing
HEERBE BT - at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit

or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

FrEAEZELEZREEMEERKEPER - The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
WA R RE BT R o HEBINER comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
B EEZEEEIIEB 2 EMEEKES fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
D EEmATRER o component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

AR ERERME  BINEBRARZH For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
CREEREREZACERRE BB T - cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
HHINIBRARREEAFEZETERESRE dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Al AN FENEFHERBRE BT o Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which

arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable and other financial assets

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available. For
financial assets at amortised cost other than accounts receivable,
the Group applies the general approach which is also referred to
the “three stage” model. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast of economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are disclosed in note 20 and note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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3. EAEHHE RLS(E) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
ME - BERFZRE 2O E HEH Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
AEEEEEBEECMAAEAFTFHRE The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
BT ERX - Mt DIREBMEE RIaEER and consequently related depreciation charges. This estimate is
M BMEAKZEER]FEAFHNAT based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
LEMIEL - Erl e g AR M A3 RFEF L property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
FERREMNTEBABRMETSMBEEAL It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
b WaEAFHR NG AE - BIE and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
BEEgRAMERAS BRI BRIER Management will increase the deprecation charge where useful
JEE Sk HH ' O FF 3R B & 2 SR SO o W3 - lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off
BEREER=ZZE—NLF+_A=+—RHZ or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
8RB 4 599,104,000 T (=& — )\ F : have been abandoned or sold. The carrying amount of property,
122,045,000/ 70) © # —FFFBE NG plant and equipment at 31 December 2019 is approximately
B KRMIFE13 HK$99,104,000 (2018: HK$122,045,000). Further details are
included in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
HBMEFTEE -—HKEREULEERET Impairment of other intangible assets — Mining
HEEZRE rights and exploration and evaluation assets
REEARDREERTIHEECEREERNA The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
EMRIBR 2 EE R L E LN EREE evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
RELRERT AEESZEEMEEELE changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
ZEERBANABZESTERBEARE R be recoverable. The Group considers all facts and circumstances
AREEALRMERTGEEE 2 REE 8 occurred to judge whether these facts and circumstances
ZHEBEYE S (BB RE) - fl i E would suggest that the carrying amounts of mining rights and
CRAEATEBLEEXAREREEM exploration and evaluation assets may exceed their recoverable
E2REE - FREBENTHERAEEFT amounts (i.e. impaired). The recoverable amount is the higher of
HREBReELEBNMBHARRRERE - its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
UREZESENTREEUGFEZSREMNE the value in use requires the Group to estimate the expected
WIRREE - E—PHBHNEE W B mE future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose
f5E16 o a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EBEA THAZECEHBEERERN T8
[ 7B 1B & & 2R FE =R B0 F Al A8 H IR &Y B R
FOKFEEHERAEG -R=2FE—hF+=A8
=+—H HEBERHREEBEEEBIELET
THEE 2 BREEAAE347,0008 T (ZE— N
% : 349,000/ 7L) - #E—FFFIBEHNEGEE Y
ERERMIFEST -
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.4
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
investment properties at 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$73,850,000 (2018: HK$74,367,000). The fair value of
investment properties, set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, are determined with reference to valuations
performed by independent professional qualified valuers. Such
valuations are made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the end of the reporting period.
These estimates are compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2019
was approximately HK$347,000 (2018: HK$349,000). Further
details are included in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT-NAF+_A=t—BLEFE(RETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

7 &8 & #
HEEEMNMES  AEBEREBBEMZEM
KRS DB THNE2HREEDE

A
pus

(@) MERERBRSE HELBERHEE

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has six reportable
and operating segments as follows:

(@) the property investment and development segment engages

7 in leasing and sale of properties;
b) HENHEEEMHIE  HERHER (b) the manufacture and sale of construction materials segment
SHERSH engages in the manufacture and sale of slag powder;
) BHREDE RELMEFKRE (c) the securities investments segment engages in investing in
listed securities;
) HBEEZHH NREREEZS (d) the trading of mineral concentrates segment engages in the

() HRFRDE - HERBRFFE 2R
KA RBEERIAREE - &

() EoE RERBRETIIHEE -

EREEBRVERAER I LENEEE - A
FHEHREEERDERRIRTFMEZRE -
*Bi@iﬁ)ﬂﬂ%i# DB IEET A ﬁ’ﬁ
R 2B A5 48 Bl DA 48 58 2 Bk B AT i
f' /J?E'ﬂ@.ﬁri HCHBEBRBIAEF,BERZ
EAREAEEZRBAEERAEFIR—
B AR EL T ABRITAERARE

trading of mineral concentrates;

(e) the coal mining segment engages in the exploration and
development of coal mines concessions and mining for sale
of coal; and

(f)  the others segment engages in the sale of parts of mining
equipment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that bank interest income and

AR DEBARKE BBEXAS - HEEG L other unallocated income and gains, finance costs, fair value loss
ANREEEEUAREMASE BRERLE on future contracts as well as other unallocated head office and
B - corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

NEEETBEREEMIEBEELEE RekRe Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash

FEY  BWEEARFEAREMADE
BERERMEEEE AR/RFEENRE
BEEERE -

equivalents, amounts due from related companies and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

P) %B’Ef@ &%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%%ﬁ - B Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
BE R A B ERENUREMARS borrowings, amounts due to related companies, financial
E?@#ﬂ#%&ﬁ&’ilﬁﬁ AezEa’dlhiE guarantee contract and other unallocated head office and
SEEEE corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DERELE Segment results
REBZRERDBED 2 DI EESTWT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment results by reportable segment
is as follows:
BE-_ZE—hAG+-A=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2019
NERE #5  HER#E i1 | R
R&%E k& BEis g% S 2 it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development  investments materials  concentrates mining Others Total
Tin Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PG Segment revenue:
DREFIHE/LEE Sales to/revenue from exteral customers” 9,533 - - 318,148 2,128 7,684 337,493
REWA Investment income = 346 o = - - 346
RARRERAEE Total revenue and investment income 9,533 346 - 318,148 2,128 7,684 337,839
AREE Segment results (1,487) 343 (24,166) (2,281) (12,603) (2,839) (43,033)
RARSMAREMASE  Bank interest income and other
WARKE unallocated income and gains 42,304
ERREMRIERT Corporate and other unallocated expenses (21,358)
HEANATEEE Fair value loss on future contracts (75,763)
AORYBRE Unallocated finance costs (4,293)
BHAES Loss before tax (102,143)

R AR 2 SHE M RIE - MU EAEHEAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

Since the amount of intersegment sales is insignificant, no reconciliation has
been made.
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DITER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DERELE () Segment results (continued)
BHE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2018
S &5 REREE B Eix
& k& BEME g5 RR i gt
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development investments materials  concentrates mining Others Total

TiET TiET TiET TiET TiET TET TET
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§'000

Al Segment revenue:

NREEZHE /L5 Sales to/revenue from extemal customers® 7914 = = 169,873 657 6,222 184,666
REWA Investment income - % - - i } %8
WARRE M Total revenue and investment income 7914 38 - 169,873 657 6,222 184,704
PHEE Segment results (9,171) 188 (66,694) (20,401) (21,686) (5,542) (118,306)

BINEMAREAAE Bank interest income and other unallocated

WA R income and gains 2553
SERAMADERX Corporate and other unallocated expenses (18,824)
APRHHAA Unallocated finance costs (10,088)
WHAER Loss before tax (139,665)

RO M 2 tHE M B8 - I EEH YR - * Since the amount of intersegment sales is insignificant, no reconciliation has
been made.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. HEWER ()

N

AEEEZZ

THEEREBURHEMDIESR

REMDEIWERIHAOT

BE-ZE—hE+-—A=+—HILEE

4.

DEEDZDWEERBEINA

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities and other segment

information

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities and
other segment information by reportable segment is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

NERE HERHE
RER #5RE BEH RRES RRER 2 @it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development  investments materials  concentrates mining Others Total
TR ThR THER THR THR TR THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERER: Assets and liabilities:
NBBE Segment assets 83,114 19,781 65,062 33,381 20,907 5,338 208,083
ERREMAIREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 101,178
BEE Total assets 329,261
ABafk Segment liabilties 41,633 - 12,891 466 565 4,721 60,276
EEREMANRAE Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 90,018
Baf Total liabilties 150,294
EpAdEs: Other segment information:
RESNBRZTEREH Depreciation and amortisation
charged in profit or loss 2,915 - 4,901 129 561 h 8,511
SEREMANEES Corporate and other unallocated amounts o
8,782
RENFATENS Fair value gains on investment properties (63) - - - - - (63)
W% BERZEFESE  Impament loss on property,
plant and equipment - - 13,224 - - - 13,224
31 V] Write-down of inventories - - - - 1,994 - 1,994
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (H) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
THEEREGBUEEMS FER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
(58) information (continued)
BE-ZE—hhE+=-A=+—HILEFEEE) Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
NERE HERHE
R%E RERE BEmH FRES RRER B it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development  investments materials  concentrates mining Others Total

TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HhEVAERERR Impaiment loss on other intangble assets - - - - 6,570 - 6,570
EREFRESRER/ Provision/reversal) of impairment loss on
(EE) % accounts receivable, net 107 - - - (59) 365 43
B E  REREMERFE  Reversal of impairment loss on
HEFEERTE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, net - - - (162) (166) (116) (444)
SEREMRIELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 9
(#42)
HENF  BERZAEERE (Loss)/gain on disposal of items of property,
(B8) /s plant and equipment ) - - - 93 - %2
SEREMRARLE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 49
1,011
AR Capital expenditure’ 3 = - - - - 38
SEREMASEEE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 29
67
§ BARZBREABEME BEREELREMELE G Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment

E - and other intangible assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
OE B E A F R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



mEMBHRERNE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

;G R (F) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

=
\

ﬁ_—} NEENEBEUREMS I ER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
(48) information (continued)
BEZT - \F+ZA=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2018
nERE HER
RERE BRRE  HEREMH REZS Birf# Hf )
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development  investments materials  concentrates mining QOthers Total
AL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL AL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREE: Assets and liabilities:
PHEE Segment assets 87,034 508 84,682 11,383 33,040 6,382 223 479
EERENAPREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 169,915
BEE Total assets 393,304
NGB Segment liabilities 43,217 = 14,172 11,150 692 4,034 73,925
EBREMANRAE Corporate and other unallocated liabilties 59,602
BaE Total liabilities 133,527
EpAdEs: Other segment information:
RERAB 2 TEREH Depreciation and amortisation charged in
profit or loss 2,948 - 18,838 140 2,149 5 24,080
SEREMAAEES Corporate and other unallocated amounts 780
24,860
REMFATEYE Fair value gains on investment properties (885) - - - - - (885)
e BERZEHEER  Impament loss on property, plant
and equipment - - 4,251 - - - 4,251
FEHA Write-down of inventories - - - - 3,894 - 3,894
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
THEEREGBUEEMS FER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
(#8) information (continued)
BHE_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HIEFE(E) Year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
VESE HER
RER ERRE HEREMH REZS BRFER 2 it
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development investments materials  concentrates mining QOthers Total

TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EtEREERNEER Impairment loss on other intangible assets - - 28,245 - 8,865 - 37,110
EREZFESE (EE)/  (Reversal/provision of impairment loss on
BEEE accounts receivable, net (61) - = = 60 14 13
BAFE R REM (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss
FEWZERESE(EE)/ o prepayments, deposits and other
BEEE receivables, net - (213) - 21,456 1,985 423 23,651
SEREMRAREE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 302
23,953
sz BER Write-off of items of property, plant
HIERE and equipment = - - - 304 - 304
HENE BERFEEEWE  Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment - - - - 1,499 - 1,499
ERRY Capital expenditure* 5 - - 12 888 2 907
SEREMADELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts )
936
5 BARASBERENE BERREREMELE 3 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment
=30 and other intangible assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRERNE ()
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
i & & ¥ Geographical information
(a) KEINREFZHA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=s) PRC 317,354 173,904
W Peru 20,139 10,762
BB Hong Kong 346 38
337,839 184,704
Pt AR TR R BT 9 48 o The revenue information above is based on the location of

the customers.

(b) FREEE (b) Non-current assets

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
H PRC 136,726 157,013
WE Peru 68,027 78,280
SEM Australia = 508
BB Hong Kong 70 213
B % Ecuador 194 376
Ffmt Colombia - 13
205,017 236,403

LI R EEER VIR EERE S The non-current assets information above is based on the

*7 o location of assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEEHR (F)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

EBRFTEEREF2EH Information about major customers
REAHRRERFP EXBBALNERE Revenue from customers of corresponding periods contributing
EEEI0% I ERIAT ¢ over 10% of total revenue of the Group is as follows:
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EPA(EBLBEEE S D) Customer A (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 80,335 =
EFPB(EIEBESE S 9 E0) Customer B (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 54,975 93,535
EEC(EERBREEZES D) Customer C (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 47,027 -
XPD(EIEREE S E0) Customer D (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) N/A! 23,314
BPE(EREBEEZ S D E0) Customer E (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) - 39,574
L HERRATBBAAREE AU A10% ° 1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Group’s total

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMKARIWEF 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
AEBZWADHTAT : An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
F#& T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
LON Revenue
EFEEHKA Revenue from contracts with customers
tHE fE R Sale of mineral concentrates 318,148 169,873
SHEREREST M Sale of parts of mining equipment 7,684 6,222
HEYE Sale of properties 5,022 3,883
8 & B IR Sale of coal 2,128 657
332,982 180,635
K EE KT P A Revenue from other sources
HE W A Bz Gross rental income 4,511 4,031
NFEEME - FEE Fair value gains, net:
UAFEFTEEHEEET AER Equity investments at fair value through
2R E profit or loss 346 38
4,857 4,069
337,839 184,704

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REUHHRRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMKARIWE () 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

EEESHNWRANDE Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
BE-_Z-—hAGF+-A=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2019
MERE
RER RRES 1 1% B 5 Hith @t
Property
investment Trading of
and mineral Coal
28 Segment development concentrates mining Others Total
TERT TERT TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EmRREER Types of goods and services
HERE Sale of mineral concentrates - 318,148 - - 318,148
HERBR BT HMHT Sale of parts of mining equipment = = = 7,684 7,684
HENR Sale of properties 5,022 - - - 5,022
HERK Sale of coal - - 2,128 - 2,128
EFENBAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
BT 5 Geographical markets
Hh PRC - 312,127 - 716 312,843
e Peru 5,022 6,021 2,128 6,968 20,139
EFENBAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
BARZEE Timing of revenue recognition
EE—FH At a point in time 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
E—REBR Over time - - = = =
EFENBAESE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMIKARUKZ (8) 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

BEFEHBAND # (&)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

BHE_Z-\FT+_A=+—HILFE

customers (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018

MERE
RER ERE S R R Hity Bt
Property
investment Trading of
and mineral Coal
28 Segment development  concentrates mining Others Total
FiET TAETL TAT FTAET FTiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EnkBREER Types of goods and services
HERE Sale of mineral concentrates = 169,873 = = 169,873
HERERES M Sale of parts of mining equipment = = = 6,222 6,222
HEME Sale of properties 3,883 - - - 3,883
HER R Sale of coal - - 657 _ 657
EFAHMALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
& m 5 Geographical markets
s PRC - 169,873 - - 169,873
& Peru 3,883 - 657 6,222 10,762
EFAHMALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
WA R Timing of revenue recognition
EE—EY At a point in time 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
E—BEER Over time = - - - -
EFAHMALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635

TRIIMNBREBVEEESNEBELRNA
REMAERNKRA DS

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

—E-NF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

FHET TATT

HK$’000 HK$’000

HEE M Sale of goods 1,853 6,644
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REUHHRRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMKARIWE () 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

BEFEEHNWAND R (& Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

DEEHTENBENRSEBREERARG The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

R —FANERBIA - performance obligations are expected to be recognised as

revenue within one year.

AREFZHMBWARKZSTOT : An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:
—E-NF —E—N\F
2019 2018
FET FH T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Heb g A R K= Other income and gains
AT B A Bank interest income 1,178 439
B W ER B8 (M1 7£39(a)) Compensation received (note 39(a)) 33,510 -
HEME - BERZHEEB K= Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 1,011 1,499
H A F) B A Other interest income 088 2,412
EEBWA Management fee income 2,469 554
B A R e s Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,320 -
fE N Uz R %A Net foreign exchange gains 800 =
FAFEMBIBEBMBERERBRS Over-provision of other tax and levies
in prior years 2,794 -
H At Others 72 318
46,142 5,222

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
6. OPERATING LOSS

AEBZELEBRELNR, GIA)

The Group’s operating loss is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-NEF —E—N\F
2019 2018
iora FET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BERAAX Employee benefits expense
(T"EREEEHE) (excluding directors’ remuneration) (i)
e IENEMEYRET Salaries, wages and other benefits
in kind 22,383 24,056
RORAE N ET B 50 Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes 2,339 2,270
24,722 26,326
% 2 A B Auditors’ remuneration 900 950
E b B B Amortisation of other intangible assets
—HERE A — supplier contract (ii) - 6,272
FEA £t FA & FRIE 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments _ 455
FHEEEZINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 437 _
PR 8H Amortisation of mining rights
(FFASHE RRBEKAA) (included in cost of sales and services) 9 61
FERABERRBAX Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense (iv) 329,145 176,078
WEME - WERZREEE Write-off of items of property, plant and
equipment (ii) - 324
ME - BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (i) 8,336 18,072
PE % & 18 F =8 Exchange losses, net - 9,811
JE U BR FUR B B 1B B R F B Provision of impairment loss on accounts
receivable, net (i) 413 13
FENRIE - e kEM (Reversal)/provision of impairment loss
JE U SRIB R (B &5 18 on prepayments, deposits and other
($m) BEFHE receivables, net (ii) (442) 23,953
Y BER&EREEE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (ii) 13,224 4,251
KREHEBETTABE T RET Minimum lease payments under operating
2 IR ERIE leases in respect of land and buildings = 168
BRI REFOHEER Lease payments relating to short-term
MEKEE leases in respect of land and buildings 324 -
HEEHNTFEERE Fair value loss on future contracts (v) 75,763 -
BREMERS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (4,511) (4,031)
R Less:
FRAERBSUWAZKREMZE Direct operating expenses incurred for
EEXCEELERY investment properties that generated
rental income during the year 69 139
(4,442) (3,892)
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MBHRRME (E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B=E

—NE+ZA=+—BLEFECABTINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. WEHAE (H) 6. OPERATING LOSS (continued)

e - Notes:

(i) 12 B @A M X 4561,0008 7 (=ZF — N\ F: 0] Employee benefits expense of HK$561,000 (2018: HK$4,322,000) and
4,322,000/ 7T) &%24,161,0008 7T (=& — )\ 4 : HK$24,161,000 (2018: HK$22,004,000) were charged to cost of sales and
22,004,000 7C) B 9 Blat ASHE KRB AN A K& services and administrative expenses respectively.

THRER -

(ii) EBFEFAGRERRR 2 [EbEEa HF5E] (ii) Amounts are included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated
A e statement of profit or loss.

(iii) 3T E #4954,0008 70 (Z 2 — )\ 4 : 671,000/ 70) - (iii) Depreciation of approximately HK$54,000 (2018: HK$671,000),
4,111,000 7T (=& — J\4F : 5,694,000/ 7¢) & HK$4,111,000 (2018: HK$5,694,000) and HK$4,171,000 (2018:
4 171,000/ 7t (== — /A4 : 11,707,000/8 7T) & HK$11,707,000) were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses

DRFFATERA  THREANUREMEE T H and other operating expenses respectively.
A o

(iv) ABEFEBREFEMA1,994,0008 7T (ZE— N\ vy  The amount included write-down on inventories of approximately
F : 3,894,000/ 7T) HK$1,994,000 (2018: HK$3,894,000).

(v) NREFH-_ZT-HLF=-FEHABEETELLE (v) The Group commenced to invest in nickel future contracts which are traded
BREHEGHN  ERLEHERSHES - 5% in The Shanghai Futures Exchange from March 2019 through a broker in the
RIRERKIERS) > RAEER  KEBEGRESHE PRC. In view of the wide volatility of the price of nickel, the Group incurred
BREERNTEBERELT5,763,0008 T (ZF fair value loss on nickel future contracts in an amount of approximately
—NE: 8) R_T—NEFE+=-—BA=+—8 'K HK$75,763,000 (2018: Nil) during the year. As at 31 December 2019, the
SETEFEEMEREEL - Group has no nickel future contracts on hand.

7. BB RA 7. FINANCE COSTS

MBRARDSHTIT - An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

—2-h&E —T-N\F
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

ARAEFANBHEECRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
EMEEFR S repayable within five years 3,668 3,234
EMERZHEH Loan arrangement fee for other loan 625 1,500
EI?F@— REHFHNERF B Effective interest on convertible bonds = 5,354
4,293 10,088

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EERFEMTHAEME 8.

Rz Em R BFBEQAEHISE383(1)(@)
(o) RHERAB (BBREFNEER) R
PIEHRBELFANEERTETRAENS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

W Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

FHET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

we Fees 540 660
EH A - Other emoluments:

Fe RUREDH= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,752 2,615

RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 56 3

1,808 2,646

2,348 3,306

(@) BAFHTES
FRAENTBYFATESZR/ESN

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

T the year were as follows:

—E-AEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

WwWE Fees:
MRE R AE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 180 180
BT L Mr. Cao Kuangyu 180 180
REELAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 180 180
540 540

B Lt 4N - A H (e (B L 3k
HOTES M (T —NF: &) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

Apart from the above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2018: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EENTFTEITHAEME (8 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) MITEE - kHTEERFTENT (b) Executive directors, a non-executive director
BAE and the chief executive
54 FEER
we BEYAZE EARGTEIHER M <& 5t
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
FE T FET FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-hEF 2019
HITES - Executive directors:
HEELE Mr. Fu Kwan = 120 - 120
REFRE Mr. Zhang Jian = 120 - 120
RNE g 4 Mr. Zhang Bishu - 120 - 120
Blggzt Ms. Liu Jing - 1,092 47 1,139
PR B2 4 A Mr. Chan Yeuk = 120 - 120
BEANGLE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
- 1,752 56 1,808
—E-)N\F 2018
HITES - Executive directors:
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan = 50 = 50
RIBSEE Mr. Zhang Jian = 650 = 650
RMERE Mr. Zhang Bishu = 50 = 50
28F & Ms. Liu Jing = 375 16 391
FeR B2 5T A Mr. Chan Yeuk = 50 = 50
BEALE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
BERM L E Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He - 120 6 126
REREE Mr. Zhang Min = 900 = 900
MERAT 8 &£ Mr. Xiang Xianhong - 120 - 120
EE L Mr. Lei Shuguang - 120 - 120
- 2,615 31 2,646
EHITESE - Non-executive director:
Jorge Edgar Jose Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose
Mufiiz Ziches %t 4= Muniz Ziches 120 - - 120
120 2,615 31 2,766

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
OE B E A F R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



REUBHRRWME(E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=T—BUEFEGETINIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EENFEITHAEME (8) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) MITEE - FHITESEREETT (b) Executive directors, a non-executive director
BAB (&) and the chief executive (continued)
BELE  RESXE  RLUELE - Z Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing
BT ERRBREENR_ZE—N\NFENA— and Mr. Chan Yeuk were appointed as executive directors
HEZEARNITES - on 1 August 2018.
BRgMEE  RERSTA - MBALT A R Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, Mr. Zhang Min, Mr. Xiang Xianhong
EBYXEER_E—NFNAZ-TZ= and Mr. Lei Shuguang resigned as executive directors on 22
A& E# 1T £ F ° Jorge Edgar Jose August 2018. Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose Mufiz Ziches resigned
Mufiiz Zichest &R =—Z— \FE/\ A as a non-executive director on 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhang
ZTZHBEERTES - KREREAER Min resigned as the chief executive of the Company on 22
ZE-NFNAZFTZHBEARRAT August 2018.
TRAEH
EXFIREN TG TFRITEST 25 Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
©EMEREMFE—RAREZEALT executive directors shown above are generally emoluments
BEANRRENB AR EEKMIEMRD in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
H b ARG RO ET BN o with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
NABWER AR LHE - BFEESK There was no arrangement under which a director or the
FETBRABRFRREREBNER chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
e (ZZE—NF : §\) - during the year (2018: Nil).
9. IfUBEHEER 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
REE AfimamEBEERE NES(ZE The five highest paid employees during the year include one
—N\F: —f71) - FzBeFFBEEN LXXHE (2018: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
8o A T (—E—)\F : W) RS ES in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
(EARRBBEXNTETHAE) REAEEZ remaining four (2018: four) highest paid employees who are
MeFBERTX neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e RMEEWH S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,292 3,427
RRETEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 149 93
4,441 3,520
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mEMBHRKRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HIEFE B TIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9. EVEBEHFES (8) 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
ERTIMeEBMIEESERIEETZITHA The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
EnaHEEHBELT : employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:
EEAH

Number of employees
—E-nE —T-N\F
2019 2018
0— 1,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 3
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 1
4 4

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in

10. FifEHIER
ERNEBRIEF LR BEBELZ B E
BB FIIR16.5% (B —/\F 1 16.5%) ZH
FE BB o H AR BUR R 2 BB T
BAEBEEEBHEREEBE 2RI

K5 -

which the Group operates.

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BVER— &% Current — Hong Kong
FEER Charge for the year - 148
BEFERIERS Over-provision in prior years (6,531) =
BVHA — B b b [ Current — elsewhere
FEEH Charge for the year 1,100 888
BAEFE (BEBRZ) BETR (Over)/under-provision in prior years (65) 20
EEFRIEER, (HR) Deferred tax expense/(credit) 220 (8,387)
TEHHER Withholding tax charge:
— [ - PRC 1,752 121
FEBIABLIK R Total tax credit for the year (3,524) (7,765)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B &EAXER DA
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. FRIEHE R (F)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

7N & B PR AT B 18 < B TE K e B AR R AR A A The tax credit on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the

FRBER16.5% (ZFE—\F

BZEWRBIEZRET

16.5%) &t theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits
tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) as follows:

—E-N1F —E-)N\F

2019 2018

TET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

B B4 AT E5 48 Loss before tax (102,143) (139,665)
A TEME16.5% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%

ZE—)N\F 1 165%)FTHE 2B (2018: 16.5%) (16,854) (23,045)
AN 2 WA Income not subject to tax (4,627) (1,149)
EIE L ﬁ Expenses not deductible for tax 14,617 18,172
BAFE (BERSZ) BETRE (Over)/under-provision in prior years (6,596) 20
*ﬁﬁuufﬁlﬁﬁiﬁg Tax losses not recognised 14,023 6,871
BAFECHA 2 HREEIE Tax losses utilised from prior years (223) (84)
Bt A B 7E E A B)A B B A Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

MHETRZFE operating in other jurisdictions (5,324) (8,108)
AMEEFNEEH B2 Effect of deferred tax on convertible bonds - (563)
R B i &R T A5 E A U A /9 Effect of withholding tax on other income from

BN TE arbitration in the PRC 1,752 121
THIEE Tax concessions (292) =
BEERMEAE 2 HIBEES Tax credit at effective rate (3,524) (7,765)
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REUHHRRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. KAFEEAELEERER 11. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

EREALRBEEENBELARREEA
BEFEBEBEBRFEFANDETLRER 2 M
T 15 81,206,249,251% (=T — )\ £ :
1,053,332,2600% ) 51 & o

BATHESRERR#BEEE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,206,249,251
(2018: 1,058,332,260) in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[ = Loss
ARFTESRERNRBEEIE Y Loss attributable to owners of the Company
KABHERE AELEIE used in the basic and diluted loss per share
calculations (88,810) (111,784)
—ZE-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
i3 & 8 Number of shares

ARFAESRERARBEREL
FRAEHTEARZ MEFHH

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic and
diluted loss per share calculations

1,206,249,251 1,053,332,260

FEHE - N\F+_A=+—HLFE
2EREEESETEBRRTEREARARZ
BRETIMEE 2 BRESEANARRE
FEEBE REAAEBRRTFEHAGRES
FE - AEBEERNEBE-ZE—)/\F+=H8
=+ — R FERTHEMA S ARTTEBREE -

ARBEE_T-N\FT-_A=t—HLHEFE
ZERESERYEBRRARANR TN
FLtAZTABBETHAIRREFEE R
(REER T N\Ft+-_ATHOREL2EE
) RESEBRREBRKABREETE -

REF-NER=F-\E+A=+—
B - AR ELEE AR TR -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

# & X B R A 7

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
potential ordinary shares relating to share options granted
under the Company’s share option scheme since their assumed
exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. The Group cancelled
all outstanding share options during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 did not assume the conversion of the Company’s
convertible bonds issued on 26 July 2018 and fully converted on
14 December 2018, since their assumed conversion would have
an anti-dilutive effect.

The Group had no potential ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. B2 12. DIVIDENDS
RZAREE RIS AT E Mk B E RS (= No dividend has been paid or declared during the year (2018: Nil).
T—N\F:E) ARABESITEZREES The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
T NF+-A=+—BItFERMAEMRK in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

B(ZE-N\F:8) -

13. ¥ - BERRE 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KARELH By HENEXE BERA®  BOZRE ot 3 &t
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings improvements machinery*  equipment vehicles Total

TERL TR TER TR TiEn TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZE-AEtZAZT-H 31 December 2019
RZE-NE+-A=T-HE At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019

Z2-hE-F-H

A Cost 3,354 135,998 12,906 159,030 4,212 10,852 326,412

2 TERAA Accumulated depreciation and impaiment - (38,595) (2,018) (149,435) (3,580) (9,839) (204,367)

REFE Net carrying amount 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
RZE-NE-A-R" At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated depreciation

Nk EHHTERAE and impairment 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
NE Additions - - - - 67 - 67
& Disposals - - - - 6] (57) (60)
HERBAR (M) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) - = = - - (89) (89)
REERERE Depreciation provided for the year - (4,801) (1,200 (1,604) (413) (318) (8,336)
HEEE W2 Impairment losses (nofe i) - (13,064) - (160) - = (13,224)
i HE Exchange realignment (11) (1,131) (22) (129) - 6) (1,299)
RZF-AE+ZA=1t-H" At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated depreciation

Nk E:HTERAE and impairment 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,102 343 543 99,104
RZZ-NFTZA=T-A At 31 December 2019

A Cost 3,343 134,167 12,862 154,737 4,310 9,782 319,201

ZiTERAA Accumulated depreciation and impaiment = (55,760) (4,096) (147,035) (3,967) (9,239) (220,007)

FEFE Net carrying amount 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,102 343 543 99,104

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & % #OE B E A F R A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
13. ¥ - MENFZE (8) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
KAFELDH BF HEMERE REREE  BOERE E it
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings  improvements machinery* equipment vehicles Total
Thn Thn Thr Tk Thn i T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-N\E+ZA=t-H 31 December 2018
RZE-tE+ZA=1t-Ak At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
“2-\%-A-H
KA Cost 3,437 141,997 13,225 170,155 4,630 11,034 344,478
2iE Accumulated deprecietion = (34,387) (1769 [146,297) [3435) 0190 (195,078
REFE Net carrying amount 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,19 1,844 149,400
RZE-\F-F-0 NK2:HHE At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated depreciation 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,195 1,844 149,400
HE Additions - - - 754 58 - 812
He Disposals - - - (160) - - (160)
s Write-off = = = (324) = = (324)
FEENERR Depreciation provided for the year - (5,079) (1,216) (10,425 (546) (806) (18,072)
BEER W) Impairment losses (note i) = (049) = (3,308) = = (4,251)
ERAZ Exchange realignment (83) (4,189) (252) (800) (15) (25) (5,360)
RZE-N\E+ZA=+-R" At 31 December 2018, net of accumulated depreciation
MR 25T ERAE and impaiment 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
RZF-\F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2018
KA Cost 3,364 135,998 12,906 159,030 4212 10,852 326,412
ZHITERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (38,595) (2,918) (149,435 (3,580) (9,839) (204,367)
FEFE Net carrying amount 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045

(ii)

(il

LR BB AINZ &

ZEEFECREAAEERAR _T—AF+ A
=+ —HZBREMEED AR WE - BERR
##91,551,000/% 7T °

HE-_ZT-—NF+-_BA=1+—BLEE HEE
1% #98,336,000/8 7t (= F — /\ & : 18,072,000/
JL) ¥+ 54,000/ 7T (=2 — )\ & : 671,000/ 7T)
4,111,000% 7T (==& — J\ 4 : 5,694,000/ 7T) K&
4,171,0007 7T (=ZF — /\ £ : 11,707,000 7T) &
RERER IR RFTEEE st ATTERA « 1T
BERARHEMSESTE -

RZZE—hhFE+-A=+—08 FXEEE@EEND
42,370,000 7T (= — )\ 4 : 44,178,000/ 7T ) Z
ETWE - BEREHECEBEAEBEERETR
—RBEZER BN GRE M IEHREM 29 -

R=ZF—NF+-A=1+—8 aARHERERY
ZIEAE (Hi3E16() - 2EBILEE S ERIGEER
HHARTEHEE ZME  BERIEMETH
H1E - NEBERBEAFERLSRAET T RIET
iy o T RIEFERBEBELEE - REEHK/
HERALERENBEUMENERERETO N
EITHE - RBRERERMNS - TERAMSE -
ERERBUEENER  WEWTHEENRKR
FABRTFUAZE . Pl AFEFESERAFE
EMNE=F - RIFFE  EDRIREFARBE
T 22 7E R RE B 18 4913,064,000/8 7T (=T — N\
4 : 943,000/ 7t) &160,000 T (= ZF — )\ F :
3,308,000/ 7T) °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEAXEFE R DA

(ii)

Located outside Hong Kong.

The net carrying amount includes property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$1,551,000 relating to exploration and evaluation activities
of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

Amongst the depreciation provided for the year ended 31 December 2019
of approximately HK$8,336,000 (2018: HK$18,072,000), HK$54,000 (2018:
HK$671,000), 4,111,000 (2018: HK$5,694,000) and HK$4,171,000 (2018:
HK$11,707,000) were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses
and other operating expenses respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of approximately HK$42,370,000 (2018:
HK$44,178,000) pledged to secure banking and general facilities granted
to the Group, details of which are included in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group performed an impairment assessment
based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
plant and equipment located in Hunan, the PRC, due to prolonged
suspension of production in Hunan Taiji (note 16(i)). In assessing the land and
buildings, direct comparison method is adopted based on price information
where comparable properties of similar size, character and location are
analysed. For plant and machinery, market approach is principally adopted.
Prices for similar assets are considered, with adjustment to reflect condition
and utility of the appraised assets. The above fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based on the
assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$13,064,000 (2018:
HK$943,000) and HK$160,000 (2018: HK$3,308,000) were recognised for
buildings and plant and machinery, respectively.
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mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. REY#*

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-NEF —N\%F

2019 2018

FET TAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

N—A—BzEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 74,367 75,105
AN ERABREEN K TR Net gain from fair value adjustment 63 885
P & Exchange realignment (580) (1,623)
RT-_RA=+—HZEBE Carrying amount at 31 December 73,850 74,367

EXFIREBEEYME 2 REERE

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
comprises:

—E-hEF — N\

2019 2018

FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’'000

REPBNPEHAEER Held under medium-term lease in the PRC 73,850 74,367

“E-NF+TZA=t—8B AEENEK
EMEL2EBFHIBXRSERMAEKFTT
AEERARARELZMGE  BARTS
BEEEAERLLEAETHEE I%"é%ﬁ)\
BEABEMEEEEMSER ETHRE
MEDRBKEEERTE=T - BEE—
SR EFIFHRFE A P EREME38@A °

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H A5H
8R M (B 4989,141,0008 7T (=& — J\F :
39,065,000/ 7L ) 2 &/ TR E M HIP1ER
SEHEREEREZER  FBREREGEEY
TR &= T 5E29 o

R-BE-AE+-A=+—8 A£EE@
{E4930,502,0008 L (ZE—\F : ) 2 &
FREDEDEIFEBEQARERERME
ZHER  FBEERGA TS RERME30%40 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2019 with reference to a valuation performed by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, on
an open market value basis by direct comparison method with the
major input being the market price per unit of floor area. Certain
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 38(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$39,141,000
(2018: HK$39,065,000) were pledged to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group, details of which are included in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$30,502,000
(2018: Nil) were pledged to secure loan facilities granted to a
related company, details of which are included in notes 30 and 40
to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



REMBHRERWME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NFt+-_A=t—HIEFEWABETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REY = (i)
DFEDR
TREASEEZRENE AT EAER
e

Fair value hierarchy

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties.

E B NG| BEAXATH
MZHE BERGAE BEBAE
(EB—#) (B=#) (B=8) wEt
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TER TER TET TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=ZE-NF+=A As at 31 December 2019
E=1
KEMNTEFE Recurring fair value measurement for:
ERYE Commercial properties - - 73,850 73,850
R-E—-NE+=A As at 31 December 2018
=+—H
KEMENTERFE Recurring fair value measurement for:
iR Commercial properties - - 74367 74,367

WAGE  YEE—RRE-RHZATE
HESE TESARBUE=H(ZT-N
F i m)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level

14. REY = (i)
SERDFEERNE=RHATFEF RS

R 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
BEME
Commercial
properties
FHET
HK$’000
RZE—NF—A—HNEALE Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 75,105
AFEFABRELHWZFRE - £ERZANMER  Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised
in profit or loss 885
B 5 2L Exchange realignment (1,623)
R-E—NF+-_A=+—8BK Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and
—E-NF-—HA—BNERESHE 1 January 2019 74,367
NP EABRESLOWZ FEE - £1B83 AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised
in profit or loss 63
[ 5, 38 #& Exchange realignment (580)
R-ZBE-hAEFE+-A=+—HHWERESHE Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 73,850

R-EBE-HIER=-ZFE-N\E+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 and 2018

REEDHK EREE R EXTITEERAE
Fair value Significant
hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable input
R RZEAYME B BEELEBE G HARBATHER
Commercial properties in Beijing, Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit price per square
PRC meter

AEBRBEKLEE R HENBERER
AGER  EREBEUMEERLEND &
BOERR/ RREETHER - AEEHSY
BOUXKN - HE - -HE -BERECENEU
WMEETON  LEGEYWEOHEBREE
B HIZEEENRFLE -

TEHAEBRBF I KEMMIHER - B
MSERAEL (TR @BBIREME
RTERELEH (TR -

RZE-—NFR-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
B FTBEAEBRGTBEZREMESNBAE
BEFFEANEENE  EDAB NG EIR
BESmEHS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of
substitution, where comparison is made based on prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character
and location are analysed and weighed against the respective
factors of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market value.

The key input was the market unit price. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the market unit price (per square meter) would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are commercial properties held by the
Group either for capital appreciation or for earning rentals.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E AR B R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. Tt Lt HEERIE FHEEE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
/RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

ENEIHHEEREB(R=E—NF—H—H Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)
Al)
FHET
HK$'000
RZZE—NF—A—HZEHRE Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 19,399
6 A T R A 4 8 Amortisation recognised during the year (455)
B 5, 38 & Exchange realignment (981)
R-ZE—N\F+=-A=+—H2ZEHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 17,963
ZE-NEF-A—AEXRERBBY KR Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the
& —.—HJ’%165)T1§ AE#917,963,000/% 7T #J prepaid land lease payments amounting to approximately
ENEITHEHERBEET B RFERAESR HK$17,963,000 was reclassified to right-of-use assets. Details
Ee Al E  WBE2HME2.2- please refer to note 2.2.
RAEEFRN  AEBFTHAEEENERER The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
MBI R : movements during the year are as follows:
FET
HK$°000
RZE-—NF—H—HBZEHEE Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 17,963
RERNERNIFTE Depreciation recognised during the year (437)
PE W 38 B Exchange realignment (330)
R-ZZBE—hE+=-HA=+—HZIRMEME Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 17,196
HELT AP WARBHEEFA - The leasehold land is held under medium term leases and is

situated in the PRC.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
OE B E A F R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. BB S E 16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BER
HEEER FHEE REE a5t
Exploration
and
Supplier  evaluation Mining
contract assets rights Total
TER TER TERT TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(B (i) (B (i) (B (iii))
(Note (i)  (Note (ii))  (Note (iii))
“E-AE+ZA=+—H 31 December 2019
RZE—NF—FB—HzHA Costat 1 January 2019, net of
Bk 2 M 85 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment - 8,907 12,264 21,171
DHEZRREEE Impairment loss recognised - (1,764) (4,806) (6,570)
F RN Amortisation provided during the year - - (9) (9)
P& & Exchange realignment - (30) (42) (72)
RZBE—hFE+-_FA=+—H At 31 December 2019 - 7,113 7,407 14,520
RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H At31 December 2019
BN Cost 163,707 17,627 16,472 197,806
2 EEIRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (163,707) (10,514) (9,065) (183,286)
EEFE Net carrying amount - 7,113 7,407 14,520
—E-N\Ft+-_A=+—H 31 December 2018
RZZE—NF—A—HBzZmA " Costat 1 January 2018, net of
bk 25 & ERRE accumulated amortisation and
impairment 36,156 23,5624 7,099 66,779
NE Additions - 124 - 124
ERRBEEE Impairment loss recognised (28,245) (8,865) = (37,110)
3 B Transfer - (5,501) 5,501 -
F B Amortisation provided during the year (6,272) - (61) (6,333)
BEE 5, 5 % Exchange realignment (1,639) (375) (275) (2,289)
WZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—H  At31 December 2018 = 8,907 12,264 21,171
RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018
[B#N Cost 166,824 17,688 16,529 201,041
2 EEIRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (166,824) (8,781) (4,265) (179,870)
REFE Net carrying amount - 8,907 12,264 21,171

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. it B EE (&)

Hiat -

(i)

(i)

HERSREEAEER _ETNFRAA_+ -8
Weig B (G2) (KRR RIS A ZMBRR]) K&
MEBABRSERRER BERBAEEBHERGE
) EEREEEEAR QR (DEREE ) AL
HMEREMLZBRR - ETRFRA=FTHZ
SEARZMHHEERZ - MEEZRRME AR
RE([FEZRIRME ) = — KA B2 508
frSGER 0 RIS 2 R A R BB A30% A
tHEE - REDREEAR  BRME A BRE M
FEHBREMT < BRMEIKE - W e EFEZ RN
HN BB RERREE R SR T EERRAR
EEEANRZEEEKE BVEERELESR
Az GFFRBEARRA I ERNTOFE2F
EREREY o

HRKEREER  AEREER -2 =F+tAKR
—E-RF T AR (BB REEREREK
B RS E B R A 2 D BR R EIR S 4R
BEF - THBUREE B HRRMEEIN)
BT RFNAR  PEREHRGEHERM
BB E AR ©

RZZT—-hE-_A=-+=-B % GEW) EHNE
REENEETEPEEERMPRARERE
LPEBHATS - NF_A+-BZEFBANE &
bt EREE (ERREAN) RS- N\FHLAZEXK
ERBOR - ARREZRPAUS  NPERESE
BERILARAPERE (AHEE—PENER
WELEME39(C) - RIFFEEREMZARE
B RARAREZERE AR MBRERTFET
ARERR T A E S EHfAT - Bt - AEER
BEPRREMELEEEETHTE - ZSTHEA
A= EHERSNEREERTEMNR T
EETHTE BERZSETHHEER AEER
B RBE_Z—\E+-_A=+—BILEEER
ERRRARBEIESNERLEERAZERELN
28,245,000/ JT & = 18 2 & -

HHERTFEEEZEEEBZEAMNRERRER
YRS 2 5 o BURMERTEIE
A - HEREEX 57,113,000 (ZF— \F
8,907,000 L) * RZZT—NFE+=A=+—81
BN R R ET L P ER - Sk FEER I HER AT B A
HITHS -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
# & X B R 2 &

£

P

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The supplier contract represents the materials supply agreement embedded
in the joint venture agreement dated 30 June 2006 regarding the
establishment of Hunan Taiji entered into between the joint venturers, namely
Junefield Building Material, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, and
RIS ERE AR AT (“Lianyuan Steel”), upon the acquisition of Junefield
Building Material and its subsidiary, Hunan Taiji, by the Group on 22 May
2009. MEEEERMEGR A (*Hualing Steel”), a company established
in the PRC, is a steel products manufacturer and is effectively owned as to
more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. Pursuant to the
joint venture agreement mentioned above, Lianyuan Steel is responsible to
guarantee the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag required by
Hunan Taiji and to procure Hualing Steel to supply granulated steel slag
to Hunan Taiji at the prescribed unit price for a period of 15 years from
the date of commencement of operation of Hunan Taiji. The intangible
asset was amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of approximately 14 years in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

Due to shortage of supply of granulated steel slag, the Group has filed
applications in October 2013 and December 2015 for arbitration proceedings
against Lianyuan Steel, which is also the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji,
for, inter alia, failing to procure the requested amount of steel slag supply,
further details of which are included in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. Since August 2016, Hunan Taiji was in suspension of production
due to suspension in the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag.

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was informed by Hunan
Taiji that a notice of response to action (fEFFi4%1ZE) dated 12 February
2019 from the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province,
the PRC, was received, pursuant to which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had
in September 2018 requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji
prior to the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the
prolonged shareholders’ disputes (further updates please refer to note 39(c)).
Based on the legal opinion of the legal advisors in the PRC, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the outcome of the ruling of this
litigation proceeding is uncertain and cannot be estimated with reasonable
certainty. As a result, the Group determined the production resumption of
Hunan Taiji has been adversely affected. In view of these uncertainties, which
also adversely affected the likelihood of recovering the carrying value of the
supplier contract intangible asset, the Group has determined it prudent to
recognise full impairment of approximately HK$28,245,000 in relation to the
supplier contract intangible asset in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The exploration and evaluation assets mainly represent the cost of
concessions, permits and exploration and evaluation works related to
various coal and mineral mines in Peru, which are under the exploration
and evaluation stage as at 31 December 2019 with a carrying value of
approximately HK$7,113,000 (2018: HK$8,907,000). These assets are not
subject to amortisation until they are placed in use.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. Hib B & E (&)

(i

(%)
(%)

ARRERLEBUEEA AR MGEMELRK
AfEEAERAR ([HRED)HEHRRFGEE
R-B-AF+-A=1+—BWHELETRER
il MARAERTRRESTERRETHERE
ENFTEAER - BTG MAMREFHE
EEROETHREFMEDRESELEM - HAJ
WERISEDEEBMEELSS  E8  SERE
ERA - ARERB AN S BREMEE
B A IR B R R AT ik A E RO ATl 9 Bl R E 8 I [
(BT A B AT H7T 32 % 5318.9% ) LA K 104F ¢ 8 (FT P
B AT IR K 216.1%) - RMBAHREFGEEE
BV RHIEEIA - 93 BIAR R B ROoR RN VR I 75
BETIAARBNBRRFART SRR  Z0 5 R
FHRRANFHENRORSRBRBEFHEREX
2.7%TRA - RIFFHE - AEERRZFHRRTE
BENMBAATKRESRENEREASE - UME
YR I AT 1k B 2E T RRUR (B 1R 9 Il £9338,00078 7T
$21,426,000% 7T °

RBEZT—/\F+-A=+—BIFEAR WE

Hbh—ARBEBR T N\FENAEXRE 5
REFEEEEREREREE -ARAESELE

BYEEAERMAEME SRR (G EENERER
B AT U B 5 RR AT AE 1T RO f (BT TORUERTfd - M AT IR
CeBAAERTRRASRERMNETNERE
ENFTEAER - DETHE - TEBAR KT
HEEEROETREELSM  EAREERT
BEBMFELUSS  E8 SERELERK A
REREBHENSHMBEEMETE - AR HE
E2OFRME - MANBATITRERI7.1% > ROFH
FHEEIA - RN FREMABEETIAREED
RRFAKTEIAER  ZANFHREARNRERE
RIBFERR2.9%TRA - RIEFTE - AEERAE
R RFGEEEN G TRESREREERE
SR TABREERS BRXANRERREEBERY
3,347,000/ 7T, ©

AAREEFL2EBLEESERMEMEHHRR
FEEER-_ZE—/\F+-_A=+—80fEEE
TRERS  MEARERNBER S RERRET
WEREBENGTEAER - RETHE @ BFEKT
HEEEEARTMHRERIEEERSELEN
HuaEemEhaEEsmbtELSs  E2 - &8
RGEBRAN  LREBEBIENSTUEEEME
E o BT EREOFRME  MANKRAITERERE
17.0% ° ROF R EEIAN - KRR ANFORFI B
TBETYAREENRZFRT B AR - Z N FH
A% 38 € 2 REF IR EK2.9% Al - iR
FE  AEERAE THHREETEEEN G AT
El&BEERNEBRESE - WHHE R EEERR
3L (B 518 493,196,000/ 7T °
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BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
("Ravia"), an independent professional qualified valuer, on its exploration
and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2019, based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections. For the purpose of
assessment, the two exploration and evaluation assets have been allocated to
exploration and evaluation activities’ CGUs, of which the recoverable amounts
are determined by taking into account the estimated mine life, production
volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest financial budgets
approved by the management. The assessments cover an 8-year period using
pre-tax discount rate of 18.9% and a 10-year period using pre-tax discount
rate of 16.1% for the two exploration and evaluation assets, respectively.
During the assessment periods for the two exploration and evaluation
assets, the latest financial budgets for the next 5 years and for the next 6
years respectively were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group
and cash flows beyond this 5-year period and 6-year period respectively
were projected using a growth rate of 2.7% per annum. Based on the
assessments, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts
of these exploration and evaluation assets were lower than their carrying
amounts and recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$338,000
and HK$1,426,000 on its two exploration and evaluation assets, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one of the coal mines in Peru
has commenced formal production in August 2018 and the respective
exploration and evaluation assets were to be transferred to mining rights.
The directors of the Company performed an impairment assessment with
reference to valuation performed by an independent professional qualified
valuer on the recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
upon the transfer, based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections. For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and
evaluation assets being transferred have been allocated to a CGU, of which
the recoverable amount is determined by taking into account the estimated
mine life, production volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest
financial budgets approved by the management. The assessment covers a
9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 17.1%. During the assessment
period of 9 years, the latest financial budgets for the next 6 years were based
on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash flows beyond this 6-year
period were projected using a growth rate of 2.9% per annum. Based on the
assessment, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount of
the respective exploration and evaluation assets was lower than its carrying
amount and recognised impairment loss of approximately HK$3,347,000 in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon the transfer.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by an independent professional qualified
valuer on its exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2018,
based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections.
For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and evaluation assets have
been allocated to exploration and evaluation activities’ CGUs, of which the
recoverable amount is determined by taking into account the estimated mine
life, production volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest
financial budgets approved by the management. The assessment covers a
9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 17.0%. During the assessment
period of 9 years, the latest financial budgets for the next 6 years were based
on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash flows beyond this 6-year
period were projected using a growth rate of 2.9% per annum. Based on the
assessment, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount
of certain exploration and evaluation assets were lower than its carrying
amount and recognised impairment loss of approximately HK$3,196,000 on
its exploration and evaluation assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ﬂ‘l_jl A ﬁ/ ﬁ F ( i )

(ii)

(ii)

MBHRRME (E)

(%)
(#%)

AEBEEEHER T N\F+_A=+—HH
BREFHEEELETREN G YARR  FER

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The Group has made impairment assessments on its exploration and
evaluation assets as at 31 December 2018 and determined that certain of its

RKRBISEAF  EETANRMENEDESZE TR mineral mines in Peru shall be impaired in view of their unfavourable future
BH-EHit  ERBE-_E—N\E+-_A=+—81t prospects. As a result, impairment loss of approximately HK$2,322,000
FREEREBEIRARMIE LT HEEERREE in relation to the exploration and evaluation assets was recognised in the

18492,322,000/% T °

FiEEfE BN W E N ERETREEE 2R -
ZERBEIRBES AT EREREEEMNT
LABESE - BE=T—NF+= ﬂ +—HLEFEZ
BRI R4 50.16% (ZF— \4E : 1.12%) ©

HEZT-NF+-A=1+—"BLEE 2=EkK
WETHTHGEE AR ESHRBERETRE
FTE o RETAIE  MEREEEEELSET
REEETHRSELSEN  HAMBSEILE
BEARBLESS ER - EERLEERAE  UEKE
BEEMENSTUEEEMET - A @MERE
HEEMTGHDBRESFRE (TR AT R
& 519.0%) A R10FEE (FTAMBATEXA
14.5%) - RMIBHREEEENTHERN - HRIE
R=FRARAFOENA B EE T AREBHOR
REARTEAER  ZOR=FHMRAFHBMIA
EHRSTRERBEFERE2.7%EA - RIEFFME -
AEERAZEREREENGBATRESBER
HEESE  UHMEREEEERDREBESD
BlI#1,145,0007 7T (=& — )\ 4 : £&) 3,661,000
BT (ZE—N\F: &) -

)

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining activities pertaining
to coal mines in Peru. The mining rights are amortised on a unit of production
basis over the estimated economic reserve of the mine. Effective amortisation
rate for the year ended 31 December 2019 approximate to 0.16% (2018:
1.12%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessments of the mining rights with reference to
valuations performed by Ravia. For the purpose of assessment, the two
mining rights assets have been allocated to mining rights activities’ CGUs,
of which the recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account the
estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating costs, and
the latest financial budgets approved by the management. The assessments
cover an 8-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 19.0% and a 10-
year period using pre-tax discount rate of 14.5% for the two mining rights
assets, respectively. During the assessment periods for the two mining rights
assets, the latest financial budgets for the next 3 years and for the next 5
years respectively were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group
and cash flows beyond these 3-year period and 5-year period respectively
were projected using a growth rate of 2.7% per annum. Based on the
assessments, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts
of these mining rights assets were lower than their carrying amounts and
recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$1,145,000 (2018: Nil) and
HK$3,661,000 (2018: Nil) on its two mining rights assets, respectively.

DAFEHEEESEH AE4 17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

2HKBENBRAREE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
—EB-hfE —E—N\4
2019 2018
T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000

RIS - A TE - E4i[@  Listed equity investments, at fair value

— elsewhere - 508

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held approximately

R-ZE-NF+-A=1t—H AKEFH

Latin Resources Limited ([LRS | @ — 7R 30,699,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Latin Resources Limited
MEBEBERSHAER AT (BMEEZSH]) (“LRS”), a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange

Limited (“ASX Limited”), representing approximately 1% of its
issued share capital.

T2 AR]) #30,699,0000% 4 & L% » 48
ERHEBEITRAL1% -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

—ZE-hE —ZT-N\F
2019 2018
THERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
2 I Completed properties for sale = 3,411
19. & 19. INVENTORIES

—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
2019 2018
THER FHxT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R R RE Raw materials and consumables 3,623 5,771
SLAK o Finished goods 27,218 10,023
30,841 15,794

20. FEWERRX 20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TER FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JE W BR 3R Accounts receivable 4,790 2,524
DERIE] Impairment (1,619) (1,224)
3,171 1,300

RUER—RREREBRIH - —RM
H-—RAs—@

==

EHBEMWLA K

=

Accounts receivable are usually due immediately from the date of
billing. Payment in advance is normally required except the credit

H o 2R B 7R 5 BB R B R 3R 75 & 3 & IR R
RETHHEBZETEPREZALEREM
B A - REBFE S 4555 i R WEZ BUER
REBRERREEE YA RERETE
S HEELRT  UREEERR - BER
BRTARBRRIEUARBTARE]D ER
BstE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

period is generally 1 month extending up to 2 months for certain
customers from coal mining business and sale of parts of mining
equipment business of the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
balances which are reviewed regularly by senior management to
minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing
and mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Soles.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BEZT-NAF+TA=+—BLEFEETIE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. FE U AR K (1)
RBEDR  REROMHEL B BEZ

20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable as at the

REEHEWRAZEREDITHOT : end of the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:
—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
— & A AR Within 1 month 2,802 541
—E==M@A 1 to 8 months 369 759
3,171 1,300
FEBERS R ERE 2 EFHNT ¢ The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET TFAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
NS At the beginning of year 1,224 1,267
R B REEE Impairment loss recognised 602 275
0 2 R AR EEE Reversal of impairment loss recognised (189) (262)
HE H, 8 B Exchange realignment (18) (56)
RER At the end of year 1,619 1,224

AEBERAEBHBHREERNFEIFME(L
FEAEERHEEERE  EAAERIKE
RIERBYRERECEEFEHRNTEREE
BiE- R =EHEESE  BRERER
BREAGERBRSEHREAREHHE - B
AERMBENELR EBNKEEE -
RRmEBHASEBAEEMN - a1k
B ARREERRTBANEE R A HFAE
Bo—fmE - MEUWER 0% 58 890K 3t
EHREERE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A

A

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses by recognising a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts receivable from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are fully
impaired if past due for more than 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

20. FE U AR K ()
BA T 851 7 5 B B R A L B LR A

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on

Bk the Group’s accounts receivable:
prng:t
Past due
LPR—M@B —Z=@AB BB=M@A &5t
Less than 1t03 Over 3
1 month months months Total
R-ZZE—hF As at 31 December 2019
+t=RAR=+—H
EEAE(TAT) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) 2,752 822 1,216 4,790
FEHIEEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 4.07% 35.40% 100% 33.80%
EEEE (THET) Loss allowance (HK$’000) (112) (291) (1,216) (1,619)
N-ZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018
+=HA=+—8
EEAE(TFAET) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) 545 944 1,035 2,524
JEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0.73% 19.60% 100% 48.49%
EEEE (THET) Loss allowance (HK$’000) (4) (185) (1,035) (1,224)

21. AN RE - B REMBERRE 21.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
—E-N1F —E-)N\F
2019 2018
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B IR Prepayments 900 2,275
75 Deposits 4,304 29,228
H A fE W SR8 Other receivables 21,108 21,953
H th fE W E X Other loan receivable 3,357 3,421
29,669 56,877
T Impairment (7,422) (83,948)
22,247 22,929

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BEZT-NAF+TA=+—BLEFEETIE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. i(‘%;f?)}%ilﬁ REREMBWRRE 21
8

BENFIE - B REMREKREZRERE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments,

BEWT : deposits and other receivables are as follows:
—E-hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
THER FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REFEA) At the beginning of year 33,948 10,370
BERERBEEE Impairment loss recognised 496 24,166
BRI EEEEMD Reversal of impairment loss recognised (938) (213)
B £ g [ T #f 85 Write-off as uncollectible = (161)
LEMEAQ A Disposal of subsidiaries (25,999) -
PE & A& Exchange realignment (85) (214)
RER At the end of year 7,422 33,948

EABMAFIA - RS R EMERIA ZRE
BREemLENERERNRE B hE
MR IBIER 2 BH - R FE—NF+ =
A=1t—BmERNSRERMNIE RE2 Kk
HEYRIATEERN TE R HE
BNER-—FUELNREAM -  EEENG
% BB B 1R & T8 8 A AT Wk [ 3k A R BR A o
AEEY ERAFERTATAE R RIE

RA T ~A
IS HE B ©

B ESRIRFERE  HMERERZRES
BIOREHEHREESE I EHRMAIEL -
SRR JD I BRI B I BE o NSRBI R HT A R A
SR EMNEMmIEMIEEREE R-F
—NERZE-NFT-_A=+—HZEHA
ERUMERTIAAREE BB A1%HE
HEAAEREERREAR_FT—=F1+_A
B LAEMERKRERER_Z—NER
—E-NFFA=+—BEZERE R
AAEZEERER-T—=F+-A8HK
Yo 13 3% 55 SRIETF 5E ©

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A

A

The above provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables includes provision for individually impaired
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The individually
impaired prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2018 mainly relate to deposits paid to vendors
and service providers that were past due over 1 year. The
management assessed that the impaired deposits are neither
expected to be recovered nor utilised as purchases. The Group
did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

An impairment loss was made on other loan receivable based
on a review of the outstanding amount on regular basis when
collection of the amount is in doubt. Bad debts are written
off when identified. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over this balance. The other loan
receivable as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was denominated
in RMB, bore interest at 1% per month, was secured by personal
guarantee and was repayable in December 2013. The above
other loan receivable as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was fully
impaired as the loan was past due in December 2013 and the
collection of the amount was in doubt.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. A FE -ZE N EMEYWFIE 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

(#88) RECEIVABLES (continued)
ERAPREECEMERZENSEE A4 The movements in the ECL allowance related to financial assets
FEWERNTESHEZEEERENES T - included in other receivables and other loan receivables are as
follows:
BETRMERFENEREE HttEWER
Financial assets included
in other receivables Other loan receivable
BEGED BAEFES EEGEN ZAEFES
BEHEE HEEEE BHEE BHEE

12EAEY BR-AE BR-FR 12BREE BE-XF BE-EA
REFR RRE WE REFR FsE WA @

Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime

ECL not ECL ECL not ECL

12-month credit- credit-  12-month credit- credit-
ECL  impaired  impaired ECL  impaired  impaired Total

THEL THEL THEL ThET TR THAL THEL
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RZZ-\E—A—H At 1 January 2018 - = 374 = - 3,606 3,980
REEERER Reversal upon settlement - - (219) - _ _ 213)
ERRE TS Write-off as uncollectible - - (161) - - - (161)
[ A Exchange realignment - - - - - (185) (185)
R-E-N\E+=H At 31 December 2018 and

ST-HRZE-NE 1 January 2019

—A-A - - - - - 3,421 3,421
E 1 398 Exchange realignment - - - - - (64) (64)
R=B-NE+=R At 31 December 2019

=t-H - - - - - 3,357 3,357

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 FEUNRBEE N B 7 I8 22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
rEERNRS
REBERR ZE-NEF —F-)N\F
Maximum
outstanding
during the
year 2019 2018
Hat FHERT FET THETT
ALEE: Name of company Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Junefield Group S.A. Junefield Group S.A. (i) 15 15 11
k(KRB ERAQA] Junefield (Holdings) Limited (i 6 = 6
Ecuamining Mineral S.A. Ecuamining Mineral S.A. (1) 132 - 132
Total Genius Iron Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.

Mining S.A.C. (i) 185 182 185
2 R i Hualing Steel (i) 12,322 12,092 12,322
BT EBR A A Mega Choice Investment

Limited (i) 81 81 -
b 5t B 5 b = B B Beijing Junefield Real Estate
AR AR Development Company
Limited (i) 50 50 =
12,420 12,656
L FEWGRIE AEIEH AR RERETFEEE - The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

HiaE - Notes:

(i) RAFTHITESARBAEENR ARBEM (i) Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (“Mr. Zhou”), a close family member of Mr. Zhou
S ([AKLE]) - BJunefield Group S.A. » Jianren (an executive director of the Company), has beneficial interests in
HB (£E)AFMRAF - Ecuamining Mineral Junefield Group S.A., Junefield (Holdings) Limited, Ecuamining Mineral S.A.
S.A. ([Ecuamining Mineral|) * Total Genius Iron (“Ecuamining Mineral”), Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C. (“Total Genius”), Mega
Mining S.A.C. ([Total Genius|) * BKEEBRA Choice Investment Limited and Beijing Junefield Real Estate Development
ARt RS EERHBEER AR BEEERNERS - Company Limited. Mr. Zhou is also the former chairman and former executive
BAEENRARRTNEIFERINITES (RN_2Z director of the Company (resigned on 22 August 2018).

—N\NENA=-+=-BBT) -

(ii) SRR SR AL Y JE IR A R R AN Y - N EEE SR (ii) Lianyuan Steel, being the non-controlling interest of Hunan Taiji, has beneficial
BEEDED AEZEFrEEERANZERD M interests in Hualing Steel. The amount mainly comprises of prepayments and
HE deposits paid.
23. B EE X RKE 23. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
ZERN B AERT - £ 8 MEETERE - The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
24. UNFEAEBHEHEFHT AEBER 24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

€@ TH THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—Z2-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETRAEE - EmE: Listed equity investments, at market value:
— &% - Hong Kong 19,781 -

MR ERRARETFIEES - Fik - 5
BRAARFEAEEEEHA A ABESNSH
THo

25. & RRITHEER

The above equity investments were classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
for trading.

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—E-NEF —E—N\F

2019 2018

F#E T FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

B e RIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 35,784 100,901

RBEBHELERE  AEEBUNARETE
2 e RIRITE Y A5,641,0008 T (=ZF
— \£F : 16,520,000/8 7T.) K17 A o B 2 3R
T BEARBITERABRAHEMEK
SR AR AR R B A O BE B IR R R A BE
EERMIETERT  ~AEEBBEREE
TINEZESRIRITIEARE S BIEEME -

R-ZE—-NE+_A=+—8 Be kLT
RERBEERNERITZ&8427,000K
B (SR 463,000 7T) EAZHER TN
RES)(ZE—NF : FRAMERTZE
#2#733,000R M (FHFR 979,000/ 7T ) (2R
REAEEEMEME L BTS2 RES)) °

FAESIRIBET B RTERA R IH A=
He o ROTEBEREERFALmANE
3088 2 BRI ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$5,641,000 (2018: HK$16,520,000) and placed with banks in
the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the cash and bank
balances, there was a balance of approximately Soles 27,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$63,000) placed in bank in Peru
as guarantee fund for issuing of credit card (2018: Soles 33,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$79,000) placed in bank in Peru
which is restricted for use as guarantee fund over renewal of Air
Operator Certificate in Peru).

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. FEHBREFX 26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
RMER ZBEZEAMFECAEBEN An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the end
BRAZERE DT : of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
—Z2-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
— & A LAA Within 1 month 103 1,340
—Z=={88 1 to 3 months 1,911 679
HBim =& A Over 3 months 2,501 5,009
4,515 7,028
JENERABTTHEREENARE - ETK Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are mainly
RWBETE - denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.
27. HEAFENES A E 27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
= Accruals 17,008 19,176
FEN R ET Business tax payable 2,030 2,030
B WiE % Deposits received 1,361 1,239
aHEE Contract liabilities 233 2,090
H A & 1~ 5k I8 Other payables 31,907 21,434
52,539 45,969
FEtBETITEQRESNE - FRREXS The accruals mainly comprise of accrued interest, legal
AUEHES - HiWENREBE AT E R E and professional fees and salaries. Other payables are
FPARBE B E - non-interest-bearing and are mainly denominated in RMB and
Soles.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. ITARES 28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

RZZE—N\FLAZ+/"H RARETAK
% %8 /4100,000,000/8 7T 2 7] ¥ B & % ([ A]
BRES]) TARBINEEER DR FER
EE(EARBA) - BITAIRRESERA
ETRAFHAZEEENEER S - BIEE
FREE  TRRESRSENFRRGE
FE  BEF—RHAIA ERETHE
e mmE BRI - EH5EEAGTERE
BRI EERBRE T RRESFZEY
HEAARBEEASEBRBAQ A D BITRA
FEREEIOE L L@ A HM
A FTARBR o {7 85 #2 & LA 4 523,000,000
B TEBEH 2 SBIEL BRIEREET
HRSEF AR 4 D FA3,000,0008 7T £ UIL1E
T BIERZAIMBRESNE2E (MIEHH)
KEEARS - BB P ERE0.62178 LAt
& PARE A H£5100,000,00058 7T 2 7] # A%
EHERHERE - 5 E317160,849,284f%
AR AR EAM KRR AR A
BREBAEABENRRESNASER
FMEEEEHAEEVTRRES - BRERE
W KRR WEIRATELE - AR A
MREHR AR ETHFE -

RBETEY  AIMBESFAESINAFE
T2ZBUEXAERMGEEMMAETHNR
B URBEREEFENRI7TAMEKREH
ARRESREF RN T AR - BREMEKTS
S2RNRBFETARERAFELI B BEALUNE
UEFWB R XRETE - BERD AHEHE
AAERGFTE BEERBRIBEKLES
1k EBABEHE (RKRARKRESFNEITH
HAFE EAEEARBRESFHNEDH
Do RPUARTIREBERBETEHRMEHED
REaERERBONLLHIED ZRRRE
FHBERESRED -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

On 26 July 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) to
Macrolink Group (as subscriber), the immediate holding company
of the Company. The issue of the Convertible Bonds is deemed
to be a connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Pursuant to the bond subscription agreement,
the Convertible Bonds bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum
payable half yearly in arrears with maturity on two years from
the date of issue. The bond holder has the right, at any time on
any business day before the maturity date, to convert the whole
or part of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds into ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the
Company of HK$0.10 par value each, subject to other conditions.
Any conversion shall be made in amounts of not less than a
whole multiple of HK$3,000,000 on each conversion unless the
principal amount of the outstanding convertible bond is less than
HK$3,000,000 in which case the whole (but not part only) of such
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds shall be
converted. 160,849,284 conversion shares will be issued upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 based on the initial conversion price
of HK$0.6217, subject to other conditions. The Company will
redeem all the outstanding Convertible Bonds at an amount of
the principal amount of such outstanding Convertible Bonds
with interest on the maturity date. The Company has no early
redemption right under the subscription agreement. Interest
accrued prior to the conversion date shall be paid by the
Company.

On the issuance date, the fair value of the liability component of
the Convertible Bonds is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using the applicable borrowing rate of 17.41%
per annum, which was determined with reference to the yield
to maturity of comparable bonds with similar credit ratings and
maturities as at the issuance date with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. The
liability component is measured on amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds, which represented the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds at issuance date, are allocated to the equity component of
the Convertible Bonds. Transaction cost are apportioned between
liability and equity components of the Convertible Bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
on the issuance date.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. IfIAKRES (8B) 28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
REBEE-_ZE—N\EFE+_A=+—HILEFER The movement of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds
BTN BRREENEGEEIOEHOT - issued during the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

GE:Y 4
oR= Ry
Liability
component
of convertible
bonds

FAT
HK$'000

RZE—NFEAZ+/NHET Issuance on 26 July 2018 80,734

5K Transaction cost (1,009)

ERAMNERAX Effective interest expense 5,354

B E Interest paid (1,945)

R-ZZFE—NF+=-A+MWBEE&EHR  Conversion on 14 December 2018 (83,134)

RZZE—NFE+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 -
RZZE—NE+-A+—R8 XA FkEH On 11 December 2018, the Company received a conversion
EFEHMERSHEBENBRKRESNIERITEE notice from Macrolink Group in relation to the exercise of the
HRER A 2 S E R R R E SR ERE A o conversion rights to wholly convert the Convertible Bonds
RZTE—N\F+A+WA - A BREHZ pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds. On 14 December
Y FEH(B0.621778 T ERHE L - KA 2018, 160,849,284 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
A0 BC 3 2 3 17160,849,284 0% @A T ¥ by the Company to Macrolink Group upon full conversion of
B E o the Convertible Bonds based on the initial conversion price of

HK$0.6217.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBWRME (F)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29, StERTRE LD 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

—Z2-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
ok FE T TAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BN &3 Current
RITER—BEA Bank loan - secured (i) 2,465 3,768
HhBER— G Other loan — secured (ii) 25,000 25,000
Hfth B 30— 3L Other loan — unsecured (iii) 5,595 5,701
33,060 34,469
Ik B HA Non-current
RITER—BEA Bank loan - secured (i) - 2,512
A&t Total 33,060 36,981
PIH Analysed into:
RERZBITREMEES : Bank and other borrowings repayable:
——FRNIFERKEE — Within one year or on demand 33,060 34,469
—F —F - In the second year = 2,512
33,060 36,981

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. :(TERITREMEE (§) 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Byt - Notes:

(i) R-TB-—hAFE+-_A=+—0 AEEAWEE 0] As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a bank loan of approximately
Hh 8R 17 BU 15 4R 17 B B 49319,0003 T sk HE F R 4 USD319,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$2,465,000 (2018:
2,465,000/ 7T (=& — )\ 4 : 798,000% Tk 8 & USD798,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$6,280,000) from a local bank
476,280,000 7T) A AW B HEEE B & - ZE in Peru for financing its mining projects in Peru. The loan is denominated
BAETE B FHRIBEETAERE ((HH in USD, interest-bearing at annual rate of London Interbank Offered Rate
SRITRIZERE D) MEF64E(ZZT— )\F: —FH (“LIBOR”) plus 6.4% per annum (2018: LIBOR plus 6.4% per annum) and will
BBRITRAEREMEF6.4E) 2 EF R E B be expired in August 2020.

RZZZTFENAER -

RITEFUARBURMBEZETYE BER The bank loan is secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and
REERE ER_ZFT—hLhEFE+_A=+—H equipment situated in Peru with aggregate carrying value of approximately
Z BRE A4 /42,370,000 T (=T — \F : HK$42,370,000 (2018: HK$44,178,000) as at 31 December 2019.

44,178,000 7T) °

(ii) AEEEFE—ZWE AR A S A25,000,0007 7T (ii) The Group entered into an agreement with a money lender in Hong Kong for
N—EHPEFI B UnEAER 2z —REE one year term loan with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 for facilitating
BeFRK - AEER T —tF— ABHRENA the general working capital needs of the Group. The Group withdrew the
e c BEFEMER B TEHE - 1HFEF X8 loan in full in January 2017. The secured other loan is denominated in HKS,
BB ER-_ZE—NEFE—ABE R_T—+tF interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was repayable in January 2018. In
+=A AEEEZRE A LTS EEB December 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement with
HEE—SEHE_T—NFE—HF=H- the money lender and the repayment date was further extended to 3 January

2019.
ZERDUAEER_ZE-—NF+_A=+—HI The loan was secured by certain of the Group’s investment properties
H 4 {E#) 539,065,000/ 7T 2 & & W2 A K KR ) with aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$39,065,000 as at 31
Rtz AAIEREER - December 2018 and corporate guarantee given by the Company.
R-ZZT—HNhE—F8F AEBHEHZKE AR In January 2019, the Group entered into a new agreement with the

25,000,000/ T80 — F B HIE KA

N HWE B money lender for one-year term loan of HK$25,000,000 with interest at

FREAE%  EXAPA-_ZT=_TF—H=H- 8% per annum and repayment date on 3 January 2020. Under the new
BEF I ZERDAEREER_ZE-NAF+= agreement, the loan is secured by certain of the Group’s investment
A=+—BEREAEAA39,141,0008 T2 REY properties with aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$39,141,000
H R - BEREAERINAR B L AL T HEAER as at 31 December 2019. The loan is also secured by personal guarantee
ARBEEE (KB ERARG THRRAERER given by Mr. Zhou and corporate guarantee given by Junefield (Holdings)
B - RIREHRE  R_Z_ZF— 7 RE® Limited. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period in January 2020,
TR IE & 5 15 58 (8 38 B 3% A& 812,000,000/% T A the repayment date was further extended to 3 January 2021, based upon
RS NLZHE BH575,0008 T FHE AL  BR conditions of partial repayment of the loan in the amount of HK$2,000,000
e #E—SHEEE _T_-_—F—H=H- and payment of arrangement fee in the amount of HK$575,000 to the money

lender pursuant to a supplemental deed.

(iii) HERBEERDAARBFEN LT FI5E (i) The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB, bears interest at a rate of
BRIZEERER 9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEEREYD 30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT
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—E-NF —E)N\F

2019 2018

FER THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R THEEATNRE Guarantees given to a bank in connection with

48 TERITHER facilities granted to a related company 134 -
RIET R ERL L B — KRBT ({g,ﬁ,ﬁ%m% Junefield Property Agency, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
1*?5%3:@55'(@7 ([$8 M &%= 1) E’g‘ A) FET the Company, pledged certain of its investment properties, whose
SNSE#SAE-_Z—hE+— AR a’ﬂfﬁﬁ/ﬁ\ﬁ carrying values included in the consolidated statement of financial
(430 FE 173 ﬁﬁ};ﬂ ) (TE\AEE ) - 5 position amounted to approximately HK$30,502,000 in aggregate
BEHERKE (AT zEE2ENBAR) (note 14), in favour of a bank as security for the repayment
BERITHEME S TIREYE (HELS A & obligations of #MEEFHEBR AR (“Jinzhou Rongxin”), a
MO R AT EEEEA A 430,502,000 related company of the Group which is ultimately wholly-owned
EIT) (MsE14)  LEASRMNEE (HALE by Mr. Zhou, for partial loan principal amount of RMB8,000,000
BIREBEAENAER W@@ s mABEAS (equivalent to approximately HK$8,907,000) plus related interests
A AR 35 000,0007C 2 B ZH 2 H B 3 in respect of a loan of principal amount RMB35,000,000 and
2 AR #8,000, ooojgﬁ %5/\\\ 498,907,00078 tenure is for a period of two years from 8 November 2019,
E))}gmﬁaﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘;&méf ZIER B pursuant to mortgage agreements (as supplemented and

amended by a supplement agreement) dated 8 November
2019 entered between Junefield Property Agency and a bank
(as lender to Jinzhou Rongxin) (the "Mortgage Agreements").
Junefield Property Agency and Jinzhou Rongxin also entered
into an indemnity agreement, whereby Jinzhou Rongxin agreed
to pay Junefield Property Agency a one-time handling charge of
RMB120,000 and to fully indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s
obligations under the Mortgage Agreements. Jinzhou Rongxin’s
parent company has also provided guarantees to Junefield
Property Agency that it will assume all fees and losses incurred to
Junefield Property Agency in respect of the provision of financial
guarantee, in case of default by Jinzhou Rongxin.

The financial guarantee contract that arose from the entering into
the Mortgage Agreements is measured at the higher of the ECL
allowance and the amount of its fair value initially recognised less
the cumulative amount of income recognised. At the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company have assessed the
current status of the debts under guarantee, the financial position
of the debtor as well as economic outlook of the industries in
which the debtor operate, and concluded that there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial guarantee contract. An amount of approximately
HK$134,000 has been estimated as a loss allowance as at 31
December 2019 in accordance with HKFRS 9, and as a result
provision of expected credit loss of approximately HK$10,000
was recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2019, the maximum exposure amount of the
Group under the financial guarantee contract was RMB8,020,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,974,000).

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the year, there were no transfers
between stages (2018: Nil). Please refer to note 43(d) for further
information about credit risk exposure of the financial guarantee
contract.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31. BEMH B 31. DEFERRED TAX
AEBEERBEERBERFERNZZ SN The movements in the Group's deferred tax assets and liabilities
IS during the year are as follows:
BEEHIEEE Deferred tax assets
A 4L 35 8 >R 2R PE
RBORF 2 BB
Losses
available for
offsetting
against future
taxable profits
TAT
HK$'000
RZZFE—-—NF—H—H As at 1 January 2018 357
ME N = RE Exchange differences (8)
NR_E—-—N\F+=—_B=1+—HEK At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
—E-hAF—HF—H 349
fE H =5 Exchange differences 2)
R=ZE-NF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2019 347
EEREEE Deferred tax liabilities
BREE ERfYE TRRES wEt
Intangible Revaluation Convertible
asset of properties bonds Total
TET THET TET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZE—-N\F—H—H At 1 January 2018 9,038 32,629 - 41,667
RiB& GTA) /M2 Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
ELERIB profit or loss (8,886) 1,062 - (7,824)
BT RRESRH Initial deferred tax on issuance of
Y FIRE I8 convertible bonds - - 3,179 3,179
RN F SRt A B Deferred tax credited to profit or loss
EIEFTE on payment of interest - - (563) (563)
RABRRESEZH Reversal on full conversion of
B2 1A R 8 [ convertible bonds - - (2,616) (2,616)
I Z% Exchange differences (152) (484) - (636)
WZZE—N\F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2018 and
k—_Z-N¥—HA—H 1 January 2019 - 33,207 - 33,207
REBEMER 2 BELERE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss - 220 - 220
& 5 =58 Exchange differences - (171) - (171)
R-ZZE—-NE+=-A=+—H At31December 2019 - 33,256 - 33,256

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31.

LLMIE (mﬁ)
AEEBKRE BB 2 HIEEIEL1,062,000/%8
L (ZZE— )\ : 1,062,000/ 7T ) 7] £ R HA A
PRI HIREIBZ R A Z KA RERE = F o
7N E2 B IR A R B 2 AR R TE B 15 49189,925,000
B (ZF— )\EF : 73,671,000 7T) It 18
R—ZERFAEm - AR RERD &
FleAEBMEAENZRELE ZHBEBIELY
1,784,000/ 7t (=& — J\ 4 : 1,527,000/%8
L) AIRAFALE  HEITHSHEHEE
BREN 2 5% Al 2 25% F LA 88 o

AEBTAREMBEZHEEBIEY
86,973,000/8 7L (= Z — /\4F : 72,623,000/
JL)  MAEBARIZEENE 2 G KL
BRI ERBAEEE ERZEATA
MMARSERFE ZERTUWA 250% -
MABEEENZER RZ2E—AF+=
A=+—H ' EsB@EHIEEIEL1,241,000
BT (ZZ— )\ : 1,245,000/ 7T ) HERIE LT
REEE BRIGHEEBEESERAEBIEEA
—BREEZMBAR FARAIREE B AK
TEEBERE 2 ERBOSF - B 42 5L R &
HEBERRARLHBEEE -

BIERRCEMESRIENBRE + RR KL
ZHINEBECERBEIINEEESTIRZREAM
K10%FEHNF - REREE_ZENF—A
—HEBREW TERAR-_ZZTLtF+_-A
St BHUBREAZEN - HPEREFHE
INEEBEEMBRIZERER MBI
RIS AIREBREEMBR R R - A s
lﬁﬁ:‘. BAMEA5%10% At - A&

EASRFEKIZHBRARBE ZZSZN
¢ BR—BREEZABFMD KRS
EHR - R NEFER=_FT—/\F+=A
=t H HREMBARTERELEF -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,062,000 (2018: HK$1,062,000) and that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$139,925,000 (2018:
HK$73,671,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. The Group has tax losses arising in
Ecuador of approximately HK$1,784,000 (2018: HK$1,527,000)
that may be carried forward for five years, but may only be offset
against 25% of the profits earned in each tax year.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Peru of approximately
HK$86,973,000 (2018: HK$72,623,000) which the Group has
the option to carry forward all net operating losses for four years
or carry the losses forward indefinitely, but only up to 50% of
the taxpayer’s taxable income of each subsequent year. Loss
carryback is not permitted. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$1,241,000 (2018:
HK$1,245,000) of such tax losses at 31 December 2019.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.
There was no unremitted earnings for the PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BEZT-NAF+TA=+—BLEFEETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. l|k& 32. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares Share capital
RHBE e
—B-NF /o —E-NF “E-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
TR TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ETE Authorised:

BRAEE10ET2EBAR  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 25,000,000,000 25,000,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

EETRAR Issued and fully paid:

m—H—H At 1 January 1,206,249,251 1,045,399,967 120,625 104,540

RREHFEER Conversion of Convertible Bonds - 160,849,284 - 16,085

R+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251 120,625 120,625
R-EFBE—NE+—_H+MWA @ O[ERESR On 14 December 2018, 160,849,284 ordinary shares were
) HEHR(E0.6217 748 TR HEHRIL KA allotted and issued to the bond holder upon full conversion of
FIE M R E17160,849,284 R @R T &4 the Convertible Bonds based on the initial conversion price of
BEAA - SETRBEENERS  SREE HK$0.6217. Details of the Convertible Bonds are included in note
B 75 55 2% B £E28 1K © 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
RAARERAHE-—"ZTE—NE+-_HA=+— The Company’s share options were cancelled during the year
HIEEER ﬁiiggﬁggﬂg NN ended 31 December 2018. Details of the Company’s share option
ZIRBEZ 2R TERE Y SEBEENE scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are
AR ENTEERS o included in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

33. B Lt E 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
—IBEREASZERBREARTIRER-_ZTE A share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the written
NENBA-_T+NABBZEmABRMER resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company on
(TEEREREET 2] |) - BT 2N — S NE 29 June 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option
NA-FhLBREN  WHRZBARSESN Scheme became effective on 29 June 2009 and, unless otherwise
+F (BIEBITEEHSKBE) o cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.
ERESZEEANETRE RENHEE The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Group
Ex#oryomEARERAKREERTRREM to attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive
ELNBH BREAZIBEEEFHL2EESR for future development and expansion of the Group. The
AREBNEHEAEBR HE  UREFRESE Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
RATFHBLREE XA REEIFAIE 2K participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
8o Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the
Company attained through their efforts and contributions.
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFEGLBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. Eﬁ}‘]ﬁ%ﬁ-%ﬂ (4 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

& B HE AT ER2EEBROIAKREZ
Eﬁ’iﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ&i?(@% HITES ~ JFTT
EERBUFRTES)  (\AEEZERE
M AAA Bk ARBEEHRAR
FEFERETHASERMERZEM
Hi AL R(iREAXHRBE LIRS
HEBRBH ZIEMEEITA -

RIBEEER S IR OBRERITRERSE
TZEERNEBE - HERERETSIEL]
EEAARRABEEITHRM Z10% ° REM12
& A B MR IR AR A 1T TRERE8IR
TEEAERS2REZESRNHUE - TF7
H B AR RMEMR R 2 BTN 2 1% ° Ef
E-FRHBBLRBEBREAERRA
G LEERRLE TAEE -

MARRES  TETHABXETERFRK
HETMBBARLBREERS B LI
MATE FHE o AN AE{121E B 2R
WEMARREERENBILIENITES K
BETMBEAR N ZEMERES R 2R
DR BBAAREAEREETRGD Z
0 1% RIZARBIRMNIF L BB EE
2 #E (B {8 185,000,0005 7T + BIZBERE KX
S FBERELE  FAMEE o

REXTBEBREAINIEZ AMET288 R/
EABRAXNAMETZREARERE
Mo MRTEREZTENBESEE I
REBIMRARRNBRERSE BB R
ETFEMERS

BB TERAEFEE  BTRER
=& 28BS ()RR DRGRBRIARE
BB 52 8 AR B R A5 2R B ¢ (i)
ARFRAREEEE BN TARS AR
B B BERAT]Z FHRTE ¢ R
AQ TR 2 EE -
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
full-time employees and directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Group; (ii) any advisor or consultant to the Group, providers
of goods and/or services to the Group, and any other person
who, at the sole determination of the board of directors of the
Company, has contributed to the Group; and (i) the trustee of
any trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any aforesaid
employee or business associate.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the share options;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. IEREEE (8) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
BRETERE A ABERKESRREKX Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
BRARZERN o to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
HE-_Z—N\F+_A=+t—HItFE B The following share options were outstanding under the Share
RRREETEITE R AR T EZBEIRENT - Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2018:
= 8% hn &
FITEE BREHE
Weighted
average
exercise
price per Number of
share options
BT 13
HK$ ‘000
R-ZE—NF—H—H At 1 January 2018 0.229 13,280
FATEHE Cancelled during the year 0.229 (13,280)
RZE-—N\F+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2018 N/A =
HE—_E—NhEr-_FT—N\E+-_A=+— No share option under the Share Option Scheme was granted,
HILEE HEEREFSBE N 2BERED exercised or expired during the years ended 31 December 2019
BTk - AR E—_SE—N\E)N\A and 2018. All outstanding share options were cancelled as a
Tt HEMNRATHEEIER AR ERE result of the acceptance on 22 August 2018 of the mandatory
B EmBRERE AFENRITEER cash offer made by Macrolink Group, the immediate holding
EEHZBFMERSELY  Eitt - X2FE company of the Company, for cancellation of the outstanding
KETIHE T A MARTTEBIRKE - share options held by the option holders.
ERETEEREBEE_ZE—NhE+=-A The Share Option Scheme has expired during the year ended 31
—t+—BLFERNER - December 2019.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
OE B E A F R A A ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F #



mEMBHRRME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34. #E 34. RESERVES
REBAFER F—FEZfEGESBLEE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
R ARFIRFESIEEFERELREEa T ER for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
E5 o statement of changes in equity on pages 81 to 82 of this annual
report.
() WREARFFHHMMBIRRZARMA ()  According to the Articles of Association of the PRC
Z M B A R H R T 18 0% 2 10% 2] subsidiary of the Company which require the appropriation
BELERMRHEHE BEERHEASRED of 10% of its profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve
HaAMERZ50% A1k - FEEBEERAN until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered
EEHEE NRER B ATEE o X TFERAHK capital. The transfer of the reserve must be made before
FEHEITARBEEIE Yol EeHEe distributions of dividends to owners of the Group. Statutory
AEZB DL 2L HEE2 LA - EE surplus reserve can be used for making up losses and may
BBITEIERDSIORAZMERZ be converted into capital in proportion to existing owners’
25% ° equity percentage, provided that the balance after such
issuance is not less than 25% of its registered capital.
iy HMOREEABARRRTEST THEK (i)  Other reserve represents the capital contribution from a
B AR AR I 7 B S A P | &9 B3 A A related company controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan, an executive
FRERH & © director, the chairman and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.
35. EERFIERERS 2R EEHK 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
|- RN NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRIRANER ZHEGEANFFIERERS 2 I The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
2EMBARZFFE of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:
BR L B R FERERFTEZ TERE
MELR AR TEEEWHY FrEREER LA FERERZEE Rt FERES
Proportion of
ownership
Place of interests held by
establishment and the Loss allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of principal place of non-controlling controlling controlling
subsidiary business interests interests interests
“E-NFE 2N\ ZEB-NE TN\ ZB-NFE ZT)N\HF
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
TExT THET THER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#HEI %2 Hunan Taiji # B PRC 40% 40% (9,809) (20,116) 19,866 30,183

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %

AEEREEERFERER 2B QR 28
BERBEIINNT - U THHEERBER
SEAHHRA SR

#

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 201

9 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

35. BE AEIERER WM HEASHK 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

B4R (%)

HERE Hunan Taiji
BR+=—HA=+-—H
At 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MBEE Current assets 15,164 14,968
EMEEE Non-current assets 62,641 82,231
REEE Current liabilities (26,125) (19,727)
EMEBAE Non-current liabilities _ _
BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-AF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FTERT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
A Revenue - _
N Other income and gains 1,137 4
2 Expense (25,659) (50,293)
FEEHAE Loss for the year (24,522) (50,289)
FEHEME2ERAY Other comprehensive expense for the year (1,271) (6,283)
FETEHAX AR Total comprehensive expense for the year (25,793) (56,572)
BN SRR IR i A AR B Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests = =
KEXBRESRE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
TN (R F8E 455 (2,670)
HeERIREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
g, Ch ) %88 equivalents 455 (2,670)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=T—BUEFEGETINIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. BMEEBHELE 2 RBHIK

TRADAEERELTDELZBER

BRRAS MRS °mﬂ§ﬁé§ﬂ?$2%
BERAAEERECHAARKBEERERRAEHE
%?\/E\uEEi//\bg%:(/\*ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ/é@ﬁﬁéum% °

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

Ef&A
GERTEE  GEHMEE  ERAFANE TERES @t
Amount due
Interest- Interest-  to the ultimate
bearing bank  bearing other holding Convertible
borrowings borrowings company bonds Total
TAR TAR TAR TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-\E—H—H At 1 January 2018 9,914 31,010 29 - 40,953
BEBSHREELMNEEH .  Changes from financing cash flows:
BERTER Repayment of bank loan (3,724) - - - (3,724)
BETFREIERAT Repayment to the ultimate holding company - - (29) - (29)
RETRREFNAMEZHE " Proceeds from convertible bonds, net of
NBEITER issuance cost = = - 98,750 98,750
BRFE Interest paid - - - (1,945) (1,945)
Heth#2 8 Other changes:
TARBHNERTH Equity component of convertiole bonds = = - (19,025) (19,025)
BRREFHERTE Effective interest on convertible bonds - - - 5,354 5,354
HREFEER Conversion of convertible bonds - - - (83,134) (83,134)
B AR Exchange realignment 90 (309) - - (219)
“E-\F+-A=1+—H At31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
k=E-N5-R—H 6,280 30,701 - - 36,981
BERSHEELMNEEH .  Changes from financing cash flows:
BRRITER Repayment of bank loan (3,724) - - - (3,724)
Hit 28 Other changes:
BN AR Exchange realignment (91) (106) - - (197)
RZZE-NE+ZA=1-H At31 December 2019 2,465 30,595 - - 33,060

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. EEEHF
UAREBEFEEREE AT Z AEBE
TREMEEZHBIIHNGEPERE
513~ 14 - 29%30 °

37. CHARGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by certain pledged assets of the Group, are included in
notes 13, 14, 29 and 30 respectively, to the consolidated financial

statements.
38. KEHIYLZTHE 38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) FEAHFEA (@) As lessor
AEBREBELEHOTHEEESE TR The Group leases certain of its investment properties under
BEYME BERsHEBNT—ZE=E=F (= operating lease arrangements, which leases negotiated for
Z—N\F: —E=F) o terms ranging from one to three years (2018: one to three
years).
R-E—NE+-_A=+—0H &~&EH At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
RIFHEBRFI L 2 PO BEELER AR receivable by the Group in future periods under
RARAEEKORTBEEEN KB non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as
N follows:
—E—hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 3,473 4,118
EF_EZERF (BREEWT) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2,500 4,650
5,973 8,768

(b) EHEBEA
AREBREEROEHEARAE
% MEREEEAMA—F (=T
— N\ —F) -

(b)

RAERREAERERERANELFIHH
#8384 7% 49 A2324,0005 7T, ©

RZB-NE+A=+—0 £&H
RN HEKERORNIATFER
N2 RARREHSAREMT

As lessee

The Group leases office properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for a
term of one year (2018: one year).

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
of cash flows within operating activities is approximately
HK$324,000.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

ZT-N\F
2018
TAET
HK$'000

—FR

Within one year

156

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. RIRFFR

(a)

HBE(EM) 2N -_ZE—Z=ZF+AK
—E-AFTARFTEBEBREEE S
HREZEES ([FHEES]) RIMIXMF
HEE  WHRmRE D EBRFERH
HEARBE RER_E—F—A
—HEZE—=FN \A=+—HBHHEK
R-ZE—=FhLA—BE=_ZF—AFN
A=+ BHEBEAmREZEEHh=
HE TR ERERREE 2 KB ([KEH
D ZBMEE  REMEEF (DA
[ —RAREMBRBIRIEZRNTE
HEREELD -

RZZE—RF—F - 5B GEM) 2EMF
HEZEBSIELBBE —AREMBBF
ZHOR o B (EM) RERZZE—tF
NAZHESERNEFEEAZHAR
#13,850,0007T °

RZZTE—+tFHA HB EM RS
TRREMHEBEELE - FRRH
FOBHEREHEBLERZZTE—HFA
A=+HERZEILR=_ZT—XR"FNA
=+—H REFFBESHEOARE
71,485,0007C * WKW EMHEZES X
2 - BHEFRAYBHRRIERR - &k
M ARES o

RZZE—NFREA - HB GEM) K
FEZRREMBRBIIRE ([HR
£]) - Bt - (AP edE) =R EE N
s (M) XN =-E—mE—F—R
EE-RNENA=+—HEHHEHE
TR ZEEH ARMES30,097,0007T © A
o ERMERER —_T—NFEA~NAN
BRI 2B E - $B GEM) R R
BMEERMHRAARZER ([EEMFHHK
EBT ) IRREFIBITRGE - ZHBER
—E-AFELA-THBERRES -
B EREAENR_-_Z—HhLFNARAE
MA B RmEMFRRARZER ([HER
M RERT ) R SR E R E Z #
FoBRBEREN-_ZE-hE+A=-TA
B®EE bR mHRAERE R E A
B 1l (EM) KRR _ZE—hF
+—AZ T NBESEE (M5 &E
R E o

AEERERE _T—R"FALA-BE
DR e A~ J2 P 1 HE 22 B BE R (B IR 6
BRIGE - FTHSIERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
39. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

(@)

Junefield Building Material filed two applications for
arbitration proceedings at the China International
Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration
Commission”) against the minority shareholder of Hunan
Taiji, Lianyuan Steel, in October 2013 and December 2015
respectively for compensations on, inter alia, failing to
procure the requested amount of supply of the granulated
steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) for the
periods from 1 January 2011 to 31 August 2013 and from
1 September 2013 to 30 September 2015 under Hunan
Taiji's joint venture agreement (the “First Taiji Arbitration
Application” and the “Second Taiji Arbitration Application”
respectively).

In January 2015, Junefield Building Material was awarded
the First Taiji Arbitration Application by the Arbitration
Commission. Junefield Building Material ultimately
received the compensation in the amount of approximately
RMB13,850,000 from Lianyuan Steel on 2 August 2017.

In May 2017, Junefield Building Material further filed an
application to extend the claiming period ended from 30
September 2015 to 31 August 2016 with a revised claim
amount of approximately RMB71,485,000 in respect of the
Second Taiji Arbitration Application and it was successfully
accepted by the Arbitration Commission.

In May 2019, Junefield Building Material received the
arbitral award for the Second Taiji Arbitration Application
(the “Arbitral Award”), pursuant to which, among others,
Lianyuan Steel is liable to pay Junefield Building Material
the compensation for the supply shortfall for the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2016 amounting to
approximately RMB30,097,000. However, Lianyuan Steel
failed to pay the compensation before 9 June 2019.
Junefield Building Material filed an application for mandatory
execution with the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi
City, Hunan Province, the PRC (“Loudi Intermediate Court”)
which was accepted on 29 July 2019. Subsequently,
Lianyuan Steel lodged an application for requesting
withdrawal of the Arbitral Award with the Fourth Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing Intermediate
Court”) on 5 August 2019, which was rejected by Beijing
Intermediate Court pursuant to court’s ruling dated 29
October 2019. Junefield Building Material ultimately received
the compensation (note 5) plus related interest on 29
November 2019.

The Group is in the course of seeking legal advice on further
action for possible compensation on the supply shortfall
commenced from 1 September 2016 onward against

Lianyuan Steel.
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

39. RIRFFER (F)

(b)

RZEBE—-NENAZ++H KAFE
B RTHRE AR 2 ERBANE -
Bl RE (BBt R EBEEM
IRERAR ([ERERBMEEE]) 49%
EZERR)(EFEE)ER_E—H
o B o Il A% AR FUR R 1 A ([ 58 Il AR
B KBREPEES TERAEEZL
B R #) A R #4,400,0007T & 0 B8 &
BARERE -t BEEERENALR
AIMEEES1%RE 2B AR H%
ERETRBERERERE ETHRET
e ARAR_ZTNFHERERRE
HLEGZAERAR ([EERERG]) 22
HR A% e 8 B EL A b RO B (S 251 %%
T o

FUERT - REHONEEZERSR (F
RE—WE) BB ELXEWERF =
WE - RUAEFRBWEBEZZARKER
ANEIMESR - HERX_T—H¥=A
BT R(NAAB(ERE=ZWRE) R
B MEERARRSHAERE-

R-ZZ—NFE+ANB  ERHHREE
PR - ST ARAMIEZRE (KRE
EHEREERAZEE) ERKE - &
ERAUBHRRMEBRAL  REXL
EROEB HDRIBE L5

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

On 27 August 2018, the Company received a notice of
response to action (EaFi#A1E) issued by the Beijing
Intermediate Court, pursuant to which the plaintiff, being a
49%-equity owned shareholder of bRyl E{E (=% 4 T 12
BFR/ARF) (Beijing Urban Construction Hudson Decoration
Engineering Company Limited, “BJUC”), inter alia, claimed
an economic loss of approximately RMB4,400,000 and the
related costs arising from repayments to certain creditors
during the process of mandatory dissolution of BJUC in the
PRC in 2015 (“Mandatory Dissolution”). BJUC is a former
indirectly 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company which
engaged in the provision of decoration services, electrical
and mechanical work in the PRC. The Company disposed
the entire equity interests in Huaxia Construction Limited
(“HCL") together with its 51% equity interest in BJUC in year
20009.

In this case, the plaintiff claimed against (i) HCL as the first
defendant; (i) Mr. Liu Zhongsheng as the second defendant,
being the legal representative of BJUC and a former director
of the Company who resigned in March 2015; and (iii) the
Company as the third defendant with joint and several
liabilities.

On 8 October 2019, the Beijing Intermediate Court ruled
that the claim against the Company with joint and several
liabilities was rebutted. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the plaintiff did not lodge
an appeal pursuant to the court ruling.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. ARIRFFER ()

(©

RZBE-NFZAZ+ZH " &B (&
M)EREEEESNREERT LR
RBELAMA_FT-NF_A+=H
ZEFEME Bt BRME (ER
REANR-_ZB-NFNAAERERE
R HRBRRZ KBS RABERE
BEmER LA EAUARRE -

REMGEERZZE—NFNAZTHAH
FERRA - HAERZZEZZTF—A+N
HYED - Bt - BRAERERBRIRR
2 EHA G  RBERESEHERL
AT A AN R A B E T R AUERT AR
ZREHEE o BRH#EE L mNAEE
BRARERRERBBHE-S _TF—
AZ+=B® LK BRI ENEEHE
ZE o

RIFPEDEEBEZEZRER - AR

EERR ZTF */\E’Jﬁdi EREFED
RAARER T EAES EMMAET

REZ-_Z—NF+_A=+—BItHF
ER  EMERIRAEEEHELEN
B E AN GBI EHAEEREHN
HEITH B R (F 4 &500,00088) - &
BEINBRBESEIAA - AREAE
FREEBRER Al REF@EER
R BEERAEANEEEAFEREING
B MEEREERENRA A ETIE
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
39. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(©

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was
informed by Hunan Taiji that a notice of response to
action (JEFFEEIZE) dated 12 February 2019 from Loudi
Intermediate Court, was received, pursuant to which
Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in September 2018
requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due
to the prolonged shareholders’ disputes.

The court hearing of this case has been held on 25
September 2019 and the ruling was given on 19 January
2020, pursuant to which the request for a court judgement
to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan
Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes was rebutted. Lianyuan Steel has
filed an appeal dated 23 January 2020 to Higher People's
Court of Hunan Province (#F& m# ARZEP) to request
immediate dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

Based on the legal opinion of the legal advisors in the
PRC, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the outcome of the ruling of this litigation is uncertain and
cannot be estimated with reasonable certainty.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
two ongoing claims against the Group amounted to Soles
500,000 each regarding the fatal accidents occurred in a
mining site operated by the Group in Peru. The accidents
were covered by insurance policy. As the claims are being
handled by the lawyer, the directors have taken the view that
no additional compensation should be borne by the Group
based on legal opinion and no provision for contingent
liabilities in respect of the claims is necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. BBEE AR 5 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRIt 4R 6 B 75 MR fT 728 « 30X 395 & 2 In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 28, 30 and 39 to
R AEBRFRNEEAETETATE the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
AR5 material transactions with related parties during the year:
(a) BELZEXRS (a) Significant transactions with related parties
—E-hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
orza FET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ecuamining Mineral E W EUf4 Commission charged by Ecuamining Mineral (i) - 159

s (EE) BRA R UWELA Management fees charged by Junefield
ERE (Holdings) Limited (i) 1,080 1,080

440 SR A R A B U ERAY Management fees charged by New Silkroad
ERE Culturaltainment Limited (i) 1,418 593

M EHBEBRREGRA A Management fees income from Macrolink

& ETESEEE = PN International Investment Co. Ltd. (i) 2,469 554
FrER R ERERA A Short-term lease expense charged by

WE MG BAER WERE A IERERAA (i) 136 -
MEMEREHMEREER Interest expense charged by J# & i 2 B &= i =

NGIE 30NN BT FEBRAA (iii) 745 -
2 B 5= [ WS B A BT R IR Convertible bonds interest charged by

BEHHE Macrolink Group (iv) - 1,945
mJunefield Mining S.A.C. Purchase of mineral concentrates from

EE B Junefield Mining S.A.C. (v) 1,707 -

BB EERETBERY One-time handling fee income for provision of
—REFEBRA financial guarantee to Jinzhou Rongxin (vi) 136 -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

40. BEL R 5 (&)
(a) BEAZEARS (H)

Bzt -

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

EHAERAR ([EAD (RRRZEEEE
MBRRAIZ_T—NAF+—A+/\BARIL)
HiEcuamining Minerals] 37 5% 88 (32 #75 3% -
&t - 38# R E Z FimEcuamining Mineral
AEEEERERELNZREERFERE
HEERUEZ RBRIEE  REWEF -
Ecuamining Mineral % — &5 & I % @ 7 it
Y2 m EHBASESKEEHREA -

R=Z—N\FtA=+/, 85 B (£E)
BRARARARNGRKIZERAR  E=F
—N\F—A—BE=_F—\FtA=+H
B AR P2 1 /) B 12 & & B49613,00074
LT -BHZE—NFLAZ+ B F
(EE)ERARKAREENBERR -
R_E—-NFLtA=-ZF+BE=ZFT—NF
+Z A=+ BHEAIANEEEBEN
1,547,000/ 7C - § AE R ETYRGI A7 &
R #5E °

ARBEFERATEEBERENZEME
RATHEEGER - ERBEIHTOAH
] 163 5

FEREER T )\FLA-tABES
ARRMEREERAT - ATRBEHF ST
BT N\FLA-TAAE-2-N\%F
+=A+mBEmmE -

Junefield Mining S.A.C./A— R A & fit
B RE - EARTERKEERS -

RAFEER  AEEHR —BRTEFELE
TFREME  NEABMEEREARK
8,000,000t (48 % 7 £98,952,0007% 7T.) &
HEAMSFTAEERETZER - AEEH
REFEEREDERMEE —REFEEA
R #120,0007T (48 % 7 #£136,000/8 7T) ©
BHE—SFHE  WFELHREVBERERW
30 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes:

(i) Like Top Corporation Limited ("Like Top"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company up to 18 November 2019, entered into
the sourcing agent agreement with Ecuamining Mineral, pursuant to
which Like Top agreed to appoint and Ecuamining Mineral agreed to
act as sourcing agent of Like Top to procure the supply of mineral
concentrates or its related products in Ecuador for a term of two
years. Ecuamining Mineral is a company incorporated in Ecuador and
is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

(ii) Prior to 26 July 2018, Junefield (Holdings) Limited was the ultimate
holding company of the Company and management fees paid
for the period from 1 January 2018 to 25 July 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$613,000. Since 26 July 2018, Junefield (Holdings)
Limited became a related company to the Group and management
fees paid for the period from 26 July 2018 to 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$1,547,000. The monthly management
fees were mutually agreed between the contracting parties.

(iii) Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees and
prices were mutually agreed between the contracting parties.

(iv) Macrolink Group has been the immediate holding company of the
Company since 26 July 2018. Convertible bonds interest was paid for
the period from 26 July 2018 to 14 December 2018.

(v) Junefield Mining S.A.C. is a company incorporated in Peru and is
ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

(vi) During the year, the Group pledged certain of its investment properties
in favour of a bank as security for the repayment obligations of Jinzhou
Rongxin amounting to RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,952,000) and related interest. The Group received from
Jinzhou Rongxin one-time handling fee of RMB120,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$136,000) for provision of financial guarantee.
Further details please refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. BBE XS (8B) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) EFEEE2TEEEAEZE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

& of the Group

—E-NEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
THERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
MEEERET Short term employee benefits 2,292 3,275
B B 4 A Post-employment benefits 56 31

ENTEEBABZHELR Total compensation paid to key management
personnel 2,348 3,306

tHBEFEERASETHNRES RS L E
B ETRANEFUATERE ZBER H A
BRERS -

The above related party transactions with key management
personnel do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

41. 2% 5 %ﬂﬁZéEﬂI B 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
NPEHABERE KRB TEZE®R The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
BT : instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SRIERE Financial assets

An¥E
FEEHHE
BETTA AR A
BRi &R FTER
BE TREE st
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total
FExT FExT FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—E-hEF 2019

JE Uk BR X Accounts receivable = 3,171 3,171

BREEEMRIA B REM Financial assets included in prepayments,

FEWRIBE W EE deposits and other receivables - 1,927 1,927
FEUR RS E N 7 kI8 Amounts due from related companies - 328 328
WAFEF=EAEZEHTA Financial instruments at fair value through

BEamemT A profit or loss

— PR E (FH) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 19,781 - 19,781
IR & RIR1TE Cash and bank balances - 35,784 35,784

19,781 41,210 60,991

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. BB s z2€mMT A (48) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
TREE (&) Financial assets (continued)
LA A FEEE
SRR STAHME
FTEH A U & B
TEEE TREE @t
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets
cost at FVTOCI Total
TAT TAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-)N\F 2018
NAFEFEEHEZEFHTA Equity investments at FVTOCI

Hith 2 H W & 2 RARE - 508 508
FEULAR K Accounts receivable 1,300 = 1,300
BREERAMNDRIE - EZe Kk Financial assets included in prepayments,

HithEW B S EE deposits and other receivables 1,124 - 1,124
FE R 783 N Bl FRIE Amounts due from related companies 334 = 334
R RIB1T4E5 Cash and bank balances 100,901 - 100,901

103,659 508 104,167
SREE Financial liabilities
DEBERATENSRARE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—E-NF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE S BR 3R Accounts payable 4,515 7,028
BIEEEH M fET R IE N EET Financial liabilities included in other payables

BEZEMARE and accruals 44,926 33,161
FFERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 33,060 36,981
JEN SRR AR A Al FRIA Amounts due to related companies 26,740 3,780
B BIERE L Financial guarantee contract 134 -

109,375 80,950
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Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
42. SR TEZ2AFEERAFEEDE 42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

ERENGH RERRSFEY  BRE
R BRERNKE  Re REME KRR
MEMEE RKRBEQRRE BN
R BREEMENKEREGFEEZSR
BE HERITEREMEE  ENEERQR
RENERE TREERRNBES TRITH
ERZAFEEHKREERSE  EEZHARZ
ETAZIHBEERE-

SRAERBBEZATERENZHPES
BRETRBABIAY SBAR - Ao
R BB 5N - AR AFEZ HERE
BT

EARAREZRFEIUATERESE
B RARAZEBEERRGEFEMREZ MG
RFEGAFABBERRR) MEERFE
) (AR TFEAELEES T ABEAR
URFEAEARZESHFAELMBEEKED
BAKREMS @ DRlFFAZREERERMEE
PHEER)BRE  YRAR/BHMEBERRE
HRZRABEZEE-

DFEDR
TRITALEESRTAZATEAESR -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies, accounts payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to related companies and guarantees
given to a bank in connection with facilities granted to a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for equity investments at FVTPL and at
FVTOCI respectively, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments.

BATEFEZEE Assets measured at fair value
£ E-®R F=R st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=-Z—hIF As at 31 December 2019:
+=ZA=+—8H:
AR {ESTE B H& 8t A Financial instruments at FVTPL
BEmmemT A
— FTRAEE — Listed equity investments 19,781 - - 19,781
RZZE—NF As at 31 December 2018:
+=ZA=+—8":
AAF (A& B E# BT A Equity investments at FVTOCI
HEfb2mEiam s RAIEE
— AR E — Listed equity investments 508 = = 508

RAFEE IERE-REE_FHZ2AFE
AFEER TEEAFBHE=R(=ZZ-AN
FE) -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o
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During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to bank
borrowings with floating interest rates, further details of
these borrowings are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group currently does not hedge its
exposure to interest rate risks. However, the management
monitors the interest rate risk exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. A 100 basis
points increase and decrease are used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank borrowings had
been 100 basis points higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would increase by approximately
HK$25,000 (2018: HK$62,000) as a result of the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings. If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points lower and all other
variables were held constant, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss before tax.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk
as the year ended exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-NFt+-_A=t—HIEFEWABETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. I EREE BN R BUER (8) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) 505 E B2 (b)
AEBEEHRZEHRAR - ZFRBRK
BEEENUEREMNEEEUINE
BETZHEXRE - AKEZEEZE
EREBHOUNFTELME  MZEE
BZBAMORXZHAARE - KRB R
XLET REEBZMBEERAR
BUARE ZRBEEXTIE -R=-F
—NE+ZA=1t—H AKENURYF
BEtEREEH AL MBEEK DN
AEEART(DRIT)) FHE -

A B B RSN R EE © AT -
ERETDERNEAR  LEARE
WE BN EAZSMEER -

R TR - A RSN R
MFEN - BREORWE 2 Wz i
ERANRE (BEEN2EEER)
8- Bt - ERB I8 HRE DT+ 5
Bf o TRETNEMAEMEHERTE
ZERAT  AREKREAER (HER
BERABATFEEHMB) RAKE
ZEEHNREHRERRKE ARBEX
“EN\EFARBRRTER)ZA
BAREH I HRE -

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s major operations and businesses are located
in the PRC and Peru and substantially all transactions
are conducted in RMB, Soles and USD. All the assets
and liabilities of these businesses are denominated in
RMB, Soles and USD. As at 31 December 2018, equity
investments at FVTOCI of the Group were denominated in
Australian dollars (“AUD”).

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, relevant foreign currency
risk is minimal, and substantially all of the revenue and
cost of sales in Peru are denominated in Soles which is the
functional currency of the operating units. Accordingly, their
fluctuation are excluded from the sensitivity analysis. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates (2018: RMB and AUD exchange rates), with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

Exigm, B %t A 5 1R g m

CR2)  ®/D (%) Om 2 )*
Decrease/

Increase/ (increase) Increase/

(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*

% FTERT TER

% HK$’000 HK$’000

—E-hEF 2019

AT ARKRE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (569) -
B ITH AREHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 569 -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B BE A B R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43. B R EE B 1 R BUR ()

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=T—BUEFEGETINIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Sh¥EE B () (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
b &0, bR AT ES 1B g m,
CR4)  md(Em) OB A )
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
% FAET AT
% HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-)N\F 2018
BT H ARKEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (265) =
BT H AREHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 265 -
WAL H BT A If HK$ weakens against AUD B - 25
%78 7T HOR T FHE If HK$ strengthens against AUD (5) - (25)
TEIERFER Excluding accumulated losses
EEERE  ARFRHERRI R In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
FAMERE - MBS TR EKE unrepresentative of the inherent exchange risk as the year
B K HINE [E B2 o end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
(c) BREEB®KRK (c) Equity price risk

REERRARERAESZZAFER
P R 15 BUKF AR B & 75 B E 1 3R &
M zRER - R_E-NAF+A
=t—B AREEYHZREERRR
KA BARFEFERLEZESH A
BEWEMTAZERNERAKRE (ZF
—N\F I R/UARFEFEBELEH
AE A2 E U S B IR AR E 2 8 Bl AR
BRE) AEBRBRALEH (ZF—N
FRBENEFRSALET) 2 LTHHR
BB EHRERSERHEME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial instruments at
FVTPL as at 31 December 2019 (2018: equity investments
classified as equity investments at FVTOCI). The Group’s
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange (2018:
listed on the ASX Limited) and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WoE B E X ABR A A



mEMBRERNE (H)
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Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. I EREEE N R EE (8) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) REEWEER (&) (c) Equity price risk (continued)
RAFEREAREHRAZRHBELEE The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange (2018:
B RE BT (22— \F B the Stock Exchange and the ASX Limited), at the close of
FIRBMNESEZ ST < EREREE business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
FEEEZFARSE MHESWOT ¢ the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest

points during the year were as follows:

—E-NF & & —E-NF =/ K
F=JE == 5 High/low +=—A=+—H High/low
31 December —ZE—RHFE 31 December —ET—N\F
2019 2019 2018 2018
B 22 PfT Stock Exchange
—[BAEH - Hang Seng Index 28,190 30,157/25,064 25,846 33,154/24,586
BNEH R B ASX Limited
—IEELR,RMEFSR - S&P/ASX 200 Index
5 FT200%5 £ N/A! N/A 5,646 6,352/5,468
T OMREE B T R ' The corresponding indices are not presented.
TRETREMEEMEBHEZTE AKX The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
SIHBEEEZERT  BRAEEZAF change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
BEEEHS%2HRE  TVIRBEEENE other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
RpE AR SRS 7 REETE - based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.
MRBLATE 18 =L m,
REE REL(Em) OR 2)*
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
FE T FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—EB-NF 2019
TEETR : Investments listed in:
EE-UAFEFEHEEEE  Hong Kong - financial instruments
FFABEERNER I A at FVTPL 19,781 989/(989) -
—E-)N\F 2018
"ELEMR : Investments listed in:
Hipim—LAAFETEEH  Elsewhere — equity investments at
SEHAEMEEKED FVTOCI
IR A% & 508 = 25/(25)
* TEERFER * Excluding accumulated losses

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MEEEEEENREE (&)

(d)

EERE
AEBETHRNHEEREEZAKE S
B UABREREHRSGHTNEEEE
R EL B - W EBERRIET B B
ﬁ gEoh - N5 B 5 B % (8 B i W AR
FE A ¢ R B - AR
TH&Z@MET’EHﬂE%’Jﬁ@EﬂE °

AEEHEbeREE(BRES RS

EEY  BREERMNRIE - ?Zi’i\&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ

fH&?hIEEﬁimﬂﬁF&JEH&FﬁL

IE)EI’M:.EH %ELi’ﬁﬁFE
R EREFR AXI,E:H’JEEETE

HRAKRERERAREEEZE=]
ETEE  WMEFTERAR R_ZT—

F+ZA=+—H AEEHEKREFHK
AEERREFPIEEEEMEERR
SEETHBER RZT—N\F+=A
=+—H  XEEWEREKERRTIEK
AEBEREF  MASERLAREFA
167N & B e AR SR H930% ©

BANPH FE20A P IEE - A B LB IR
REAB I ELFERREERE -

EREBER KA & B & B A K BT 75
BREYN  AEBEEERMEERY
IRRERRERENNAIENE - WK EE
REHBFEERCERRRGEABRE
e B EEERKRESE K EEE
e AEEBFREREENEBEEEE
A 4 H BB ER AT 08 RE SR B B IE 4 BB
ETHER - ASRBeEEAERA IR
B BTHE 115 B o N5 B 5t 8 YBR R A SN
B B & B DA KR B IS AR A 49K AR U &
DR A R M E A B R bR R 0 A Bt & E
P E BEEE -
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BE_T-NF+-_A=t—BHUEFEUBETINE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies, arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. At 31 December 2019, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group’s
accounts receivable that were due from the Group’s largest
customer or the Group’s five largest customers. At 31
December 2018, none of the Group’s accounts receivable
was due from the Group’s largest customer while 30% of
the Group’s accounts receivable were due from the Group’s
five largest customers.

The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses for accounts receivable as disclosed in note
20.

For financial assets other than accounts receivable and
for financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of the asset or
financial guarantee and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the asset or underlying loan as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. The Group uses
four categories for financial assets other than accounts
receivable and for financial guarantee contract which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BRREBEEENREE (&) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) EE=RB (&) (d) Credit risk (continued)
28 rEBERIENES BRARCEFENER
Category Group definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL
B #yeh ZHYHHBHRBRTA - B I EEM 1218 A 78 8315 B 5 18
#60 HA K18
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-month ECL

and does not have any past due amounts

c3=4 B AR RS E AR KSBREIE M BEEFEPEAREEFR - RERRE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

credit risk since initial recognition

EH ERBERETEECEAREA BEFEPEBEEBEE - ERRE
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
credit impaired

i 88 BEBRBETRBEBABRERENVHKRE -/ KSEME
7N &= [ W B SRIA R A BB SE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is  Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

REBEBEURRFEZEFEHIERSD Maximum exposure and year-end staging

-]

TRBERRZZE-—NFRZZE—)N\F The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
+=—A=+— E RIBEAEENEEBR exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
BENERAEEREREERR  Hx which is mainly based on past due information unless other
EUBEAER RER - RIFEMELE information is available without undue cost or effort, as
AMETERASKE BRI ERS - BItE at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The amounts presented
RllEm e ﬁﬁ’i‘]#&ﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
BENRVBERSANEREER maximum exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee
WA o contract.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43. B R EE B 1 R BUR ()

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=T—BUEFEGETINIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(d) FERR &)
R 5 B R F RS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

¥ (#8) (continued)
128 AR
EEER EEFEANRAGERE
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL
K& Epd 12 E=RH B Ak @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
TEL TAR TAT TAT TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=B-A%+=A=+—H Asat31December 2019
JEU R Accounts receivable* - - - 317 3171
BREERMNTE e kEM Financial assets included in prepayments,
BYFE eRBEE deposits and other receivables
—EE" - Normal** 1,927 - - - 1,927
ERBEERRFE Amounts due from related companies
—E&E - Normal™ 328 - - - 328
B RRITEH Cash and bank balances
~RBH ~ Net yet past due 35,784 - - - 35,784
FETFEEATMNBELT  Guarantees given to a bank in connection
RITNER with faciliies granted to a related company
-BELARROBEN - Guaranteed portion of facilities drawn
BERSH by a related company
A - Not yet past due 8,974 - - - 8,974
47,013 - - 3,171 50,184
WZE-\E+-A=+—H Asat31 December 2018
YR Accounts receivable* - - - 1,300 1,300
BARERMNTE Kek Financial assets included in prepayments,
HRWFE S REE deposits and other receivables
—EE - Normal** 1,124 - - - 1,124
M BE L RIE Amounts due from related companies
—FE" - Normal™ 334 - - - 334
ReRFTES Cash and bank balances
- KB H ~ Net yet past due 100,901 - = = 100,901
102,359 = . 1,300 103,659

ANNUAL REPORT

2019 & #
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Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. B R EE B 1 R BUR ()

(d)

(e)

FERR (&)

&R /5 B B LU R R F A B B9 R 5

X (&)

C EBAREEARERC ORI -
ERESRE SR EOEREG AN E
FMIEEL0M B -

e BREREBRNFEA REREGRKRAZE
BMEEARERBERRFBERARBRE
TEEHXBEREENEERRE MK

RROERELT  EERESEREA
[E%] - &R SREENEAEEFHRN
RITEsE] o

REBE SRR
AEBIBREDNERERERDES S
¥ RREERSARASHENENE
# PHRRAZRBES TR - |IT
k—RIEETEREREBRR -

REBRBDESEARE  AEBERK
MBRX—KFZReRRESEY -
ZKPLERBEGRSRARKARE S

BZEATHENBIRERENBD 2
@,

TRETAEEZ 2R ABERREHE
RBRERBASORTENRZEIHMA -
TRV BEREOMENEERERE
RXZHUTHRBEBASERAKERE
BRI ANEBERSETH

REETH -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

*

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information on the ECL calculation is
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

= The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and amounts due from related
companies is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short,
medium and longer term. Banking and general facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments. The
amount included below for financial guarantee contract is
the maximum amount the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &
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BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

43. i EREE BN R BEE (18) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

(e) REBEZEMR (&)

RERD SES
=@ERAUAR +t=EAURA —ZRE F
On demand 3 to
or less than less than 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-h#EF 2019
& BR X Accounts payable 4,515 = o 4,515
B EMEMNFZIER  Financial liabilities included in
EiraEcemaE other payables and accruals 44,926 = = 44,926
STRSRITNEMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 31,256 1,881 - 33,137
FEREE R R FUAE Amounts due to related
companies 26,740 - - 26,740
IR TEELAMEE  Guarantees given to a bank
%4 TIRITHER in connection with facilities
granted to a related company 8,974 - - 8,974
116,411 1,881 - 118,292
—E-)N\F 2018
FERTRBR K Accounts payable 7,028 = = 7,028
BIEEEMEMIKIAK  Financial liabilities included in
EitEaEzERBE other payables and accruals 33,161 - - 33,161
SERITKREMESE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 31,763 3,076 2,589 37,428
FE1S A R RIFKIE Amounts due to related
companies 3,780 - - 3,780
75,732 3,076 2,589 81,397

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT-NAF+_A=t—BLEFE(RETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

MEEEEEENREE(E)

(f) EXxEE
AEEEATEY T ERERREAE
freey G Y Ly ol oy
BEEZEALE  USRBHEBERE
ERSREEE-

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
(f) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

%iﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁéﬁ%%  REEHHK SR In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
BaRFIKMNKRE 2 ERBITHR Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
e BEZE ﬂi& T—NF+= shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made

A=+— EHJ:%F VERERERNZ

in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

BiZ  BRERERERED - during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
KNEEAE 7T5Z¥T Bz b & (ANES 5 The Group monitors capital using the debt-to-total equity
R AERERS) ERHEERN - F5F58 ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt

REEE (BREENBER R RE NG
BRTMEMEE) RRENECEE

is calculated as total borrowings (including amounts due
to related companies and interest-bearing bank and other

MEtE o borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.
R_EBE—NhEFEFR-_ZE—NF+=A The debt-to-total equity ratios at 31 December 2019 and
=t—HzEBHEERLEENT 2018 were as follows:
—E-NEF — N\
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
wmiEy Total borrowings 59,800 40,761
W RERBECEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (35,721) (100,822)
B F5 Net debt 24,079 (60,061)
B RE T Total equity 178,967 259,867
BN AREIRE Debt-to-total equity ratio 13% N/A
44, HEHWE R 7 44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Topshine Reward Limited ([Topshine]) (7
NFIZEEZ2ENMBAR) BBIE=H
FIVEBHA-_ZTZ—hAhFEFt+—ANBWNE
E 3= LA H ELukewarm Gold Limited
(I Lukewarm |) & H Bt B A Rl 5e #h 19 2 30 A%
N HE %5 DA K Lukewarm/R Topshine#) i% B &
K (REER]) - BELRKE 2,200,000
Br((HesmE]) - FHLESE £
TopshineZTiﬁﬂ?&?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ BEFRERBR &

MR AEBERERA 415,308, ooo,%mérj
%/*\,\/T)/\ HAEREEMIERER

HEFEHER _ZE—NLF+—A+/\BZA
SERK o L BR & M R S 49803,000% JT
% HEFERRE & 243,320,000 7T ©
RHEEFHETKE @ A% B R Lukewarm & 3E
AR TBESAE AR -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

# & X B R A 7

Topshine Reward Limited (“Topshine”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase
agreement dated 8 November 2019 with an independent third
party, to dispose the entire equity interests in Lukewarm Gold
Limited (“Lukewarm”) and its subsidiary, Like Top, together with
the shareholder’s loan ("Shareholder's Loan") owing by Lukewarm
to Topshine at an aggregate consideration of HK$2,200,000 (“the
Disposal”). In connection with the Disposal, Like Top released
and waived an aggregate of approximately HK$15,303,000
interest-free loan owed by the Group to Like Top, by entering into
a deed of release and discharge with Topshine, which is a non-
cash transaction for the Group.

The Disposal was duly completed on 18 November 2019. The
gain on the Disposal amounted to approximately HK$3,320,000,
after disposal related expenses of approximately HK$303,000.
Following the completion of the Disposal, the Group ceased to
hold any interest in Lukewarm and Like Top.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. LEHB AT (&) 44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
REEBRH
At date of
Disposal
FET
HK$'000
EERAE Assets and liabilities
M - WE R (HE13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 89
JE Y BR 5K Accounts receivable 48
TN FRIE e M E A W FE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 697
JE Y 7R &= B 3R IE Amount due from the Group 15,303
R RIRITHER Cash and bank balance 194
J& - BR 3K Accounts payable (2,449)
H fth fE A 518 K e ET B & Other payables and accruals @)
PRERE R Shareholder's Loan (36)
13,844
S RBERXZ Disposal related expenses 303
& W (A7 325) Gain on disposal (note 5) 3,320
17,467
ZHAR Satisfied by:
HeKE Cash consideration 2,200
% B B W AN & B RIR Discharge of amount due from the Group 15,303
EERREX Assignment of Shareholder's Loan (36)
17,467
EHATERBATINR S RIREEEY An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
B AFED T T respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
—E-hEF
2019
FET
HK$°000
HERE Cash consideration 2,200
& 1R REE R X Disposal related expenses (303)
HERIR & MIBTTHEH Cash and bank balances disposed of (194)
FRLENBATNRe KRG Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
ZEMH RN FEE disposal of subsidiaries 1,703

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BE_Z-AF+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. N1 7] 2 B B AR R &

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
BEARRQARNREIRB L RE Z TGN K Information about the statement of financial position of the
ZERIT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET TFAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - WE &G Property, plant and equipment 14 19
RHB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 2,405 41,654
EMEBEELE Total non-current assets 2,419 41,673
REBEE Current assets
Ve Inventories 22,561 =
FERNE - ZE RE M EN R E Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,577 329
FE W B BB A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 96,982 119,912
LA EEBHESE AEEA  Financial instruments at fair value through profit
EEITA or loss 19,781 -
Re RIBITES Cash and bank balances 10,154 79,325
MEBEERE Total current assets 151,055 199,566
REBEE Current liabilities
EMEAFIENEGEE Other payables and accruals 13,128 14,782
FFTREMEER Interest-bearing other borrowing 5,595 5,701
AR NG @] Amount due to a subsidiary 7,764 -
mE e ERE Total current liabilities 26,487 20,483
REEEFE Net current assets 124,568 179,083
EEHAERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 126,987 220,756
EEFRE Net assets 126,987 220,756
s Equity
ANREEAEGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
AR Share capital 120,625 120,625
i Reserves 6,362 100,131
AR Total equity 126,987 220,756
EE R
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
EaEa EE
Director Director

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT-NFt_A=t—HLEFEULETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

CIE: 3 REBH,
BR 43 )3 (8 AR SR E BREMEE (R&HE#8) st
Retained
Share Convertible Share profits/
premium bonds option (accumulated
account reserve reserve losses) Total
FHET FHET FHET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
R-ZF—NF—H—H At 1 January 2018 78,399 - 1,673 101,713 181,785
FEZEMAXBE Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - - (167,165) (167,165)
o B BR AR A Cancellation of share options - - (1,673) 1,673 -
BT AR AR 1B 5 Issuance of convertible bonds - 19,266 - - 19,266
ABMRESFEITER Convertible bonds issuance expenses = (241) = - (241)
Al AR fE S IR Conversion of convertible bonds 85,511 (18,462) - - 67,049
A R B S MY IR AT B 18 Deferred tax on convertible bonds - (563) = - (563)
RZZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H At31 December 2018 and
R-—T-h&—A—H 1 January 2019 163,910 = - (63,779) 100,131
FEXEMATER Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - - (93,769) (93,769)
R-ZZ—hFE+=-A=+—H At31December 2019 163,910 - - (157,548) 6,362

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 & %
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mEMBRERNE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Bz _ZT-AF+t-_A=t—HLEFEUBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

46. L5 HIEE1E 46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
B-Z -4 — A¥AK  COVID-19/& 3% Since early January 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak has spread
EREFRHAEREMBREL  EHpEE across mainland China and other countries, causing disruption
REERBXINTE - AEEFTFRYEE to business and economic activities. The Group is paying close
COVID-19/8 B 1) 3 R LA R E BT 5| BRAY B 2 [k attention to the development of, and the disruption to business
KEEHTE THEIHEHAEBRNKE and economic activities caused by the COVID-19 outbreak and
MARBEEENTE - continue to evaluate its impact on the financial position and

operating results of the Group.

47. Ht EEZ S BB R K 47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
SAEVERRR-_ZE_EFNA-_+ILHE The consolidated financial statements were approved and
BES O EITRET)E - authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REBR-_ZT-—NF+_A=T—HZREME

Details of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2019

FHEWMT are as follows:
BREEEE
i B (F 7 3K) HEE R AR
Approximate
gross floor area Category of
Location (square meter) the lease term Use
Office units 708, 728, 731, 732, o B 4k A 7 A 851 + b {5 A 4 GRS
734, 735, 1132, &) FIINKRE S5 FHR Z P& Commercial
1510 and 1516 of Tower 1 HEESE =AZ+—BE®R
Junefield Plaza 708 ~ 728 ~ 731 » Land use rights
No. 6 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 732 -~ 734 - 735 for a term expired
Xi Cheng District, Beijing 1132 - 1510 % on 21 March 2044
the PRC 1516 E N By
Office units 725-729 on Level 7 AR R4 =T A = 744 + b {F A RE [HES
and 917 on Level 9 of Tower 2 & FIINKRE + 5% FHN e Commercial
Junefield Plaza HEESE R =AZ+—BE®R
No. 10 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie LIB7252T729FE Land use rights

Xi Cheng District, Beijing
the PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %
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for a term expired
on 21 March 2044
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LIEMBHRE
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

E4 RESULTS
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
“E-NEFE —F-N\F ZF—+F ZET—RF —T—HF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
FHET FHET TR FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRS E T Continuing Operations
A Revenue 337,839 184,704 36,275 154,401 298,688
FELEEL 2 Loss before tax from
BREIRIEE continuing operations (102,143)  (139,665) (63,891) (51,881) (73,764)
PR e, (B%)  Income tax credit/(expense) 3,524 7,765 1,029 2,195 (201)
FEICE X2 Loss for the year from
FEEE continuing operations (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (49,686) (73,965)
BRIEEEEBR 2 Loss for the year from
FEER discontinued operations - - - (1,953) (1,897)
FEEE Loss for the year (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (51,639) (75,862)
FE{L Attributable to:
ZANYNECIE 2N Owners of the Company (88,810)  (111,784) (44,895) (36,495) (69,434)
FEE IR Non-controlling interests (9,809) (20,116) (17,967) (15,144) (6,428)
(98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (51,639) (75,862)
> ==
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=—HA=+—H
At 31 December
—B-NF —F-N\F ZFT—+tF —F-RF —FT—4F
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
TER FHTT FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$ 000
BEHE Total assets 329,261 393,394 440,295 483,730 798,749
BEBRE Total liabilities (150,294)  (133,527)  (145,647)  (139,012)  (206,670)
178,967 259,867 294,648 344,718 592,079
FE(hfE R Equity attributable to:
NATEES A Owners of the Company 159,101 229,684 241,836 278,838 509,358
FEFE AR HE Non-controlling interests 19,866 30,183 52,812 65,880 82,721

178,967 259,867 294,648 344,718 592,079

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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